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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

BT

STEENAFRE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-ALFE

20207 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZECEE0 —NE —N\F —tF N3
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Revenue WA 1,948,500,643 1,852,452,059 1,307,639,358 964,927,119 704,937,348
EBITDA BRTE R EHA
2 &F 460,413,906 502,551,918 368,342,429 274,120,387 208,888,441
Profit before tax BR LA A 360,523,380 450,080,481 330,153,644 244,608,182 184,407,790
Profit for the year FREF 310,271,973 384,504,964 278,136,291 203,496,217 149,308,398
Profit attributable to owners of ARREEAESL
the Company il 286,576,155 361,105,819 279,223,779 200,702,539 148,663,969
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) B IRERZF] (7&(l) 29.1 36.7 28.5 21.0 19.9
As at 31 March
R=A=+-H
20207 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEE0 —NE —N\F —tF N3
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BERE 2,555,268,899  2,346,983,842  1,982,980,721  1,199,253,190  1,155,563,031
Total liabilities A% 1,385,735,779  1,181,086,947 1,145466,738 409,400,867 424,285,947
Net assets ﬁé/ﬂ 1,169,533,120 1,165,896,895 837,513,983 789,852,323 731,277,084
Financial Metrics BEKER
EBITDA Margin'" BRI E R A
ZEFEO 23.6% 27.1% 28.1% 28.4% 29.6%
Net profit margin® FRNE 15.9% 20.8% 21.3% 21.1% 21.1%
Current ratio® B L& 0.98x 1.25x 1.24x 2.49x 2.54x
Quick ratio® RE) KA 0.93x 1.20x 1.21x 2.44x 2.50x
Return on equity® A A mlRE 6 26.5% 33.0% 33.2% 25.8% 20.4%
Return on average total assets® THEEERREO 12.7% 17.8% 17.5% 17.3% 18.4%
Dividend per share (HK cents) S e (BIL) 23.0 35.0 27.0 20.4 145
Notes: MiaE
1. EBITDA Margin equals earnings before interest, tax, depreciation-owned 1. BT E R HAT 2 BN R E R EERNRF

2

property, plant equipment and amortisation over total revenue for the
financial year.

Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue for the same
period.

Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end
of the financial year.

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by current liabilities
as at end of the financial year.

Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the ending balance of
total equity for the financial year.

Return on average total assets equals profit for the year divided by the
arithmetic mean of the beginning and ending balances of total assets for
the financial year.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16, Leases at 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Accordingly the figures for each of the
years ended 31 March 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 are not restated and
therefore may not be comparable.
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Last updated: 31 March 2020
EHAHE 2020638318
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
RS

Dear shareholders,

The Group demonstrated its capability and the market does
recognise our value further to our successful transformation into an
integrated medical service provider since the listing and continued to
be the largest medical service provider (non-hospital) in Hong Kong'.
We are ready to expand further into the Mainland China and strive to
be the leading medical service provider in Asia.

Preventive and precision medicine continues to be the core to our
medical platform and we are determined to make a difference by
delivering excellent patient care and convening enthusiastic
individuals to improve the quality of life.

As an essential part of one’s life, demand of medical and healthcare
services continued to grow steadily. Out-patient medical insurance
claims grew at a CAGR of 28.1%? over the past 3 years®.

Well positioned and focused in the Greater Bay Area, the Group is
committed to capturing the growing demand for reliable and quality
medical products and services that are not available in the Mainland
China via medical tourism. We are to speed up our expansion in the
Mainland China. Riding on the convenience on the infrastructure, we
anticipate that our business generated from Mainland Chinese will
continue to grow in a decent manner.

We will also proactively explore acquisition targets and market
players who share the same vision as we do — offering safe,
professional and effective services in health, beauty and happiness
to individuals. Targeting partnership opportunities with strong
presence in the Mainland China, we are exploring further
collaboration in the Greater Bay Area with the existing partners, in
particular.

We proactively grasped opportunities arising from the market and
were able to achieve remarkable growth. The Group is committed to
generating sustainable and consistent returns for our shareholders.
The Board has recommended to declare a final cash dividend of 8.0
HK cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2020. If approved
at the AGM, the total cash dividend for the entire financial year ended
31 March 2020, including the interim cash dividend of 15.0 HK cents
per Share, would be an aggregate of 23.0 HK cents per Share.

U According to independent research conducted by Frost & Sullivan in terms
of revenue in 2018 and 2019 in Hong Kong.

c According to Hong Kong Federation of Insurers 2018

&5 2015 to 2018
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OUR CO-OWNERSHIP UNIQUE COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE

Learning from the success in the market and to create an unique
expansion model, we set up our Co-Ownership Plan since 16 April
2020.

Our Co-Ownership Plan requires both incredible shareholders
generosity to accept possible dilution and incredible management
audacity to personally buy the base shares upfront so as to qualify to
earn matching free bonus Shares by achieving aspirational goals for
cumulative earnings per share (“EPS”) for the three years ending 31
March 2023. By achieving 6.11 times of EPS for the year ended 31
March 2020 between FY20/21 and FY 22/23, five free Award Shares
will be awarded to the Participants for every ten Investment Shares
invested. The incentive offered is essentially a maximum 4% of the
Company’s market capitalisation. In short, this is how we create
distributed wealth for our Shareholders, including our Co-Owners.

We have demonstrated our capability and the market does recognise
our value further to the transformation since IPO.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to express my deepest appreciation to the management
team and all fellow talents for their extraordinary commitment,
cohesive teamwork, dedication and contribution. They are one of our
most important assets contributing to the Group’s success. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to all of our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their unwavering support. We will continue to
leverage on our unparalleled position and deepen our impact as the
leading medical service provider in Hong Kong* and striving for
excellence. In turn we will create an investment opportunity that is
both fulfiling and financially solid for our stakeholders.

Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

29 June 2020

* According to independent research conducted by Frost & Sullivan in terms
of revenue in 2018 and 2019 in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE & am Mo

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group continued to be the leading non-hospital medical service
provider in Hong Kong', achieving strong business growth while
maintaining competitive operating efficiencies. We have evolved to
provide a full spectrum of medical and healthcare services and
related services to create sustainable value to our stakeholders. We
are also the largest medical aesthetic service provider in Hong
Kong'.

The Group will continue to focus its deployment of resources in IT,
services and brands to sustain and enhance its competitive
advantage as a leader in the market, and further expand its market
share in the primary healthcare market.

Even with the impacts from the social unrest in Hong Kong and
global pandemic over the majority of the Reporting Period, the
Group’s performance was able to remain steady. During the
Reporting Period, the average spending per individual customers?
increased by 7.8% from the previous year to HK$19,923, and the
Group’s revenue increased by 5.2% and net profit decreased by
19.3% from the previous year to HK$1,948.5 million and HK$310.3
million respectively. The Group strives to setup additional medical
disciplines to satisfy the continuous increase in the demand of
customers. Medical services continue to be the key growth driver of
the Group. During the Reporting Period, revenue contributed by
medical services increased by 19.2% from the previous year to
HK$623.2 million.

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
decreased by 20.6% from HK$361.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2019 to HK$286.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2020.
Basic earnings per Share amounted to 29.1 HK cents as compared
10 36.7 HK cents for the previous period.

We are well-positioned to broaden the coverage of medical
disciplines. As at 31 March 2020, including our two flagships in Hong
Kong and six clinics in the Mainland China, we operate 56 clinics and
service centres occupying an aggregate floor area of approximately
301,000 sqg. ft. with 96 full-time and exclusive Registered
Practitioners across Hong Kong, the Mainland China and Macau.

4 according to the independent research conducted by Frost and Sullivan in
terms of revenue in 2018 and 2019

. based on sales volume
6 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

EBRHE

AEBRERBBRAFBRBRRGRMEE
BERBYEFIERUAFABF NOKLERE -
BACTERE - AERRH T BRERREZ
ARISIA R AEREIRTS - R EAERFHEEE -
BATAEERANBEEXRRBGIEREE -

AEEREBSERALTINEMAR K - RS
K@ E BARERTHREENHFE

BMFRmEHEABLREZIEBHLEEER
EREBENFE  AEBMNRBNERIFEE -
RBERE - EATPHTHEBER2EELFEM
7.8% % 19,9238 7T + NEB MM AREFIE N
52% % 1,948.5 B BB T M F & FREFR D
19.3% £310.3 B BB T o NEBE B &R LEEIN
BEEERRE  UWRETHIEIINEFSEK - 8
BERENEAEENTEERS L - RREH
M BERBSEMOKAREFEINI2%E
6232 BHEBTT

AAR R REEEFEFNABE—_ZS—NF=
B=+—HIEFERN361I1EEETH L 20.6%
BEHE T -_EF=-A=1+—HILFEH286.6
BAEBT - SRBRHERZF E29.18M - £—
HARS 8115 36.7 1L -

BMEAEEEYRBEABERENRBHRER
cRIE_TFE=A=+—RH BEIAMESE
B EEE R P BEANNANRLEAN - &
PIHQLE 6 RZ A ERBH O FEBEEES
#£#9301,000F 5 R - EFE - HEAMRIEPM
HKEBEZEHEBEMEL -

! RBEHREHBEAFIXRAE—E—NFR=ZF—N
FRAFT EETHI BT
i RIEHEF R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition to establishing the vaccination centre in our Langham
Place Flagship in June 2019, the Group has also acquired a
paediatric clinic and child development assessment and therapy
centre in August 2019.

The Centre for Health Protection (CHP) of the Department of Health
of Hong Kong offers free vaccination to the residents. In order to
enhance the service offerings and to facilitate the Government, the
Group became one of the vaccination outreach teams for Childhood
Immunisation Programme in 2019 and exclusive designated centres
for free measles, mumps and rubella (MMR) Vaccination in Kowloon
since February 2020.

Our clinics and services centres have suffered from a decrease in
client visits during the coronavirus outbreak. Further to the issue of
Ethical Guidelines on Practice of Telemedicine by the Medical
Council of Hong Kong in December 2019, the Group subsequently
commenced to offer telemedicine services to facilitate the basic
medical and healthcare needs of customers since February 2020,
making healthcare more accessible and affordable to individuals.

To further enhance our capabilities in securing customers, the Group
acquired a performance marketing company during the Reporting
Period.

The Group is committed to generating sustainable and consistent
returns for our Shareholders. The Board resolved to recommend a
cash dividend of 8.0 HK cents per Share for the year ended 31
March 2020, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM.
If approved at the AGM, the total aggregate cash dividend for the full
financial year ended 31 March 2020, including the interim cash
dividend of 15.0 HK cents per Share, would be 23.0 HK cents per
Share.

kkf% njn%& Tﬁ
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B wm RT

Business Analysis

Medical and aesthetic medical services continue to be the Group’s
growth driver. The table below sets forth our client demographics

during the Reporting Period:

E3 Sk

BENMCEEERGIDAAKENERS N - T

REFINHERREANET A

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEFE

2019 2020 Change
—TNEF ZB-FF g

Based on treatment delivered RERERER
Number of Individual Customers BAZFEAE 99,524 85,783 (13.8%)

Number of New Customers EFEE 57,516 45,011 (21.7%)

Number of Existing Customers REREFEE 42,008 40,772 (2.9%)
Contribution to treatment delivered e REERENEE

Number of New Customers FIRPEE 36% 24%

Number of Existing Customers REEFEE 64% 76%

Retention rate of our customers is 80%.

The table below sets forth the average spending of our clients by key
business segment based on sales volume during the Reporting

Period:

BEFBEEFER80% -

TRENBEPRBMRBHERAERTIEE
BomelomEFPFHHEE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEFE

2019 2020 Change
—TNEF ZB-FF )
Number of Clients ZEF#AH
Medical B2 59,697 78,922 32.2%
Aesthetic Medical EERE 34,410 23,397 (32.0%)
Beauty and Wellness EAREAE 31,338 35,554 13.5%
Average Spending per Client (HKD) BREFEYHEE(GET)
Medical BE 8,475 7,992 (5.7%)
Aesthetic Medical EERE 25,757 33,497 30.1%
Beauty and Wellness ERANBE 13,865 12,481 (10.0%)

8 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our Professionals and Other Staff

We continued to be a reliable partner to the medical experts. As at
31 March 2020, we had 96 full time and exclusive Registered
Practitioners, 86 Medical Professionals, 286 relationship managers
and 374 Trained Therapists. The following table summarises our
Registered Practitioners as at 31 March 2020:

SEENERE &

BHNWERAERHEMET

BPEEERBRERNAERH R_T_F
FZA=1+—H  RMABE=BREBIMS
 BoRBREHEEAS 28BBEPKEBUR
BTARERZIBIIRAREED - TREAN —T =
FEZA=+T—ARMANEMEENEE -

Number of
Registered
Type of Registered Practitioners Location Practitioners
= 1S A= A i B EMEE A
Registered medical practitioners on the General Register Hong Kong 17
ERRIE AR M EaMmE BB
Registered medical practitioners on the Specialist Register
ERIE S A ER e
Cardio-thoracic Surgery Hong Kong 1
O B N} )
Clinical Microbiology & Infection Hong Kong 1
B R A ) e R 2R 22 578
Gastroenterology & Hepatology Hong Kong 1
fe B BB BB
General Surgery Hong Kong 3
HMEE 578
Geriatric Medicine Hong Kong 1
Z AR e
Medical Oncology Hong Kong 1
ARHER B R B
Neurosurgery Hong Kong 2
1R I BB
Orthopaedic & Traumatology Hong Kong 4
B )
Otorhinolaryngology Hong Kong 2
H AW B
Paediatrics Hong Kong 6
SR B
Plastic Surgery Hong Kong 2
BIZINEL BB
Psychiatry Hong Kong 1
KR Sl
Radiology Hong Kong 3
i EIERS o
Urology Hong Kong 1
PR T 578
Chinese medicine practitioners Hong Kong 2
s Gl
Chiropractors Hong Kong 23
=n- 58
Dentists Hong Kong 10
T8 e
Mainland China Doctors Mainland China 12
o 50 7 1 B 5Bt
Macau Doctors Macau 3
P B EFT
96

BEERBRERASEERAT 9
FE L 2019/20



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

kki%)‘ ﬂLnFFH& Tﬁ

Internal Control Protocols

Safety and risk management professionalism have always been our
core values. Our experienced and well-trained Registered
Practitioners perform and oversee all medical related operations, as
well as participating in our senior management. Both our Registered
Practitioners and supporting staff attend medical related trainings on
a regular and ongoing basis to update their knowledge and skill sets.
Before performing any procedure to a client, we require our talents
to serve clients directly, including but not limited to, Registered
Practitioners, Medical Professionals and Trained Therapists to
explain the procedures and associated risks involved and obtain a
written consent and acknowledgement in a designated form to be
signed by our clients. We apply certain medical standards even to
our non-medical services, such as recommending our clients to
consult doctors before receiving any of our services. Internal control
measures regarding selling practices and unutilised prepaid
packages are in place. We have implemented a series of internal
control measures, including a number of measures that refer to
applicable “best practice” guidelines issued by governmental bodies
(such as the Hong Kong Consumer Council and the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau of Hong Kong), in order to help
prevent our staff from engaging in coercive selling practices. We
ensure we are:

° adopting a refund policy which includes a fourteen-day cooling
off period whereby our clients are allowed to request a full
refund within fourteen days of purchase of any prepaid
packages;

° adopting a policy that commission is not paid to our sales staff
for contracted sales which are subsequently refunded;

° establishing procedures for recording and handling complaints;

o having written terms and conditions with clients;

° sharing media reports of forced selling cases with our staff to
highlight the potential adverse consequences of such
practices.

During the Reporting Period, the refunds and settlement of the

material unfavourable feedback represents only 0.04% (FY2019:
0.02%) of the Group’s total revenue.

1 0 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE OUTBREAK OF NOVEL CORONAVIRUS

The outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) around the world
has threatened the life and health of all mankind for months, resulting
in the World Health Organization declaring it a “pandemic” in March
2020. Many countries have implemented travel restriction and
temporary suspension of businesses in the commercial and industrial
sectors, further curtailed economic recovery and is bringing a
slowdown on a global scale. The tourism, hotel and retail have
almost come to a standstill.

There is uncertainty as to whether the pandemic can be controlled in
the next few months in Hong Kong and around the world. It is pre-
mature to assess the impact of this pandemic will have on the global
economy. The economy of Hong Kong is forecasted to continue to
decline and unemployment rate will further increase, while small and
medium-sized businesses will continue to face difficulties.

The Government of Hong Kong announced the establishment of the
HK$30 billion Anti-epidemic Fund in mid-February 2020. In late
February 2020, the Government further announced of the counter-
cyclical measures involving more than HK$120 billion in the Budget,
including but not limited to,

° the disbursement of HK$10,000 to all Hong Kong permanent
residents aged 18 or above;

° a concessionary low-interest loan with Government guarantee
for enterprises capped at HK$4 million;

° waiving of profits tax, salaries tax and tax under personal
assessment each subject to a ceiling of HK$20,000;

° introduction of a fixed-rate Mortgage Pilot Scheme up to
HK$10 million each to homebuyers;

° funding of HK$700 million for the Hong Kong Tourism Board to
step up promotion;

° waiving rates for residential properties subject to a ceiling of
HK$1,500 per quarter; and

° wage subsidy under Employment Support Scheme with a
wage cap at HK$18,000 per employee per month for six
months.

The Company had been monitoring the COVID-19 situation closely
and had implemented certain measures to safeguard the health and
safety of the customers, talents and business partners since
February 2020. Reference can be made to the announcements of
the Company dated 2 April 2020, 8 April 2020, 9 April 2020 and 20
April 2020, respectively.

The Group had applied for the relevant subsidies with total amounts
of approximately HK$30.8 million in Hong Kong, the Mainland China
and Macau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group has implemented the following precautionary measures
to safeguard the health of individuals published by the Government
of Hong Kong on 1 April 2020 since February 2020:

° all individuals shall be subject to compulsory body temperature
check before entering into the Group’s premises and anyone
with a body temperature higher than 37.3 degree Celsius will
not be given access to the Group’s premises;

° all individuals are required to wear appropriate face masks at
all times during their presence in the Group’s premises; and

° alcohol rubs/hand sanitizers will be provided in the Group’s
premises.

The overall business has been affected by the social unrest in Hong
Kong and the COVID-19 pandemic since August 2019 and February
2020 respectively. For the latter, the Group responded by temporarily
closing certain service centers for a period ranging from 3 to 8 weeks
imposed by local governments in an attempt to contain the
spreading of the pandemic. The relevant outlets mentioned above all
resumed operation since 8 May 2020.

The Group’s establishments or premises for (a) medical treatment
operated by a medical practitioner registered under the Medical
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 161); (b) physiotherapy operated by a
physiotherapist registered under the Supplementary Medical
Professions Ordinance (Cap. 359); (c) practising Chinese medicine
operated by a registered Chinese medicine practitioner or listed
Chinese medicine practitioner as defined in section 2 of the Chinese
Medicine Ordinance (Cap. 549); and (d) for chiropractic operated by
a chiropractor registered under the Chiropractors Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 428), continued to operate as usual. The Group had
been responsive in adjusting its measures and plans for epidemic
prevention and control, operations and business development
accordingly, as and when appropriate.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries and based on the management sales
record of the Group, Sales Volume of the Group is expected to be no
less than HK$400 million during the period from 1 April 2020 to 28
June 2020, representing no less than 14.0% increase from the period
between 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2020.

We foresee the operation shall continue to be challenging in the near
term. However, we are confident our business model and flexibility
together with the Group being customer and IT centric will facilitate
the Group to thrive during recovery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Medical service is essential to individuals. With medical efficacy as a
foundation, we are committed to offering the top notch consumer
experiences. We contemplate and formulate our strategies for
growth in a fast moving healthcare market environment with rapid
technological advancements, studying the development of long-term
trends on a global scale.

Competitive Landscape
Hong Kong

The social unrest in Hong Kong since mid-2019 and the pandemic
since February 2020 had affected inbound tourism and domestic
consumption in the near term. Hong Kong entered into a recession
driven by the downturn in tourists and by locals pulling back on
spending. According to the Immigration Department of Hong Kong
Government, passenger traffic in 2019 dropped by 4.3% from 2018
to 301.3 million.

The Private Healthcare Facilities (“PHFs”) Bill was passed by the
Legislative Council on 15 November 2018. Four types of PHFs will
be subject to regulation, namely hospitals, day procedure centres,
clinics and health services establishments. The regulatory regime will
be imposed in phases based on the types of PHFs and their risk
levels. The registration for private hospitals under the new Ordinance
commenced in 2019. The registration for day procedure centres and
clinics are tentatively scheduled for 2020 and 2021 respectively. The
new Ordinance will further protect patient safety and consumer rights
through the introduction of a new regulatory regime for PHFs. It wil
also facilitate the sustainable development of the healthcare system.

The Medical Council of Hong Kong has issued the Ethical Guidelines
on Practice of Telemedicine in December 2019 and the Group was
able to respond timely by rolling out the telemedicine services in
February 2020.

In encountering the current challenges in Hong Kong, the Group ()
adopted proactive client engagement to retain loyal local customers;
(i) continues to develop new medical services to fulfil the essential
needs of our customers; (iii) carried out additional promotions to
drive new local customers or customers from medical tourism; and
(iv) implemented further prudent financial management approach
with proactive implementation of cost control initiatives. In the long
run, the Group believes that its agility will retain through our core
competency in brand, services and information technology.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEEEREI S

Looking forward into 2020, business leaders in Hong Kong face
tough organizational challenges such as sustaining a culture in which
mainland and local talents work effectively, and persuading Hong
Kong talents to continue to take opportunities in the Mainland China.
Despite the unprecedented challenges, Hong Kong’s institutional
strengths and core competitiveness are unscathed.

Mainland China

Domestic consumption and investment will remain the key economic
drivers, and the PRC will deploy targeted stimuli to maintain
momentum. High growth sectors in 2020 will be clustered in
consumer facing services, many internet-enabled. Healthcare,
education, travel, and leisure will all remain strong.

The Greater Bay Area initiative remains a priority. As the region
covers around 15% of the PRC’s GDP and is the center of innovation
for many of the PRC’s priority industries, the Greater Bay Area’s
success is also important for national economic growth. The Greater
Bay Area will become more concrete in 2020 as key physical
infrastructure are built. Bridges, roads, and railways to connect its
east and west more closely will start construction. Young talents are
willing to migrate into this vibrant hub for work.

Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau’s gradual introduction of the
liberalisation measures under the CEPA and Greater Bay Area plan
has attracted many mainland professional service providers to step
up cooperation with their Hong Kong and Macao counterparts in
providing more cross border services to mainland enterprises
operating in the Greater Bay Area.

With respect to consumer behaviour, the survey by the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council also found that the average number of
visits paid by the respondents to shopping malls or physical stores
was 1.08 times a week, with female consumers (1.21 times a week)
and young consumers aged 26-35 (1.16 times) recording higher
frequencies. The online and offline consumer markets in the nine
Greater Bay Area cities are highly integrated. While consumers have
already become accustomed to going online to shop for their
favourite products, they also visit physical stores to experience
products and enjoy services. Although online shopping offers
convenience, many consumers still like to visit physical stores to
experience the products they are thinking of buying. As the spending
power of consumers continues to rise, their demand for special
offline shops increases. In view of this, Hong Kong companies
capable of mapping out strategies using both online and offline
marketing channels are likely to have a greater chance of seizing the
huge business opportunities arising from the consumer market in the
nine mainland cities in the Greater Bay Area.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Although the population is covered by public health insurance, public
health insurance generally does not offer complete coverage. The
Chinese government has been undertaking effort to reduce
healthcare costs, initiatives for private health insurances have been
facilitated. In order to cater for localisation of medical services, we
are exploring acquisition targets as well as partnership opportunities
with local players in the Mainland China proactively, in addition to
establishing clinics/services centres in an organic manner.

Integrated Multi-Discipline Strategy

The Group will continue its dedication to enhance its brand, service
and IT. It is the priority of the Group in improving patient care to
provide a high degree of patient satisfaction. Our brand shall build on
the ongoing positive feedbacks from clients. We will also continue to
seek new ways to raise productivity standards through increased
digitalisation, innovation and technology.

As the leading medical group in Hong Kong, the Group aims to
expand the depth of existing medical disciplines and extend the
coverage of disciplines with demand. We will continue to secure new
clientele who are health-conscious and will eventually seek easy
access to other medical and healthcare needs. By enhancing the
ambiance of our facilities and client convenience through
digitalization, retention of client shall be maintained within our
enclosed eco-system where integrated medical services can be
offered.

We are actively exploring partnerships in Hong Kong to form
strategic alliances to broaden its breadth and depth of our healthcare
and wellness service offerings. We will expand market share by
identifying potential acquisition targets or via an organic expansion in
the Greater Bay Area, currently plan to reach 30 to 50 outlets in the
next three to five years, with a focus in discretionary medical and
healthcare services including but not limited to medical aesthetic,
chiropractic, dental and paediatric services.

We are exploring acquisition targets as well as partnership
opportunities with local medical players in the Mainland China
cautiously, including but not limited to reputable medical service and
healthcare service providers, suppliers and investors, to fuel our
sustainable growth in this market with immense potential.

SEEEREI ST

BEADEAIHBERBRRR  BEAKERERR
—RIAREE2ERE - PEBRT BB RES
BRA  HEPUABRRBROER - BREER
R ER - BRERIB R DM, RE T
DA RAIEREGERREE B ZA KRB R
A2 EENSIFRS -

ZURBES R

AEBERBEHNIRI ME - REREMBI -
AEENEREBEEREEERIEKT  £3F
HimEER - RPN mESEIERPRHEMNE
MO8 o WAV SHES R 0%  BIBIE I
BBIE - BIFT R BRIARS EENRE -

EREBALNEBEREE  AEBFHERAREHR
RABRENRE RERFRNERBBENRBEDN
BEDE - HPIBEERRIEREONES -
RRBESKEZ T AR EMBERLRES
2 - BREAERMARBEENRRERALBBE
BIEREEPHNEME  RAREEREMERE
R BRE R P Mt BER -

R EERERETSNAERHBE - UK
RIS - BABERBAEERBNERE KT
- BRMBB/MEEBEENREESZHEBEKX
B EIBERRIEATISMEE - BT8R R
—ERFRNMRI0ES0MMAE ETBREHEE
BENEERE  BEETENRESEE A
R - TR ERIR -

B EEMEBEERERRIEBNERERE
BTG RAEEEMEWERRAKEE
BRE(BRETRRANEEERS LB LR
RHUE HEBKREF)NBHAERE B
BAREFHEEELEEROTISRHES N

BEERBRERASEERAT 1 5
FE L 2019/20



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by 5.2% from HK$1,852.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to HK$1,948.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2020, primarily attributable to the significant increase in the
revenue generated from medical services as a result of the increase
in the number of active clients and their spending during the
Reporting Period.

Medical

Medical represents all medical services (excluding aesthetic medical
services and any Beauty and Wellness Services) offered by the
Group. Our revenue from medical represents 32.0% of the total
revenue (2019: 28.2%) and increased remarkably by 19.2% from
HK$522.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to HK$623.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2020, primarily attributable to the
increase in the variety of medical services that the Group is offering,
including but not limited to pediatric and cardiology, and an increase
in the number of clients receiving medical services.

Aesthetic Medical Services

Aesthetic medical services represent medical aesthetics and dental
services offered by the Group. Our revenue from aesthetic medical
services represents 40.1% of the total revenue (2019: 45.1%) and
decreased slightly by 6.5% from HK$835.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2019 to HK$781.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2020, primarily attributable to the decrease in the number of clients
obtaining medical aesthetic services, during the Reporting Period.

Beauty and Wellness Services

Beauty and wellness services represents traditional beauty, haircare
and ancillary wellness services. Our revenue from beauty and
wellness services represents 21.5% of the total revenue (2019:
21.6%) and increased slightly by 4.9% from HK$399.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2019 to HK$419.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2020, primarily attributable to the increase in the number
of clients receiving such service.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Skincare, healthcare and beauty products

Our revenue from the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products decreased by 21.3% from HK$79.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to HK$62.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2020, and represents only 3.2% of our total revenue (2019:
4.3%).

Performance marketing and related services

Our revenue from performance marketing and related services
represents 3.2% of the total revenue (2019: 0.8%) and increased by
301.6% from HK$15.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to
HK$62.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2020. Such significant
increase was primarily due to the acquisition of a performance
marketing company during the Reporting Period.

Operating Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
business segments of the operations for the Reporting Period is set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other net income and gains

For the year ended 31 March 2020, our other net income and gains
were approximately HK$38.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$18.0 million or 87.8% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2019, primarily due to the unrealised and realised
fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$18.1 million (2019: fair value loss of HK$9.2 million).

Cost of inventories and consumables

QOur cost of inventories and consumables represents 11.1% of the
total revenue (2019: 12.3%), which decreased by 5.1% from
HK$227.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to HK$215.6
million for the year ended 31 March 2020, primarily attributable to a
decrease in the volume of medication and service consumables
used, which was in line with the decrease in the volume of service
procedures performed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Registered practitioner expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2020, we incurred Registered
Practitioner expenses of approximately HK$297.3 million,
representing 15.3% of the total revenue (2019: 11.2%) and an
increase of approximately HK$90.0 million or 43.4% as compared to
the year ended 31 March 2019, primarily attributable to an increase
in the number of full-time and exclusive Registered Practitioners from
87 as at 31 March 2019 to 96 as at 31 March 2020.

Employee benefit expenses and remuneration policy

For the year ended 31 March 2020, we incurred employee benefit
expenses of approximately HK$539.9 million, representing 27.7% of
the total revenue (2019: 24.1%) and an increase of approximately
HK$93.5 million or 20.9% as compared to the year ended 31 March
2019, primarily due to an increase in salaries paid to additional
employees during the Reporting Period. Our overall head count was
1,617 as at 31 March 2020 (excluding Registered Practitioners).

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented employees by offering
them competitive remuneration packages. Their salaries and
bonuses were determined by reference to their duties, work
experience, performance and prevailing market practices. The Group
also participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong
Kong, and provides employees with medical insurance coverage.

Certain share options have been granted as referred to on page 53
of this annual report. The Company confirms that all grantees of
share options under the “employees and consultants” comprises
employees of the Group at the material times.

Marketing and advertising expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred marketing
and advertising expenses of approximately HK$124.4 million,
representing 6.4% of the total revenue (2019: 8.3%) and a decrease
of approximately HK$30.1 million or 19.5% when compared to the
year ended 31 March 2019, primarily due to the positive synergy
resulting from the Group’s acquisition of a performance marketing
company and development online platform, which allowed us to
secure new customers more effectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rental and related expenses and depreciation of
right-of-use assets

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred rental and
related expenses and depreciation of right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$205.5 million (2019: HK$175.6 million),
representing 10.5% of the total revenue and an increase of 17.1% as
compared to the same period last year, which was in line with the
increase in the g.f.a. of service centres and clinics to approximately
301,000 sq. ft. as at 31 March 2020.

Credit card expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred credit card
expenses of approximately HK$50.2 million, representing 2.6% of
the total revenue (2019: 2.5%) and an increase of approximately
HK$3.5 million or 7.5% as compared to the year ended 31 March
2019. Such increase is significantly higher than the increase in Sales
Volume primarily due to the increase in business generated from
credit card transactions.

Other expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred other
operating expenses of approximately HK$103.9 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$9.6 million or 8.4% as compared to
the year ended 31 March 2019, primarily due to cost control
initiatives implemented by the Group.

Profit Before Tax

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has profit before tax
of approximately HK$360.5 million, representing 18.5% of the total
revenue. The slight decrease in the profit before tax compared to
that of the year ended 31 March 2019 was because of the outbreak
of COVID-19 and social unrest.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred income tax
expense of approximately HK$50.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$15.3 million or 23.4% as compared to the year
ended 31 March 2019, primarily due to the decrease in profit before
tax.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

kki%)‘ ﬂLnFFH& Tﬁ

Profit for the Year/Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded profit of
approximately HK$310.3 million, representing a decrease of
HK$74.2 million or 19.3% as compared to the year ended 31 March
2019, primarily due to our development of new businesses and
efficiently leveraged on our integrated multi-discipline strategy. Our
profit margin decreased from 20.8% for the year ended 31 March
2019 to 15.9% for the year ended 31 March 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents and time deposits of HK$521.4 million and with
investment-grade financial instruments with high liquidity of
HK$111.0 million as at 31 March 2020. Our working capital,
excluding those lease liabilities relating to properties leased for own
use, was HK$138.8 million. With our steady cash inflow from
operations, coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances, we have
adequate liquidity and financial resources to meet the working capital
requirements as well as to fund its budgeted expansion plans in the
next financial year.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of our cash and bank
balances were in Hong Kong dollar, and as we continue to expand
our operations in the PRC, there will be an increasing amount of our
assets and transactions denominated in Renminbi.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Co-Ownership Plan was approved by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 16 April 2020. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 25 February 2020 and 16 March 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 31 March 2020.

On 8 May 2020, the Company allotted and issued 8,078,927 new
Shares to our landlord of Langham Place Flagship. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 April
2020.

On 18 May 2020, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire majority stake of a specialist group. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 18 May
2020.

On 24 April 2020, Dr. Wang David Guowei resigned as a non-
executive Director and Dr. Wang Steven Dasong was appointed as a
non-executive Director. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 24 April 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

All proceeds from the IPO have been fully utilized during the
Reporting Period.

Capital Expenditure

QOur capital expenditures during the year ended 31 March 2020 were
primarily related to the establishment of new clinics and services
centres, purchases of operation equipment, which mainly included
medical, dental and beauty devices, and expenditure in leasehold
improvements. We financed our capital expenditures mainly through
cash flows generated from operating activities.

Capital Commitment

The estimated budget in establishing the advanced imaging centre in
Yuen Long, Hong Kong is approximately HK$15 million. Save for the
above, we do not have any capital commitments in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2020.

INDEBTEDNESS
Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings of HK$262.0 million and lease liabilities, except for
those relating to the properties leased for own use, of HK$41.1 million.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2020, investment properties of HK$189.0 million and
ownership interests in land and building held for own use of HK$36.2
million were pledged for certain bank borrowings.

Further, motor vehicles and operation equipment of HK$0.2 million
and HK$49.7 million respectively were pledged under financing
arrangement with banks.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio equals total debt (excluding lease liabilities relating to
properties leased for own use) divided by total equity. As at 31
March 2020, the Group had interest-bearing liabilities, except for the
properties leased for own use, of HK$303.0 million and the gearing
ratio is 25.9%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hff%)‘ ﬂLnH:H& Tﬁ

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group carries out certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly
pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S.
dollar against Renminbi.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of the foreign currency rates
and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should such need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk. Nevertheless, whilst
the Group has loan facilities with floating interest rates. As at 31
March 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after taxation
and retained profits by approximately HK$2.5 million. Other
components of consolidated equity would not be affected in
response to a general increase/decrease in interest rates.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

On 14 June 2019, Team Expert Investment Limited (“Team Expert”,
as purchaser), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (“the Prime Inspire SPA”) with
three shareholders (as sellers) of Prime Inspire Limited (“Prime
Inspire”) to acquire 60% of the issued share capital of Prime Inspire
at the cash consideration of HK$25,200,000. Prime Inspire, through
its subsidiaries, operates marketing solution services. Please refer to
pages 219 to 220 of this report.

Under the Prime Inspire SPA, the sellers have given a guarantee over
the consolidated earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization of Prime Inspire (“EBITDA Guarantee”), for the coming 5
years amounting to HK$39 million, failing which the sellers shall
payback Team Expert such amounts as determined under the Prime
Inspire SPA.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This acquisition enables the Group to enhance its promotional and
marketing activities. The acquisition was completed on 17 June 2019
and Prime Inspire has become a 60%-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

For details of the transaction and the EBITDA Guarantee, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14 June 2019.

On 1 August 2019, the Group, through Jade Master International
Limited (“Jade Master”) acquired 51% equity interest of Prime Kids
Limited from the seller (“PKL Seller”), which is principally engaged in
child clinic operation and medical services. For details, please refer
to pages 217 to 218 of this report.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the agreement. Under
the arrangement, PKL Seller agreed to guarantee the profit
generated by Prime Kids for the coming 10 years amounting to
HK$100 million. PKL Seller shall compensate Jade Master for any
shortfall of the profit attributable to Jade Master in accordance with
the sale and purchase agreement. Management expected the
guarantee profit could be met.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held by the Company during the Reporting Period, nor
were there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Reporting Period. There is
no plan authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

As set out in the announcements, on 2 November 2016 and 25
November 2016, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to acquire 50% equity interest of Good Union Corporation
Limited and Good Union Medical Limited (collectively, “Good Union”).
The seller irrevocably warrants, undertakes and guarantees to the
Group to achieve the aggregate audited net profits after tax (“GU
Profit Guarantee”). Based on the latest management account, the
shortfall between the GU Profit Guarantee and the estimated
aggregate net profits after tax for the first settlement period (i.e. from
1 November 2016 to 31 October 2019) is approximately
HK$14,907,000 and 50% of the shortfall which is estimated to be
HK$7,454,000 will be compensated by the seller to the Group within
30 days upon the issuance of the audited financial statements of
Good Union.

Except for above, there are other transactions entered into by the
Group in the prior years which profit guarantees have been given.
However, the profit guarantee periods have not yet expired as at 31
March 2020 nor the date of this report.
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CO-OWNERS
EIREEA

OVERVIEW

The reasons, purposes and objectives of the Co-Ownership Plan are
to incentivise skilled and experienced Eligible Participants to remain
with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group in order to create value for
the Shareholders, by providing Eligible Participants with an
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company according to
the Co-Ownership Plan, and further aligning their interests with those
of the long term Shareholders. The Co-Ownership Plan take-up
amongst talents as at 10 May 2020 is set out below:

BmE

FEREEAREZREA - BOREBRERRERK
EEANERNAGERTRAEREEZAEN
SHEERHEESBEARARE YE—FFHH
o BRI RAR 20 KMABREEER
SEVWHE RS RAEEZ RRERNLIERNS
h RERREEEE R -_T-_TFHRA+H"
BMBREEAGTEZASBEREIMOT

Total Total Acceptance
Invitation Acceptance Rate
BREAE ZHEAH S H R
Board of Directors - 2 2 100%
Mediical Professionals and Management BEEEABNERE 57 40 70%
Other Talents Hitb AA 76 71 93%
135 118 84%

APPROVAL fitiE

On 21 February 2020, the Board approved the adoption of the Co-
Ownership Plan. On 16 April 2020, the following resolutions as set
out in the notice of the EGM dated 31 March 2020 were duly passed
by the Independent Shareholders by way of poll at the EGM: (i) the
Scheme Mandate be granted to the Directors to exercise all the
powers of the Company to allot and issue a total maximum number
of new Shares of 39,411,097 (up to 4% of the issued Shares on the
day of the EGM); (i) Connected Purchase of Award Shares up to the
Award Share Limit; and (i) the Connected Grants of Award Shares
up to the Award Share Limit.

(*Unless otherwise indicated, terms used herein shall have the same meanings as
ascribed to them in the circular of the Company dated 31 March 2020.)

* &
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—
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GEMINI WONG =&

Left to right ZZ &5

o=

Executive Director, CDO

PTEEREARENE

= =
GABRIEL LEE = &2 =

Executive Direct

HITEERE

EDDY TANG SPE1E

Chairman & CEO, Executive Director

FJF  1TH

HITES

LEVIN LEE 2= [0] &8

Executive Director, CFO
WITE=RERIMBE

%B/L,\
Eddy Tang

TEX
Gabriel Lee

FmER

Levin Lee

BEE
Gemini
Wong

2020 is memorable for me. Our great wall is the reflection of
the enrolment and alignment of our values that allow the
culture of UMH to prevail. Over 100 talents invested with
their family savings, it is an investment decision betting on
their lifetime wellbeing, we are unparallelly united and
empowered. To believe and achieve, we will lead and co-
own the market. Our recovery from the pandemic have
proven us of - What doesn’t kill us, only makes us stronger!

CO-OWNER is the past, the present and the future! | am so
excited about this new management concept that would
bring UMH to a whole new level with unbeatable competitive
advantage.

From impossible to possible! Over a hundred co-owners
continued the investment during the pandemic. Looking
forward to the succession of UMH culture and sharing of the
benefits in three years!

As Co-Owner, we should all jump out of the box, break the
rules, make the greatest contribution in our own fields, and
look forward to the coming of the new era of UMH.
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CO-OWNERS
HREE A

® Yuko Chan RER @

Sales Manager #5 & &2

Competitive edge of UMH shall persist with the integration of
entrepreneurship, passion, dedication and ownership of the co-owners,
to facilitate us to offer top-notch services to our customers.

ERFREIEANTERBS  THEME RARMEER - 58
BEBRERIEHGTN  ARESHMEEHBUTSOERIRE

Maggie Lam #KEETH © ®© KayiYim BRE18 6
Sales Manager $H& 412 Area Manager [& 34512

The Group had been persistent on its

ED EX
branding over the last 14 years of my ® Katylp ﬁgﬁ ©

Sales Director $HE # &5

tenure.
EATAFMEN  —EREEE LT © Daniel Chow FiZEH
¥ UMH 7= (B G R 3 3 o E-commerce Manager

BFEHER

® YvonneLai BE¥ ©

Operation Manager

B

From uncertainty to enormous growth after the acquisition in 2016. With
trust, teamwork, and a sense of pride, | am delighted to be part of UMH.
| can foresee a great potential.

BTARAE —T-R"FRBERNEAER - BRBBRTA T IAHIE -
EEEELER/RBEENREXE RERBCREFT -8 - BNE

X |
© Dr.EricChu kBB ®© SusannaMak ZEI @
New York Medical Group Chairman Clinic Development Manager
A EEEEEE DPITRERLIE
N N ® Matthew Li Z2H 4 @ ® Kristy Chan [REX @

Centre Manger, Radiology Corporate Sales & Assistant
JE SAS IR (ST R Business Development Manager
1D GHE T BHIE $ T4 R4S IS

Charmaine Lee Z=%3%% © Janice Chiu IBEZE B

Assistant Manager, IT and PMO Executive Assistant
BB (EMEH R RIE B #E) 1TERBhER

Being recognised and the unforgettable experience in UMH over the
last 2 years, We are honored and proud even as newbies to UMH.
Looking forward, through alignment of values, to co-lead and co-own,
we are to battle with UMH side by side.

{EREBEENNM - HAIRBIERREMEER | #ARMRMWA
TEEREEMF  MEEARNKEE FESHETENSEL
BoRERK FERMEERBIBRLBFE  BREELR

R | Y 4E= Al o
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CO-OWNERS
FIREEA

® YaniLau Z|E R
Assistant General Manager,
Business Development Department
s s PR g

® Tim Ho {AJEK

Area Manager [& 134538

We share the risk and benefits
as a co-owner.

ERFREEA - HMERS
= Mas RAGER o

Commencing as a management trainee in
2014, | had been growing dramatically
with the Group over the last 6 years and
became the assistant general manager.
Looking forward, spirit of UMHers shall
persist: Co-lead and co-own, we shall
lead the transformation of the industry.

BH-ZT-WFEABRKREEEINIE B
L6 FHRER —RASEKK  BRERZ -
R BARIR - ME#E 4B SR 45 UMHers 548
BEHE  HEEE  HEER -

Karl Wong E%I;E:-,

Manager, HR and Talent
BIBANERRAAED)

We can eventually lead the
entire medical and healthcare
market.

BAIRE AT AR RERE
REEFETI °

© Karen Chui {557 ® Julie Chow FZEX] @ ® Veronica Chan Iz @

Director of Corporate Finance
and Investor Relations

REEREEEMEES

We will be the
leading medical
group in Asia.

AMERETMER L
BB -

General Manager, Medical #24%32 (& 5 3f)

As a leading healthcare organization, UMH
brings to the market innovative solutions
addressing the diverse healthcare and lifestyle
needs of customers throughout the different
stages of their lives, surrounding them with
the right technology and personalized
experience.

ERBELEN—UABETE  BEEREKAE
MR RGHET S IBARPEAL
TRERNEEREER R  TRFFRM
AT EIE e -

Dr. Raymond Wu i[5 B @
Chief of Medical Service BER&S &

The limited contribution as of today does not
stop us from progressing with UMH. Three
years down the road, we are to lead for more!

BERBHRARNERMER  BE2RM—E
HEDBREARIE =F& HMAGTEE
ESEREZ -

Senior Nursing Manager & 7 i L4532

| withessed the outstanding traits and
passion of our management, and proving of
their hypothesis. | am impressed.

H—BERBAREREREIEANIIEREM

B AERREMERE  BEEER
A BEE -

ERBEERSEERAT
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COMMUNITY
AR B

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company cares for the community and is willing to take up
corporate social responsibilities to create a more inclusive society. In
addition to encouraging volunteer works and giving, the Company
also recognises our staff as an important asset and concern about
the employees related matters such as benefits and support.

Besides, the Company appreciates the importance of environmental
protection and spares no effort in promoting the protection of the
environment. The Company has been commended and given the
public recognition that demonstrates good corporate citizenship as
“Caring Company” from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

UDPERES PRME fsnsiome =X
Clertificate of Recognition

Thee

UMH Medical Healthcare Limited

Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme

The Company has actively promoted the electronic operation and
sales activities recently. Awarded with World Green Organisation
(“WGQO”")’s “Green Office” Label, the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals’s “Better World Company” Label, and the core
supporting organisation to Junior Chamber International (JCI) Hong
Kong, the Company has successfully fulfilled the 150 feasible green
criteria from the WGO which are grouped into the following 9
categories: Energy savings, Water savings, Waste reduction, Paper/
Printing reduction, Green Procurement, IT use and disposal,
Transportation, Education and awareness, and Green Innovation.

BRERAEZREETE

ARPHIEESIESE T 2E MHERE - BREFMFGEA( T
Relg) N [ReR ZE] B8 BMABEUREEREFEN R
RELEE| RELATEERTFHENROIGHEE - AT
ERTEIE REEABII ZMWI0HATHRBIRE - ZERES
ROREE - BPRIBEIR - ERAVRK R EEY - AR ENR - e
R - BABMEAREE  BER - BB REBARZERIH -
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TrEHEET

RAFRAENE  YEEAELCEHEEE A
AIEE RARNOME - BREBETTIERBE -
ARANTRABTIREREE  YEHTHEE TH
BHEE (PIInENEE) -

AN RATREFBZIRERNER N - WHIRER
BRETER - AAREEBLSRBB S
TIRRRRBAE] RRLERARAA - URHH
BRIRMECEAREME -

“Good Employer Charter”

The Company attaches great importance to
talents and recognizes that human resources are
one of the important assets of the Company.
Participating in the “Good Employer Charter”, the
Company aims to promote a staff-oriented culture,
in order to motivate staff morale, enhancing their
sense of belongings towards the Group,
recognizing their contribution to the Group, and
laying a solid foundation for the Company’s
development.

SR(FRENE)

RRBERAT » BRAANEREEFHEF A
BEEZMNEE - 2HFEIHE)  ARFEHEHE
BUBTIARAAL  LBBE T LR - =RITEM
HASENRER  RRMMAHAKEELNE

Bl BARRRERETRENER

BIR

. @
SEERERKE

B {(HAERE) FEERA
FHSHLUERRSERN A SETRE

—— R ——
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COMMUNITY
EfEALEE

Activities SEE

The Hong Kong Red Cross (@ member agency of the Community
Chest) strives for building a world in which people respect and protect
human life and dignity, and where people are ready to offer impartial
and voluntary aid to help improve the lives of vulnerable people. Over '
100 of UMH talents were qualified for blood donation in 2019.

EREBRHERERBNTBLTFRATE FAABEETER
IR ERTIE - LS BN — R R BT &H?ggk._
ERUUBHHR - RZBNF - BEREGRBI0EASH 2a
A@HIAEML -

The Lutheran Church Hong Kong Synod (a member agency of the EAEB N ERENTAREeNEESE
Community Chest) aims to serve the community with God’s teaching RaeR®%E  WHERES [E4E | HHE -
of “Love your neighbour”. The Group had invited elderlies for EEAKEENEACIBERETERERS -

healthcheck and haircare.

Donations =)

The Group has also donated to established and reputable REFNRC MEAZREBRIT - BIEETER
organisation, including but not limited to:

@ @ %5&/\};@

FHHPOROERSD Eifﬁmmﬁ t,m".‘."g‘“’m THE COMMUNITY CHEST

e W C,m(_mFUNc Lhikkery Qrbié ."l AEEREL @ Ff 8

splayricht tezeteee: Wl ot - B |

[EL
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
LEERFERS

INVESTOR CALENDAR

26 November 2019
“T-AFE+—HAZ+RH

21 January 2020

=B TE-HA_+—H

29 June 2020

—E-TFXAZTHH

17 to 21 August 2020 (Both days inclusive)

—ZE_TENATLREE-_T B (ERMRBEEAN)

21 August 2020
—EEFNAAZ+—H
3 September 2020

“E-FEFNAZ=H

11 September 2020
—E-FEFRAT—H

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

We are highly supportive to investor relations activities. In order to
facilitate a two-way communication between the Company,
shareholders and the investment community, through various
platforms including domestic and international roadshows, investor
meetings, annual general meetings, company meetings,
teleconferences and emails, we made frequent contact with
shareholders, analysts, fund managers and potential investors.

During the Reporting Period, our management attended over 290
one-on-one and Group meetings and actively participated in investor
conferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong Kong, Shenzhen,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Beijing meeting with over 330 investors.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
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REEH®

2019/20 interim results announcement

BN CERFPHEERE

Payment of interim dividend

ST AR R

2019/20 annual results announcement

TN ZTFEEEERE

Closure of Register of Members (for determination
of shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at annual general meeting)

TR hBPELTFE (URTEEER
HERRBFAGINE LREZRRHH

Annual General Meeting

RERBFRE

Record date for determination of shareholders
who qualify for the final dividend

ik HE (LA E & B RWECREIRE 2
IRER &

Payment of final dividend in form of cash

HEH RN KBRS
REEBRBEH

BB REEBRED T O R BRERRF
HERERERZENERBE BB NE
SR REEGZ BRBEAE  RAE
H BEEZNEBRRATLERE  RAERK

Rkl BB REBEREEFRAENR

RI|BEME > AREEBHFER20K—H—2
&M NEEE - MER2EREENN G ANE
REE R LB BEMNRIEROFEXZE
B B30 RIREESH o



INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
LEERMERE

Major investor conferences that we participated in during the KPR HEEHB2N0TFTEREEZEESEHY M

Reporting Period are set out below: T

Year Month Location Event

F4 B e ELs

2019 April Hong Kong Nomura China Consumer Corporate Day 2019

—E-NF M A Y B 2019 BEEEEREH

2019 April Shenzhen Industrial Securities Investment Strategy Conference

—ZE-NF A sl FEFFRERKS

2019 April Hong Kong CMBI Corporate Day

—E-NF A E RIRFPR PR

2019 May Shenzhen Greater Bay Area Financial Forum

—E-NF hA I BERANE R RS ERE

2019 May Shenzhen HSBC 6th Annual China Conference

—ZE-NF HA sl EEENEFEANTE

2019 June Shenzhen Everbright Securities 2019 Interim Strategy Conference

—ZE-NF 7N A I HRFEHF2019FH RS Z

2019 June Shanghai Industrial Securities 2019 Greater China Mid-year Forum

—E-NF N H ! FEFE S 2019 F AP EM ST ARE S

2019 July Shenzhen Guoxin Securities 2019 Interim Strategy Conference

—ZE-NF +A il SR F 2019 Fh KRB S

2019 September Shenzhen BOCI 2019 Autumn Listed Company Strategy Conference

—E-NF A 2l FERBIER 2019 FME LM ARIREE

2019 October Shanghai ICA Stock Connect 1x1 Investor Access Day

—E-NEF +A ! EEAREBEBEERAER] —H—REEZRA

2019 October Hong Kong Fosun Hani Securities 2019 New Economy, New Medical,
Health Forum

—E-NF + A E BEBEFEF 2019 F K B BRAR R RE

2019 November Shenzhen Citi China Investor Conference 2019

—E-NF +—A R TEFE2019F R E g S

2019 November Singapore Greater China Listed Companies Strategic Investment
Opportunities Conference

ZE-NF +—A FANE AHE FTTARRERBRES

2019 November Shanghai Industrial Securities 2019 Annual Strategy Conference

—E-NF +—A i MEBFLH2019FERIES

2019 December Shenzhen Guoyuan International 2020 Annual Overseas Market
Investment Strategy Conference

—E-NEF +=A R Bl T BB 2020 F[EIBINTTIH IR AR IEE

2020 January Beijing Morgan Stanley China New Economy Summit 2020

—EEF —A piy BB+ 2020 FF R BB A B e &
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REZEBHRRSE

SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
YNCIEZY ]
Listing

i)

Stock Code

A& 1 5%

Listing Date

EpR=Et

Board lot

BFEEEN

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2020

RZZE_TEF=A=+—HANEETRA

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Union Medical Healthcare Limited — Corporate Communications

and Investor Relations Department
Tel: (852) 3975 4798
Email: ir@umhgp.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or
address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or dividend
cheques, registrations and requests for annual or interim report
copies, please contact the Company’s branch share registrar and

transfer office:

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.
Suite 1601, 16/F

Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

34 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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Union Medical Healthcare Limited
BAEREESEEEGRARA
The Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BRBEZSHFBRARER
2138
2138
11 March 2016
—E-R"F=A+—H
1,000 shares
1,000 Az A% 7
985,277,448 shares
(subsequently increased to 995,056,375
on 8 May 2020)
985,277,448 BX A% 15
(KR ZE_EFRANBENE
995,056,375 RXAX17)

REEBEER

AEEETEEEEERAE — DEEAKREKE
& BIRES

B iE 1 (852) 3975 4798

B : ir@umhgp.com

BRREBEREH

Bl ETREREAERIOUHEE  RHOE
& BRBRRIBREXEARELAEZRFEL
FHHmE)NER  FREARARNDBPER

B -

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.
o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board acknowledges the vital importance of good governance
to the Group’s success and sustainability by providing a framework
for the Company to formulate its business strategies and policies,
and to enhance its transparency, accountability and shareholder
value.

The Board has committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Company has adopted the principles as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Reporting Period, save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made to
all the Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

Co-owners, senior management, executives and staff who, because
of their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the Model
Code. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by such
co-owners, employees was noted by the Company during the
Reporting Period.

LtML 5é$&EJ

TEERER

EX2FARMEIAEAADBIRMEIEIRAGIE
HEBRBEBR  RFRSEEHE  HEN
EEREE  HAKEERRNEHFEERER
BE-

EEEHIRTEATEREREE - WETRHAE
BBy FAE  BEERARZEEERRA -

AAFERAEMABRNE 14 RDEE ST AIAT
BHARA - ARRENMEHHANBETLEER
SFRIFT S 2 FT B SFRIE S - R BESF R EE
A2 1 E(RATXHERR) -

AR _ETAR RN ERA10 2 R E T RIE
REBRESFETESRRHNTATA - AAF
ERE2BESFLARESH  2REFHIARS
K& RS — B8 TEETAl -

ﬁ%$@ﬂ%&%%ﬁ7%ﬂ¥W%%EMﬁ&
BEREAN aREEE TRABREINEE
AT A o $Qﬂ%ﬁ%%%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%
REREAREEEREETAMNER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TLEERRE

THE BOARD AND THE DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date this annual report, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors
Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lee Gabriel (Chief Operating Officer)
Lee Heung Wing (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 6 January 2020)
Wong Chi Cheung (Chief Digital Officer)
(appointed on 6 January 2020)

Non-Executive Directors

Luk Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer)

Dr. Wang David Guowei (resigned on 24 April 2020)
Dr. Wang Steven Dasong (appointed on 24 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs, each an “INED”)

Ma Ching Nam

Lam Chi Hang Josekin

Look Andrew

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules to have three independent non-
executive Directors who represent one-third of the Board and with one
of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received from each INED a written annual
confirmation that he satisfied the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the nomination committee of the
Board (the “Nomination Committee”) has assessed the
independence of each INED and the Company considers that each
of their independence is in compliance with the Listing Rules during
the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report. Each
INED will inform the Company in writing as soon as practicable if
there is any change of circumstances with may affect his
independence.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Directors do not have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategies. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 80 to 84 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, the roles of the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEQ”) have been performed by Mr. Tang Chi Fai (“Mr. Tang”).
Although the dual roles of the Chairman and the CEO constitute a
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board
believes that having Mr. Tang acting as both the Chairman and the
CEO provides a strong and consistent leadership to the Company
and allows the Company to have more effective planning and
management. Further, in view of Mr. Tang’s extensive experience in
the industry, personal profile and roles in the Group and the historical
development of the Group as mentioned in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Our History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” and publications of the Company from time to time, the
Board considers that it is appropriate and beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group that Mr. Tang continues to act as both the
Chairman and the CEO. The Board will keep regularly reviewing the
operations of the Company under Mr. Tang’s leadership, and
considers that the balance of power and authority has been
maintaining amongst each of the Board members and the
management team of the Group (the “Management”), when the
respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO
are being divided in writing and carried out as below:

The role of the Chairman focuses on the formulation and
determination of the overall strategies, direction and goal of the
Group. The Chairman is also responsible for leading the Board to
effective management of the Company by, among others, ensuring
good corporate governance practices and procedures, encouraging
the Directors to make full and active contribution to the affairs of the
Board, developing a culture of openness and active discussion
among the Directors so that Board decisions could fairly reflect
CoNsensus.

The CEO, within the powers delegated by the Board from time to
time, is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company and
to implement strategies and major policies decided by the Board
with the support of other executive Directors and the Management.

A
TEERARE

EFRERTHRER

EEEATHNTARNBA2UGERE - 7
RATR A ERREZA DR - B TMSHE—ARE -

RBEHE EFeXF(XF]) RARFNIT
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EEEATHNTARXEA21GE EFER
B BEE(BRERERTRAE) & RARRIR
HENE—BNEE  SARAATERURE K
B e N NHERERIESL - EHRAFR
B —EHARARRR BN ER RN - &
REBAERTENEERLR  BABRERRASE
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BHREELERETTFETRAR S A EEEBA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEEAWRE

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with
the code provision on board diversity. Under such policy, the
Nomination Committee is delegated with the responsibility to review,
assess and recommend any appointment, re-election or any
succession plan of any directors to the Board from time to time after
considering a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience, to accommodate the Company’s business model and
specific needs.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The executive Directors are responsible for setting up the Company’s
corporate strategies, monitoring its implementation and reviewing
operational and financial performance of the Group by making
decisions on major aspects of the Company’s business operations
and other matters, including but not limited to approving and
monitoring key policies, material transactions, business plans, annual
budgets, risk management and internal control systems, annual and
interim results, major capital expenditure and appointment of
Directors.

The non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors have diversified industry expertise and professional
knowledge, and provides advisory, adequate check and balances for
effective and constructive contribution to the executive Directors to
safeguard the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.

Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational management and administration functions of
the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of the
Group are delegated to the Management led by the executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of functions of
corporate governance. During the Reporting Period, the Board has
performed the functions as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment, re-election, rotation, and removal of
the Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
considering the suitability of an individual to act as a Director and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
election of Directors, succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of the INEDs as set out below under sub-section
headed “NOMINATION COMMITTEE”.

Save and except Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin, all other Directors
entered into a service contract or letter of appointment with our
Company for a term of three (3) years while Mr. Lam Chi Hang
Josekin entered into a letter of appointment with our Company for a
term of two years, which shall be renewed as determined by the
Board or the shareholders. Their term of office each is the period up
to his retirement by rotation or retirement, but they are eligible for re-
election at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company may by
ordinary resolution at general meetings of the Company elect any
person to be a Director. The Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his
appointment, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that each Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years.
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PEEAWRE

Induction and Continuing Professional Development
of Directors

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company received from the
Directors the following records of the training attended during the
Reporting Period on various regulatory issues:

EEMARBZIIREEERERE

ARRSBAAES2RFETRERAENR
FHREZABRIREE  BRREFEEERED
HEALABR THESSFLER - 5
ERARBREATRERRENEASEFE
FREEERENFIIRE

Nature of Trainings

EIEE
Type 1 Type 2
FRA w|H2
Executive Directors HITES
Tang Chi Fai B v v/
Lee Gabriel e v v/
Lee Heung Wing (appointed on EFHE(N_E-EF
6 January 2020) —ANBEZRT) v v
Wong Chi Cheung (appointed on B2LE(RIEEF
6 January 2020) —ANBEZE) v 4
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Luk Kun Shing Ben FEESR v/ v/
Dr. Wang David Guowei (resigned on FTEHEBRT(RZTT4F
24 April 2020) MA=+mA %’-FTE) v v
Wang Steven Dasong (appointed on FTAR(R=_E-ZF
24 April 2020) WA=+ HHEZE) v v/
INEDs VHHITES
Ma Ching Nam 55N 4 4
Lam Chi Hang Josekin MERITT v v
Look Andrew fEER v v
Type of trainings: FEBIERE
S Reading materials. 1. BT -
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. HREEIRR &% Wil T g -
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Supply of and Access to Information

Notices of regular Board meetings and draft agendas thereof are
made available to the Directors with sufficient times and at least 14
or 3 days respectively in advance to encourage the Directors’
involvement. All Directors have full and timely access to the
Management for any information to enable them to make informed
decisions at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary of the
Company ensures that the regulatory Board procedures are
followed.

Relevant members of the Management are usually invited to attend
the Board meetings to promote an effective communication within
the Group. Each Director is authorized to hire external consultants or
experts for independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses to discharge the Director’s responsibilities.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

A
TEERARE

BRI KB

PEBEFLR  EFECHERALRAER
HE2I9 5 R R RIIA R B 14 33 R A R4
FEF RREFHTLESRRANETEEL
I BB RS 6 5 e S R T 2 (E T B
B FARARANATRERGHBER - 5L
HREELERRFEEMR -

RNEEEREANES T EER RN IR
EAEEN BRI - SREFREBEERI
BEMAERSREVELER  BAEALT
FiE - MBTEERE -

EENZEEHEMNHFERLE

The Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the REHHE  EEBHRL2HEEeE  MSEFHL
attendance records of each Director during the Reporting Period are JBaesE M T
as follows:
Meeting attendance/eligible to attend
BRLER RERLE
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
=g EREEE REZEE FMZEEE [ ETN=
Executive Directors HITES
Tang Chi Fai MEE 9/9 N/ANE 3/3 N/ATE A 1/1
Lee Gabriel FER 9/9 N/ATNE A N/ATiE A N/ATiE R 1/1
Lee Heung Wing x[m g
(appointed on (RZE-FF
6 January 2020) —RRH
EZT) 1/1 N/A 3 A N/ATE A N/ATEA N/ATE A
Wong Chi Cheung =58
(appointed on (RZE-ZF
6 January 2020) —RRH
EZT) 1/1 N/A N3 N/AE A N/ATEFA N/ATE A
Non-executive directors FE#HITESE
Luk Kun Shing Ben BEEHZ 9/9 N/ATNEF N/ATEF N/ATEH 11
Dr. Wang David Guowei TEEEL 6/9 N/AZNiE B N/AZiE N/AZR i A N/AT i A
INEDs BIYFHTES
Ma Ching Nam L 7/9 2/2 N/A i 4/4 1/1
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 8/9 2/2 3/3 4/4 11
Look Andrew (755 9/9 2/2 3/3 4/4 1/1
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The Board has established three Board committees on 19 February
2016, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee and all of which are chaired by an INED or
the Chairman to oversee their respective functions set out below,
and to report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations by
circulating the minutes of the committee meetings to all Board
members. Each committee or committee member is authorized to
hire outside consultants or experts for independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses to discharge their responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with its written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are set out in
the written terms of reference which include reviewing and
supervising the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, and providing advices and comments
to the Board. During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Look Andrew as
its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
as its members, all of whom are INEDs. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
with the Management, the external auditor of the Company and an
external professional engaged by the Company to review the interim
results and report for 2019/2020 and annual results and reports for
2019 and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and to consider significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit functions, the
scope of work and appointment of external auditor, connected
transactions and arrangements of the Company for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of
the CG Code adopting a model of making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in the written terms of reference which include
regular monitoring of the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
as its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Look Andrew as its
members, all of whom are INEDs.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held four
meetings for considering and recommending to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision A.5.2 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
set out in the written terms of reference which include selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, review of the structure,
size and composition of the Board and assessment of the
independence of INEDs.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Tang as its chairman,
executive Director, and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin and Mr. Look
Andrew as its members, both of whom are INEDs.

Directors’ nomination policy

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates
from Board members for its consideration. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated
by Board members. The factors in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate for director include, inter alia, reputation for
integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board
member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held three
meetings and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of Directors with reference to the board diversity policy
adopted by the Company and assessed the independence of INEDs.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond fulfills the
requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and is responsible
for, inter alia, provision of advice to the Board on corporate
governance matters and regulatory compliance during the Reporting
Period. Mr. Siu had taken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2020.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the remuneration paid to the
external auditor of the Group in respect of the annual audit for the
year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$1,900,000. In addition, HK$69,000 was charged for non-audit
services which represent tax compliance services for certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Save as disclosed above, there was no
remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor of the Company
for other non-audit services during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Board and the Audit Committee were satisfied with KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants, of their findings, independence,
objectivity and effectiveness in the annual audit and their audit fees.
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, are proposed for re-
appointment as the Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020 to give a true and fair presentation of the financial position of
the Company in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and for timely financial disclosures under the
Listing Rules and any other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statements as to the auditor’s responsibility of financial reporting
is set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 85 to 93 of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
reviewing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed and being implemented to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the business
objectives of the Group, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors and the management would identify any risks
associated with the businesses of the Group by considering both
internal and external factors and events from time to time which
include but not limit to political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and human resources. Two approaches are used for risk
identification and evaluation, which are (1) to identify the root causes
of risks, that is, identify the undesirable events or things that could go
wrong and then identify the potential impacts of each factor and event
on the businesses of the Group; and (2) to identify all the essential
functions that the Group are performing or businesses objectives
that the Group are achieving and then identify all the possible modes
by which such functions might fail to perform. Five strategies are
adopted by the Company to manage risks, including (1) to accept
the risk, (2) to avoid the risk, (3) to transfer the risk, (4) to mitigate the
risk, or (5) to exploit the risk.

The Company has engaged an external professional firm to further
its internal audit function and to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company in respect of the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management for the Reporting Period
and discussed its findings with the Audit Committee and then
reported to the Board. The Board is not aware of any areas of
concern that would have a material impact on the financial position
or businesses of the Group and considers that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company are generally adequate
and effective and that the Company could maintain the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has been implementing a policy within the Group to
ensure that all unpublished inside information of the Group shall be
kept confidential until such information is published on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at
www.hkexnews.hk in accordance with requirements of the Listing
Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may deposit at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong as set out below a written requisition which specifies
the transaction of any business at such meeting and is signed by the
requisitionists to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board. However, there are no provision merely
allowing shareholders to put forward new resolution at a general
meeting under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands or the
Articles of Association. Shareholders who wish to propose a
resolution may request the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting following the aforesaid procedures.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registered office of the Company provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to require an extraordinary general
meeting or propose a person for election as a Director are detailed in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association published on the
websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited at www.hkexnews.hk.
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The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar serves the
shareholders with respect to all share registration matters. Specific
enquiries of shareholders and other stakeholders to the Board could
be sent in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company by mail
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong set out
below:

Union Medical Healthcare Limited

L50, Langham Place Office Tower,
8 Argyle Street,
Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ rights are further protected when separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including but not limited to election or re-election of
individual director at annual general meeting. All resolutions proposed
at shareholders’ meetings are put to vote by poll in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

In February 2016, the Company adopted a shareholders’
communication policy. Under the policy, the Company
communicates with its shareholders and investors through various
means. Timely publication of interim and annual results
announcements on the latest development of the Company and
press release on the Company’s website and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk could keep the
shareholders updated of the Company’s financial position and latest
development. Shareholders are highly recommended to pay attention
to these public information. Annual general meetings could provide
an effective forum for the shareholders to share their views with the
Board. Shareholders are welcome to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Directors and the external auditor of the
Company would be available at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer shareholders’ questions about the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the business
and prospects of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the Reporting Period.

A
TEERARE

RRABZEBRNBFELHRA T RRRER
PIAEERNECABZIER - RREEMEND
AERERNBFTFETXMEARTANETENETE
BEMBEARFNATMERE  UNEES
tELIEE L ¢

EEBREBREEERAR

B A
DEEHSH
BAS I A RIZ 5012

HREEEAENEFE(BEETRNERRBSF
ARELERRERBHNEF)XNBRRE LS
YHARZRER  RRZENE - FXIR
& PTARKRRAS LIREZRFHRIE LHR
APARETARR -

IR R BUR

RZEBE—RFEZA - RNAREMILFBABUR -
FEZBERT » ARRFEZE TR EHERR KIS
BERBR BRBEPHRFEHREE  RARAE
FEBTENAERFTEBRARRNEERES
RS REZE AR R &4 E www.hkexnews.hk (A
D AIEIRE T AR BB BRI R R R
HEFER EHESRREIZZFUEHIRE
HMBEREEHEREBN BREBFRSELARK
RIEHAERERE MEFTREER - BUIRXR
HEEERRBFRE - AAFEERINEZE
MEHFEREERRAFTAS  UBERFEARE
BEE-_Z-_ZTF=A=1+—RIFENFEX
BERANEEEE LSRR o

AR

REREHIRE - AEERE AL AR (A ER -

BEERBRERASEERAT 47
FE L 2019/20



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HESHE

The Board is pleased to present their report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company is the provision of medical
and healthcare services in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland
China. The principal activities of its subsidiaries during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2020 by businesses including geographical segment information is
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. The
geographical location of customers is determined based on the
location where our services or goods are provided or delivered.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of the likely
future development in the Group’s business are set out in the
sections headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 4 to 5 and 6 to 23 of this
annual report respectively. Certain financial key performance
indicators which complement and supplement our financial
disclosures are set out on page 2 of this annual report.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

The following highlights some of the key risks that affect our
business:

Reputation Risk

We rely significantly on our brand image and reputation. Any failure
to maintain and enhance, or any damage to, our brand image or
reputation could materially and adversely affect the level of market
recognition of, and confidence on our services, and in turn our
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Talent Risk

If we are unable to attract and retain skilled Registered Practitioners
and other competent staff, our business, results of operations,
financial condition and prospects may be materially and adversely
affected.

Customer Risk

QOur service focuses on improving our clients’ healthy condition and
physical appearance, and clients have varying expectations of the
magnitude of improvement that may result from our services. If we
fail to properly manage a client’s expectations of the results from our
services, a client may in turn be dissatisfied with the results of our
service, and a disappointed client may, among others, request
refunds, complain to the media and/or the Hong Kong Consumer
Council and file legal claims against us. Such actions from a client
may have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, and
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes that business development and environment affairs are
highly related. The Group has implemented certain environmental
protection measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of
resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were
implemented effectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FRYWE

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a listed company engaging business in Hong Kong, the Group is
subject to various laws and regulations, including, among others,
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Listing Rules is also applicable to the
Company. Being an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, it is subject to the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of
the same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in more
than one jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in those
jurisdictions. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operation units in the Company and its subsidiaries from
time to time.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief on
the date of this annual report, the Company has complied in all
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that co-owners, talents, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.
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Staff

Our staff members are regarded as one of the most important assets
of the Group. The Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff
with a fair and harmonious workplace. We offer a competitive
remuneration package and great opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group intends
to grant share options to outstanding employees to recognise and
reward the employees who have contributed to the Group’s
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings
to keep them abreast of the latest development of the Company and
our industry, and medical related knowledge and skill sets.

Customers

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. We
are committed to providing the best customer experience to our
customers. Meanwhile, we have a client phone survey system in
order to further our active solicitation of client feedback.

Suppliers

Reliable and quality suppliers are of equal importance in facilitating
us to provide services with high standards of safety and
professionalism. When selecting suppliers, we consider, among
other factors, the suppliers’ reputation, safety record, track record of
performance, quality of goods supplied, price competitiveness,
punctuality of delivery, relationship with our Group, completeness of
certification and credentials provided, service quality and product
offerings. We regularly review and assess our suppliers’ performance
and their qualifications to ensure the quality of our suppliers and that
such suppliers have obtained the applicable licenses (if any), and
update our approved supplier list accordingly.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 250 of
this annual report.

Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of medical and
healthcare services in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland China.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of the
annual report.

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of 8.0 HK
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2020. The proposed
final dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the AGM, will be
paid on or around 11 September 2020 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 3
September 2020. Details of the dividend for the year ended 31
March 2020 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
The Board would consider, inter alia, the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividend to the shareholders:

1. financial results of the Company;

2. shareholders’ interests;

3. general business conditions, strategies and future expansion
needs of the Company;

4. the Company’s capital requirements;

5. the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its
subsidiaries;

6. possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the
Company; and

7. the amount of profit that can be distributed under applicable
accounting standards and other factors that the Board may
deem relevant and appropriate.

Any dividend declared by the Company shall be conducted in
accordance with the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the
Memorandum and Articles of the Company and other applicable
laws and regulations, and shall not affect the normal operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy, as appropriate, which will
include an assessment of the effectiveness of the Dividend Policy
and approve any amendments thereto if necessary.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
reserves during the Reporting Period are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands amounted to HK$528,509,531 (2019:
HK$39,198,246).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$1,736,885 (2019: HK$3,273,956).

INDEBTEDNESS

The Group’s indebtedness as at 31 March 2020 is set out on notes
24 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purposes of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2016
by way of a written resolution of the then sole shareholder of the
Company and the Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for 10
years from the Listing Date (both dates inclusive).

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options, which were granted under the Share Option Scheme, during
the Reporting Period:

BT E

HNBREREMEE  ARTAR_F—RF_HA
TAREBARRAERE - RROBERERR
B IR 8 ([ B AT 81 ) - MBARE IR
EHAHEFTER(BEERMA) BRLAN
5

TEBEBRARE BEPAR TIREH R 2
R 0 B AR

Closing price
of share
Granted Exercised Expired Cancelled Lapsed Forfeited immediately Exercise
Name or during the during the during the during the during the during the Date of before the price of share
category of Asat Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting  As 31 March grantof  date of grant Exercised period options
participant 1 April 2019 Period Period Period Period Period Period 2020  share options  HKS per shares of share option  HKS per share
REERH
REARR BRED
SEAN RIB-hE  REEHE  REEHE REE REE RE REE  H-308E BRE Gl 4]
ABSEA mA-H R AETE  BEAER  BEATEE  BEEAXN  HEARNE ZA=t-8 RHAE SRiER BRENGRS ShER
Executive Directors
HrEs
LEE Gabriel 6,970,000 - - - - - - 6,970,000 26/09/16 262 01/0117-31/12/26 303
35% (Note 1)
(RzE1)
735,000 - - - - - - 735,000 18/0917 2.55 01/01/27-17/09/27 303
(Note 3)
(W3)
735,000 - - - - - - 735,000 0211018 47 03/01/28-01/01/28 489
(Note 11)
(B 11)
- 735,000 - - - - - 735,000 1610119 578 02/01/29-15/10/29 578
(Note 16)
(it 16)
Lee Heung Wing 100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 18/09/17 2.55 01/01/18-31/12/21 350
3 (Note5)
(Rits)
100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 0211018 47 02/01/19-01/10/28 6.00
(Note 12)
(Hit12)
- 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 120719 708 02/01/20-11/07/24 7.08
(Note 1)
(Pt 15)
- 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 161019 5718 16/10/19-15/10/29 7.00
(Note 17)
(HiE17)
Wong Chi Cheung 500,000 - - - - - - 500,000 21/08/18 549 02/01/19-20/08/28 6.00
EtE (Note9)
(Bt3E9)
1,500,000 - - - - - - 1,500,000 281118 528 02/01/20-27/11/28 6.00
(Note 13)
(W3 13)
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Closing price
of share
Granted Exercised Expired Cancelled Lapsed Forfeited immediately Exercise
Name or during the during the during the during the during the during the Date of before the price of share
category of Asat Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting  As 31 March grantof  date of grant Exercised period options
participant 1 April 2019 Period Period Period Period Period Period 2020  share options HKS per shares of share option  HKS$ per share
REERH
REARR RREN
8N RIB-AE  REEEE REEER REE & RE REE  H-3-%F B Gl o4
AR mA-A ag b AEGR  BERER  BEAEE  EEEAAY HEAEME  ZA=t-B RHAH BRER BRENGES SRR
INED
BUknTES
Ma Ching Nam 300,000 - - - - - - 300,000 21/08/18 549 02/01/19-20/08/28 6.00
Sigt (Note6)
(Fte)
Employees and
consultants
EERER
In aggregate 230,000 - (70,000 - - - - 160,000 26/09/16 262 01/01/17-31/12/20 303
éé? (Note )
(3t2)
750,000 - 250,000) - - - - 500,000 18/09/17 255 01/01/18-31/12/21 303
(Note 4)
(Fzta)
520,000 - (147,500) - - - (107,500) 265,000 18/00/17 255 01/01/18-31/12/21 350
(Note §)
(Hts)
200,000 - (100,000) - - - - 100,000 05/1217 37 01/04/18-04/12/27 400
(Note6)
(Rite)
100,000 (100,000 - 24/05/18 592 03/07/18-23/05/28 592
(Note7)
(Bzt7)
200,000 - - - - - - 200,000 24/05/18 592 02/01/19-23/05/28 6.60
(Note 7)
(H&t7)
300,000 - - = - - - 300,000 2410518 592 02/01/20-23/05/28 709
[Note7)
(R7)
400,000 - - - - - - 400,000 24/05/18 592 04/01/21-23/05/28 950
[Note7)
(GiE)
100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 1007118 522 02/01/19-31/12/23 6.60
(Note§)
(Fzts)
100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 07/09/18 507 02/01/19-06/09/28 6.00
(Note 10)
(F&E10)
727,500 - 65,000 - S - (60,000) 602,500 0211018 4n 02/01/19-01/10/28 6.00
(Note 12)
(Wi 12)
120,000 - 25,000 - - - - 95,000 28/11/18 528 02/01/19-27/11/28 6.00
(Note 13)
(Mt 13)
- 150,000 - - - - - 150,000 0207119 6.00 02/01/20-01/07/23 6.00
(Note 14)
(PizE14)
150,000 = - (150,000) - - - 08/1119 576 08/11/19-07/11/29 6.00
(Note 18)
(FzE18)
- 150,000 - - - - - 150,000 05/03/20 499 06/03/20-07/11/29 6.00
(Note 19)
(B5E19)
14,687,500 3,185,000 (757,500) - (150,000) - (167,500) 16,797,500
EEBEREREEERAR
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The Total of 7,350,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in ten equal
tranches from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026.

The Total of 460,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2020.

The Total of 735,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in one tranche
from 1 January 2027 to 17 September 2027.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021.

The Total of 860,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021.

The Total of 300,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in three equal
tranches from 1 April 2018 to 4 December 2027.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four tranches
from 3 July 2018 to 23 May 2028.

The Total of 100,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in five equal
tranches from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2023.

The Total of 500,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 20 August 2028.

The Total of 100,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 2 January 2019 to 6 September 2028.

The Total of 735,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in one tranche
from 3 January 2028 to 1 October 2028.

The Total of 840,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 2 January 2019 to 1 October 2028.

The Total of 1,620,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in seven
tranches from 2 January 2019 to 27 November 2028.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

feE

10

4 7,350,000 12 BE R #E (B DBBAR I T EF B A
ﬁ;ﬂﬁw —(NWR) IR T—+F—F—AHZE
TE-XFH A=+ B THBEETFUTE

m#\460 000 7 BEAR#E (T AR T 15 B AR
ﬂ 8 % ( )HX) AR —E—+tF—HA—BE=
TTEF A=A OBFETFUAITE

A 4735, ooof\ﬁﬁﬂﬂfg(tf’ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂgﬂﬁt%ﬁ%ﬁ/\%
*l—fu/u% ( )HX) % JCEE ﬂ HzE—
T-+FNA 'H:E % ﬁt%mﬂi

4 #£1,000,00012 BE R4 (B D BEAR I T EF B A
EFARE—)R) IR-_Z—N\F—F—RHZ
—E-—F+ - A=+—HBHTERSZETUTE

= #\860 000 10 B B i (10 BB A M Al T Eo 455 3 A
ﬂ u/u % ( )HX) TE/\\—iE )'\ﬁf )EJ EI;I:_
T —F+ A=+ B SR TATE

A #£300,000 17 AR AE (B BIRER T EE AR
*l—fu/u% ( )HX) TE/\—% )\fﬁpﬂﬂ HE—
T HEFT-AMB S = HERE T UAITE -

& #£1,000,000 17 88 A (F 1 BERRER T EF A A
BFNARB )R IR-_F-A\FLtA=ZA=E
- N\FRAZT=HH BT IAITRE -

méidOO 000 10 B B i (10 BB A HE Al T Eo 455 5 A
ﬂ u/u % ( )HX) E/\—ié j-LﬁE )E]_Eli_
T =F+A=t+—HAAKBBETUTE -

A 500,000 17 AR AE (B BRER T EBE AR
*l Tu/ug% ( )HX) —_[E/\\—% j‘LEE ﬂfai:
Z-N\FNAZTBHSEHEFLATTEE -

4 100,000 BB I (SR BRER TEF B AR
FARE—NR) IR hE—A-BE=
E-NEFEAANB OO EE T IATE -

& #£ 735,000 ﬁﬁﬂﬁé(tf‘ﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁﬁt%/ﬁ\%ﬁ/\*fé
ﬂ wugg ( )HX) —7—)-\515 )EJ Eli_
“NE+A- EI“*HE?LMT@

& 3£840,000 1) B E (B BRER TEBBE AR
*lTn/u % ( )HX) —_[E/\\—i j‘LEE ﬂfai:
T NFETA—BHOOHEEETIAITE -

4 #£1,620,00017 BE AR #E (B0 BEAR I T E B A
BANARE—1)R) IR=ZT—NF—A=ZBH=E
—E - N\F+—A=Zt+tBH R TFUUITE -



14

15

16

17

18

19

The Total of 150,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in three equal
tranches from 2 January 2020 to 1 July 2023.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 2 January 2020 to 11 July 2024.

The Total of 735,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in one tranche
from 2 January 2029 to 15 October 2029.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in five tranches
from 16 October 2019 to 15 October 2029.

The Total of 150,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in one tranche
from 8 November 2019 to 7 November 2029.

The Total of 150,000 share options, each of which entities the holder
thereof to subscriber for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in one tranche
from 5 March 2020 to 7 November 2029.

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for
the Grantees (as defined below) for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

Eligible Persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-time
or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers,
clients, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, has contributed or will contribute to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants” or “Grantees”)
and whom the Board may in its absolute discretion select.
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Maximum Number of shares

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date, which is
98,000,000 shares, being 9.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The limit may be renewed
at any time provided that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option Scheme,
the maximum limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of our
Company must not in aggregate exceed such number of shares as shall
represent 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options may
be granted under any schemes of our Company or subsidiaries if such
grant will result in this 30% limit being exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

Subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the grant
of share options to the Directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders, unless approved by the shareholders at general meeting
in the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, the maximum entitlement
of each Eligible Participant is that the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding options granted and to
be granted to such Grantee (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme and other
scheme(s) of the Group in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of grant.

Option Period
An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with

the terms of the Share Option Scheme during a period notified or to
be notified by the Board.
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Minimum Period for which an Option must be held
before it is Exercised

The period within which an option may be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
provided that such period is consistent with any other terms and
condition of the Share Option Scheme.

Payment on Acceptance of the Option

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on or before the last day for
acceptance of the option granted under the Share Option Scheme
set out in the offer document from time to time.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it must
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the offer day; and
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the five Business Days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (jii) the nominal value of a
share.

The Remaining Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both dates inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.
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Share options granted other than those under Share
Option Scheme

In addition to the share options granted in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group granted share options by specific mandate to GCP Properties
Limited (“GCP”), which entitle GCP to subscribe for 4,349,000
shares in the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.53 per share
with a contractual life of three years, as part of the consideration to
acquire an unlisted equity investment. The acquisition was completed
on 20 August 2018. The share options vested immediately following
the completion of the acquisition of the unlisted equity investment.

As at 31 March 2020, all of the share options granted to GCP are
outstanding and the remaining contractual life is 1.39 years.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 27 June 2016 with a summary of the Share
Award Scheme rules published in the announcement dated 29 June
2016. On 30 September 2016, the Company entered into a deed of
variation to the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Deed of
Variation”) to make certain changes to the said trust deed, to the
effect that as from 30 September 2016, all core connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company be excluded from
participating in the Share Award Scheme. Under the Share Award
Scheme, the Group’s employees, selected by the Board are entitled
to participate.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognize the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the
Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the Share
Award Scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme. The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective from the
date of adoption for 10 years or such date of early termination as
determined by the Board, provided that such termination shall not
affect any subsisting right of any eligible persons selected for
participation in the Share Award Scheme.
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The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which may be awarded to a selected employee
under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s shares
awarded (“Awarded Shares”) under the Share Award Scheme during
the Reporting Period:
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Vesting date

Date of grant  of Awarded As at Granted Vested  Forfeited Lapsed As at
Name or category of Awarded Shares 1 April  during the  during the during during 31 March
of participant Shares (Note 1) 2019 period period the period the period 2020

ZBkRt RBROBE R-B-hF RZBZEBE

SHEAMAHER REAE  AH(ME) mA—-B HRAEY BHAREE DHafss  BRX% =ZA=t+-H
Employees
&8
In aggregate - 02/01/20 79,000 - - (79,000) - -
st
Notes: Bk
1. Upon satisfaction of the relevant vesting criteria and conditions, the 1. FEESBEARGMEERE  BERDERIERE

Awarded Shares shall be transferred and released to the grantees on the
relevant vesting date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period were:
Executive Directors

Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and CEO)

Lee Gabriel (Chief Operating Officer)

Lee Heung Wing (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 6 January 2020)

Wong Chi Cheung (Chief Digital Officer)
(appointed on 6 January 2020)

Non-Executive Directors

Luk Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer)
Dr. Wang David Guowei (resigned on 24 April 2020)
Dr. Wang Steven Dasong (appointed on 24 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Ching Nam
Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
Mr. Look Andrew

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Tang
Chi Fai and Mr. Ma Ching Nam will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Lee Heung Wing, Mr. Wong Chi Cheung and Dr. Wang Steven
Dasong will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors against any liabilities and costs arising from
the business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty in relation thereto.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 80 to 84
of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. After review by the
Nomination Committee, the Company considered all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the
date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March
2020 is set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Company’s business was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

On 21 February 2020, the Board approved the conditional adoption
of the Co-Ownership Plan. The Co-Ownership Plan was approved
by the Shareholders at the EGM on 16 April 2020. Capitalized terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as ascribed to them in the
circular of the Company dated 31 March 2020. For details of the Co-
Ownership Plan, please refer to the circular of the Company dated
31 March 2020. Under the Co-Ownership Plan and as of 31 March
2020:

(i) Mr. Lee Heung Wing and Mr. Wong Chi Cheung, each an
executive Director and an Eligible Participant, accepted
HK$2,024,298 and HK$2,000,000, respectively, as Investment
Amounts under the Co-Ownership Plan.

(i)  The Plan Trustees may satisfy the settlement of the grant of
Award Shares to the relevant Grantee by means of purchasing
such Shares held by the Connected Sellers, i.e. Mr. Tang Chi
Fai (an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company) and Mr. Lee Gabriel (an executive Director).

Save as disclosed above and in this annual report, no Director or his
connected entity had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period and required to
be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts” above and elsewhere in
this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or a controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of the controlling shareholder’s subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or
at any time during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, save for the competing businesses as
disclosed below, none of the Directors had any interest in a business
other than the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang was interested in a
company which is not included in the Group (the “Relevant
Company”).
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Name of the
Relevant Company Nature of business Board of Directors Size of business
HEATEE EBME Exg EBRE
Healthy Concept (HK) Limited Supply of skincare and Mr. Tang Revenue in 2019: less than
(“Healthy Concept”) (note 1) beauty products/ HK$5.1 million
Operation of call centre Net profit in 2019: less than
(note 2) HK$2.0 million (note 3)
Healthy Concept (HK) Limited MBS B#E M EREMR, MEL ZE-NAFRA
(I'Healthy Concept]) B (HFE2) DREABEEETT
(1) —E-NEFEH
PR2.0B&EB T (HFE3)
Notes: Mk
1. Healthy Concept is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong 1. Healthy Concept@ —RNR_EZNFRA =+~ H

with limited liability on 26 May 2006, and is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang.
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2. Healthy Concept operates its business in Hong Kong. Its target customers
in respect of the supply of skincare and beauty products are primarily
aesthetic medical or traditional beauty service providers. Separately, it also
operates a call centre which targets individual customers. The personnel of
the call centre contact individual customers and refer them to the providers
of body screening services, beauty products and beauty services,
respectively, for referral income. However, Healthy Concept does not
provide any aesthetic medical or traditional beauty services, nor body
screening services.

&k The figures are determined by reference to the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2019 of the Relevant Company.

The Group offers a broad range of services and products, including
medical services, aesthetic medical services, beauty and wellness
services, skincare, healthcare and beauty products, primarily of
private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Swissline, Suissebeaute and
re:HEALTH. The Group does not focus on mass market retailing of
products and substantially all of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products are sold to the clients of the Group’s services.

The Directors are of the view that the Group’s business activities are
clearly delineated from that of the Relevant Company, since the
Group does not focus on the supply and distribution of medical
consumables, devices and equipment, or skincare, healthcare and
beauty products. Instead, the Group only focuses on (i) applying
medical consumables, devices and equipment during the course of
provision of service; and (i) selling skincare, healthcare and beauty
products to the clients of the Group’s services. In contrast, the
Relevant Company focuses on the supply and distribution of such
goods to aesthetic medical service providers and traditional beauty
service providers in Hong Kong. Furthermore, the Relevant Company
does not supply and distribute any skincare, healthcare and beauty
products of the Group’s private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB,
Swissline, Suissebeaute and re:HEALTH.

Based on the above, the Directors are of the view that the
businesses conducted by the Relevant Company do not form part
of, and are not in line with the core business of the Group, and as
such do not compete and are unlikely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.

66 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

2. Healthy Concept T BB & K275 - HFHMEE
BRERERNESEFTEABREXIRAUERE
ARRBEIRMER - BHN - HEE — AR ERRIZS
FINEA R o IR AR O A BB AR R E A 1E S
DREN FBRE R - EREMREDREGIRES -
LAEERE N WA - R BT BT mEBEEx
RSB EHEDRIE RS R -

3. BFESERBARNBE_ZT-NF=A=t—H
IFFEZRBEMIERRERE

REBEREEZHNREMNER  BRIEEERS -
FERERY  ERRBERYS  EE - REX
ERER FEAHREBERRBEER S
Swissline * ¥ AT 7 K re:HEALTH o 78 & @] 3f 42 &
PHEEMRAZTSEZTE  BERLEAANE#
B REEREAERYETAEERBNEFE -

EERAASENER I RABARMNERE
AL D  AARNEBVETNHERDH
EEREM  EREERE EEEE - REEE
REM - Bk REBREIR()EREREN
BIZPFEAEEREM « EESNEE  Ki)aAs
ERBEFLEESE REREAER - B2
b HEAREIRAEENBEETRBEIRME
BEREFERRGREERERD HZEDS
SN - AR W EEE R D EAER B R MM
ER 2 - Swissline * I if 1 & re:HEALTH &Y (T
EE - REKERER °

R LR - EFERG - HEQRRARNER
TERAREZOREHN &0 BEZLEHT
—H Eitt - WEHB AR REAEBNER
BREELEEBRT -



Deed of Non-competition

As disclosed in the Prospectus, pursuant to the non-competition
undertakings set out in the deed of non-competition dated 19
February 2016, each of Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding
Limited (“Union Medical Care”), our controlling shareholders, have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them is not or will
not, and will procure each of their respective close associates, to be
interested, involved or engaged in or concerned with, directly or
indirectly, any business which is in any respect in competition with or
similar to or is likely to be in competition with the business of the
Group during the period commencing from the Listing Date and
ending on the occurrence of the earliest of (i) the day on which its
shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange or other recognised
stock exchange; (i) the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical
Care cease to be controlling shareholder of the Company; and (i)
the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical Care beneficially
own or are interested in all the issued ordinary shares of the
Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-competition and are of the view
that the controlling shareholders have complied with its undertakings
given under the deed of non-competition for the year ended 31
March 2020. As at 31 March 2020, no new business opportunity has
been notified by the controlling shareholders.

Independence from the controlling shareholders

The Board believes that the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independent of, and does not place undue reliance on Mr.
Tang and/or Union Medical Care or their respective close associates,
taking into consideration the factors of financial independence,
operational independence and management independence when the
facts and reasons as disclosed in the Prospectus applied to the
Group during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the
“SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or (c) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Approximate
Number of percentage of

underlying the total issued
Number of shares held share capital of
Name of Director/ shares under equity the Company
Chief Executive Capacity interested derivatives (Note 1)
RRASTE BARDRE BT
B XE BEER IATHEZ A B R
THABKE & ZRGOEE HERDHE Bk (1)
Tang Chi Fai Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 728,988,230 (L) 73.99%
B interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
EnBEA  EE (PFidEE2)
EE R
Lee Gabriel Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 3,251,000 (L) 9,175,000 (L) 1.26%
FER interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) (Note 4)
EEEAAN  EEERNRZE (B3 3) (Pi3E4)
EE R
LLee Heung Wing Beneficial owner 380,500 (L) 2,200,000 (L) 0.26%
ENEES EnlAA (Note 5)
(f5E5)
Wong Chi Cheung Beneficial owner 197,000 (L) 2,000,000 (L) 0.22%
=] BEnlEA A (Note 6)
(fH5E6)
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
underlying the total issued
Number of shares held share capital of
Name of Director/ shares under equity the Company
Chief Executive Capacity interested derivatives (Note 1)
RBRASTE HARDRE BT
Es IE BEER IETHEZ IR A B R L
THABHRSR &4 ZBRHEAE HERDHE B (fiEE)
Luk Kun Shing Ben Beneficial owner 2,587,500 (L) - 0.26%
FERR ERBEA
Lam Chi Hang Josekin Beneficial owner 27,000(L) - 0.002%
AT EnlEEA
Ma Ching Nam Beneficial owner - 300,000 0.03%
L EREBA (Note 7)
(PF3E7)
Note: FeE -
()  denotes long position. L fEEFE-

Total numbers of issued shares as at 31 March 2020 was 985,277,448.

Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding Limited (“Union Medical Care”)
are the controlling shareholders of the Company. Union Medical Care is
entirely owned by Mr. Tang. Out of 728,988,230 shares that Mr. Tang was
interested in, (i) 2,654,000 shares were held by Ms. Yau Ming Li, the spouse
of Mr. Tang, and (i) 721,231,230 shares were held by Union Medical Care
and Mr. Tang was therefore deemed to be interested in such 721,231,230
shares under Part XV of SFO.

Out of 3,251,000 shares that Mr. Lee was interested in, (i) 80,000 shares
were held by Ms. Fan Yui Sze, the spouse of Mr. Lee, and (i) 1,309,000
shares were held by Nice Empire Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Lee, and Mr. Lee was therefore deemed to be interested in such 80,000
shares and 1,309,000 shares under Part XV of the SFO.

RZFZFFZA-+-BAMCETEROAEA
985,277,448 ©

B 42 4 2 Union Medical Care Holding Limited ([ Union
Medical Care ]) &N A R HEAZAEE » Union Medical
CaeHBEEL2ERB EBEERBEEZD
728,988,230 A& B 17 - (i) 2,654,000 % T B B 45 4
B BC B BB BA R &2 + 35 B ¢ K (i) 721,231,230 % B3
Union Medical Care58 * Bt RIFFH K EEK
BISEXVER - BB 5% AR R ME R 721,231,230 IR AR
DRAER o

EE LA B R 3,251,000 & 5 F ()
80,000 RTYRZ R EMEBHREZLTFHE « K
1,309,000 f% A 2 %t 4 2 & #E A &) 2 7] Nice Empire
Limited 55 + B - RIEEH RS HRGIZEXVE -
2= 0 A 1 R A K FB 8 80,000 % K2 1,309,000 A% A% 19
FHARER o

BEERBRERASEERAT 69
FE L 2019/20



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

=

70

qﬁ&i

9,175,000 share options include () 355,000 share options, each of which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026; (ii) 735,000 share options,
each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall
be exercisable from 2 January 2018 to 31 December 2026; (jii) 735,000
share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one
(1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2026;
(iv) 735,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2020 to 31
December 2026; (v) 735,000 share options, each of which entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 4
January 2021 to 31 December 2026; (vi) 735,000 share options, each of
which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be
exercisable from 3 January 2022 to 31 December 2026; (vii) 735,000 share
options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1)
share, shall be exercisable from 3 January 2023 to 31 December 2026; (viii)
735,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2024 to 31
December 2026; (ix) 735,000 share options, each of which entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2
January 2025 to 31 December 2026; (x) 735,000 share options, each of
which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be
exercisable from 2 January 2026 to 31 December 2026; (xi) 735,000 share
options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1)
share, shall be exercisable from 1 January 2027 to 17 September 2027; (xii)
735,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 3 January 2028 to 1
October 2028; (xiii) 735,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January
2029 to 15 October 2029.
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2,200,000 share options include (i) 25,000 share options, each of which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable
from 2 January 2018 to 31 December 2021; (ii) 25,000 share options, each
of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be
exercisable from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2021; (i) 25,000 share
options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1)
share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2020 to 31 December 2021; (iv)
25,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe
for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 4 January 2021 to 31 December
2021; (v) 25,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2019 to 1
October 2028; (vi) 25,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January
2020 to 1 October 2028; (vii) 25,000 share options, each of which entitles
the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 4
January 2021 to 1 October 2028; (viii) 25,000 share options, each of which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable
from 3 January 2022 to 1 October 2028; (ix) 250,000 share options, each
of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be
exercisable from 2 January 2020 to 11 July 2024; (x) 250,000 share
options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1)
share, shall be exercisable from 4 January 2021 to 11 July 2024; (xi)
250,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 3 January 2022 to 11
July 2024; (xii) 250,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January
2023 to 11 July 2024; (xiii) 200,000 share options, each of which entitles
the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from
11 October 2019 to 15 October 2029; (xiv) 50,000 share options, each of
which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be
exercisable from 4 January 2021 to 15 October 2029; (xv) 100,000 share
options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1)
share, shall be exercisable from 3 January 2022 to 15 October 2029; (xvi)
150,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2023 to 15
October 2029; (xvii) 500,000 share options, each of which entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2
January 2024 to 15 October 2029.
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2,000,000 share options include () 125,000 share options, each of which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable
from 2 January 2019 to 20 August 2028; (i) 125,000 share options, each of
which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be
exercisable from 2 January 2020 to 20 August 2028; (i) 125,000 share
options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1)
share, shall be exercisable from 4 January 2021 to 20 August 2028; (iv)
125,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 3 January 2022 to 20
August 2028; (v) 100,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January
2020 to 27 November 2028; (vi) 200,000 share options, each of which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable
from 4 January 2021 to 27 November 2028; (vii) 400,000 share options,
each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall
be exercisable from 3 January 2022 to 27 November 2028; (vii) 400,000
share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one
(1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2023 to 27 November 2028;
(ix) 300,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2 January 2024 to 27
November 2028; (x) 100,000 share options, each of which entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 2
January 2025 to 27 November 2028.

300,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder to subscribe for
one (1) share, shall be exercisable in two tranches from 2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028.

Interest in shares and underlying shares of
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2,000,000 19 B8 A% # B2 45 - (1250001‘@%%%5 %
BETEREARE - ()RROOER  JR=F
*nE*H*HiZ;ZAEAH:+E%@ﬁﬁ:
(i) 125 ooo1‘ﬁ§ﬂxﬁ£ ﬂaﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁ ﬁ%*( )
B A% 1D R - TE-A-RAE=
—N\FENA=-+H Hﬂfﬁfﬂi (ii)y 125 OOOT‘@%HX%
ZERTEBAEARE —(1)BRBOOER  TR=
- —F-AWBE_ZE-_N\FNA =+ HEHBTT
8 1 (iv) 125,000 B A 42 - Raﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁA?
—(1)ERHHERN  AIR-_T-_—_F—A=AZF
T N\FNAZ+BHERETE: U1momﬁ$h
- SERTHIEAARE —()RROER -
RN-E-TF-—A-HE-_ZT-)\F+—A= +t
A EARITTE ¢ (vi) 200,00017 ERR#E - & B T E 4+
BARE—()BREROWEF IR =—F—A
WABZE=ZZE-N\F+— A=+t AHMBTE Vi)
400,000 15 B8 R HE - Xaﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁAb%*H”
BAPHER IR - —F—-A=ZAE=-FT -\
¢+—ﬂ—+t5%ﬁﬁﬁ(wmmmmﬂﬁk
- SEARTHEEAARE—()RRDOER -
R-_TE-_=F—A= Ei_7_A¢+*H:+t

i7i

HAT{# : (ix) 300,00017 Ak #E - SEETFEIFEA
—()BRBRHOEFR  AIR_ZT_NF—A=H

22T )\F+—AZ+EBAHBHETE : (x) 100,000

DR - %Qﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁA*%—u%%ﬁm%

AR -—E-_AF—A-RAE-_T-N\F+—A4

— Tt AHETE -

SmomP%k% SERTERBARE—1)K

foﬁﬂ'ﬂéﬁﬂ DRMPNR—F
== _/\ij\ﬂ T HERTE -

—hWF—A=ZHZE

RAR R EZBE RO R EERSH

associated corporation(s) of the Company =
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of  the total issued
shares underlying share capital
Name of Name of interested in shares held of the
Director/Chief associated the associated under equity associated
Executive corporation Capacity corporation derivatives corporation
DRASTETRE  (AREEE2H
REBZEES FAENEE BRITRAH
EE TETHASRS HEEE BB g% ERROHA RAEA BARDL
Tang Chi Fai Union Medical Care Beneficial owner 2 () - 100%
Lol Holding Limited ~ E 5 A A (Note 1) (FF3E1)
Note: B EE -
()  denotes long position. L IR -

1.
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The 2 shares in which Mr. Tang was interested in were ordinary shares of
Union Medical Care.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, so far as is known
to any Directors or chief executives of the Company, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, other than interests disclosed above in respect
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company, the following
persons had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

Number of Company

Name of shareholders Capacity shares interested (Note 1)

R N

EERTRAEEN

HEEREREN BABEDH

BREE HE 54 RO E (Pff=E1)

Union Medical Care (Note 2) Beneficial owner 721,231,230 (L) 73.20%
Union Medical Care ({3 2) En#EA A

Yau Ming Li (Note 3) Beneficial owner and 728,988,230 (L) 73.99%

interest of spouse
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Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

Number of Company
Name of shareholders Capacity shares interested (Note 1)
P NN
CRITRAZEN
HEEEN BHABED T
BREE A 54 BOEE (FzE1)
OrbiMed Advisors Il Limited (note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 63,806,686(L) 6.48%
OrbiMed Advisors Il Limited (Fi{3¥4) R4 #EE R
OrbiMed Asia GP lll, L.P. (note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 63,806,686(L) 6.48%
OrbiMed Asia GP Ill, L.P. (Fz£4) Rt EEER
OrbiMed Asia Partners |ll, L.P. Beneficial owner 63,806,686(L) 6.48%
OrbiMed Asia Partners Il L.P. EnlEEA
Notes: Miak
()  Denotes as long position. L IEEFE-
1. Total number of issued shares as at 31 March 2020 was 985,277,448. 1. RZEZEF=A=+—"HANEBTROHBHEA
085,277,448 % °
2. Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the controlling shareholders of the 2. Bl 56 4 K Union Medical Care A4 RIHIIE AR AR ©
Company. Union Medical Care is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang. Union Medical Care HE[ ScAE 2 BHER ©
3. Out of the 728,988,230 shares, (i) 2,654,000 shares were held by Ms. Yau 3. 1£728,988,230 i fi% 15 7 - () EF & + 4% A 2,654,000
and (i) 726,334,230 shares were held by Mr. Tang, the spouse of Ms. Yau, % - (i) Bf 22 =W ERAB BT St £ #5 726,334,230 % -
and Ms. Yau was therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the It - BEES KRG RGIEXVE - BR R RN
Company in which Mr. Tang was interested under Part XV of the SFO. BHEEFBEENARRRNDPES R -
4. According to the information in the disclosure of interests forms of OrbiMed 4. 1R ¥% OrbiMed Advisors Il Limited ([Orbi A 1Il]) &
Advisors Il Limited (“Orbi A 1II"), OrbiMed Asia GP Ill, L.P. (“Orbi A GP”), OrbiMed Asia GP Ill, L.P. ([Orbi A GPJ) Bl 25 #H 5&
Orbi A lll holds 100% indirect interest in Orbi A Ill; and Orbi A GP holds 2% RIZAEERL - Orbi A IFEFE Orbi A 1l 9 100% 1
direct interest in OrbiMed Asia Partners Ill, L.P. Orbi A lll and Orbi A GP T %5 . M Orbi A GP# & OrbiMed Asia Partners Il
were therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company LP.M2% HEf#x - At - BREZHFRBEKIE
which are owned by OrbiMed Asia Partners Ill, L.P. under Part XV of the XV B+ Orbi A Il 52 Orbi A GP #4% &1 OrbiMed Asia
SFO. Partners Ill, L.P. %/ B AR R RIBR 1D A HE A 25 o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors have
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save and except the Share Option Scheme, the Share Award
Scheme and the Co-Ownership Plan, at no time during or at the end
of the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed approximately 1,617 (31
March 2019: 1,829) permanent employees in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented directors and
employees by offering them competitive remuneration packages,
their salaries and bonuses were determined by reference to their
duties, work experience, performance and prevailing market
practices. The Group also participates in the Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) scheme in Hong Kong, and provides employees with
medical insurance coverage. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years. The MPF
contributions charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represent the contributions payable to the funds by the Group. A
Share Option Scheme, the Co-Ownership Plan and a share award
scheme are in place to reward individual employees for their
outstanding performance and contribution to the success of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group undertaken
in the normal course of business during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
these transactions is required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the aggregate amount of
revenue or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The
aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any direct/indirect interest in these major
suppliers or customers during the year ended 31 March 2020.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares
of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The text of the corporate governance report is set out on pages 35
to 47 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is in the process of preparing its environmental, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 March 2020 and will
publish it on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website in due course.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING
PERIOD

Issue and subscription of new shares under general
mandate

On 29 April 2020, Renaissance City Development Company Limited
(“the Subscriber”) and the Company have entered into a subscription
agreement pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to allot and issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, 8,078,927 new shares of the Company (“Subscription
Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$4.20 per Subscription
Share. Subject to certain conditions to completion, at completion,
the Subscription Shares would be allotted and issued pursuant to
the general mandate (“General Mandate”) granted to the Directors by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting held
on 21 August 2019. The Directors consider that the subscription
would strengthen the collaboration between Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust (REIT) (a Hong Kong based REIT the units of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange) and the Company.

Completion of the subscription has taken place on 8 May 2020.

For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 29 April 2020.
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Discloseable transaction involving acquisition of the
Target Company and issue of new shares under
general mandate

On 18 May 2020, the Company, Jade Master International Limited
(“the Purchaser”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), New Medical Center Holding Limited (“the New Holdco”),
five individuals (“the Sellers”), and The New Medical Center Limited
(“the Target Company”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(“New Medical SPA”), pursuant to which, among others, the
Purchaser (as ultimate purchaser) has conditionally agreed to
procure the New Holdco to purchase, and the Sellers have
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued shares of the Target
Company, for the consideration comprising (i) a total amount of
HK$100,000,000 to be payable to the Sellers, (i) in exchange of
4,900 issued shares of New Holdco to be issued to two of the
sellers, (i) the new shares of the Company to be allotted and issued
to one of the sellers (“Further Consideration Shares”), and (iv) the
contingent consideration of not exceeding HK$16,000,000 to be
payable to one of the sellers, subject to the terms and conditions of
the New Medical SPA. Upon completion, the Target Company will
be wholly-owned by the New Holdco and in turn the New Holdco will
be owned as to 51% by the Purchaser, and 49% by two of the
sellers. The Further Consideration Shares will be allotted and issued
pursuant to the General Mandate. The Target Company has 11 full-
time registered medical practitioners on the Specialist Registration of
the Medical Council of Hong Kong. The Directors consider that the
acquisition will enlarge the premium health market share of the
Group.

Completion has not taken place as of the date of this annual report.

Under the New Medical SPA, one of the sellers has given a profit
guarantee (“Profit Guarantee”) to the Purchaser and the New Holdco
over the net profit of the Target Company, the net profit of Causeway
Bay Clinic Company or any subsidiary of the New Holdco with its
principal business in medical services, as well as the net profit of a
subsidiary of the New Holdco, for a period of 8 years from the
financial year ending 31 March 2021, failing which such seller shall
payback the Purchaser in such amounts as determined under the
New Medical SPA.

For details of the transaction and the Profit Guarantee, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 18 May 2020.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 have
been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as the auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEZMNEREEAE[KE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TANG Chi Fai, aged 41, is the Chairman of the Board, the CEO, our
executive Director and chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is
a controlling shareholder of the Company and he founded our Group
on 23 November 2005. He is responsible for the overall management
and strategic planning and development of our Group. Mr. Tang is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Tang has more than 18 years of experience in management and
the aesthetic medical and medical healthcare industries. Mr. Tang
has diversified experiences ranging from the initial establishment and
business development of medical aesthetic clinics and beauty
centres, the development of marketing strategies and maintenance
of sales channels.

From September 1998 to May 2001, Mr. Tang attended the
University of Hong Kong where he was enrolled in the bachelor of
medicine and the bachelor of surgery programmes before deciding
to pursue a different career path. From September 2001 to February
2005, Mr. Tang enrolled in the bachelor of business administration in
accounting and finance at the University of Hong Kong and worked
on a part-time basis before deciding to switch to full-time
employment. Mr. Tang obtained Certificate IV in Training and
Assessment from Northern Melbourne Institute of Technical and
Further Education in September 2009 and the executive master of
business administration degree from the University of Hull in January
2014. Mr. Tang is an Elizabeth Wordsworth Fellow at St. Hugh’s
College, University of Oxford.

LEE Gabriel, aged 41, is the chief operating officer and our
executive Director. He is responsible for the management of day-to-
day operations for our Group.

Mr. Lee has over 18 years of experience in business management.
Prior to joining our Group in April 2014, from July 2001 to April 2014,
Mr. Lee worked at Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (BIZ=fiZ= B R A
B]) (“Cathay Pacific”), an international airline listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 293). During his employment
with Cathay Pacific, Mr. Lee was seconded to Air China Cargo
Company Limited (Bl B[R EiEMz= B R A F) in Beijing, a state-
owned airline enterprise in the PRC, from March 2011 to July 2011
where he served as the assistant president of its commercial (sales
and marketing) division. From July 2007 to July 2009, he was
seconded to Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Ltd. in Shanghai, the PRC,
where he served as a manager of marketing & sales in Eastern
China.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting and finance in July
2001. In March 2007, Mr. Lee attended the SWIRE Management
Programme organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in
Singapore. Mr. Lee also attended the SWIRE Accounting and
Control Programme and SWIRE Advanced Management Programme
organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in Fontainebleau,
France from October to November 2010 and from May to June
2013, respectively.

LEE Heung Wing, aged 39, joined the Group as corporate finance
director in March 2016 and was responsible for corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions matters and has become the chief financial
officer of the Group since July 2019. Mr. Lee has over 15 years of
professional experience in auditing, accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Lee obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration in Finance from the University of Hong Kong in 2004
and a postgraduate diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. Lee became a member and
practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2007 and 2015, respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lee founded his own certified public accountant and
consultancy firm in 2015, principally engaged in business and
accounting consultation services. Prior to 2015 and after his
graduation, Mr. Lee worked in assurance department of Ernst &
Young and his last position was senior manager which he acquired
intensive financial reporting and corporate governance experience.

WONG Chi Cheung, aged 47, joined the Group in August 2018,
and is the chief digital officer of the Group responsible for digital and
[T transformation. Mr. Wong is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of professional experience in
digital product development, eCommerce, digital marketing and
consumer experience design. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong
was the director of digital business of Hong Kong Disneyland,
responsible for the development of consumer direct channel and
digital guest’s experience since 2013. Mr. Wong joined Langham
Hospitality Group as a group director of e-business responsible for
direct channel and all online business development for the Langham
Hospitality Group in 2013. Mr. Wong held various positions including
head of e-business team and program manager of Cathay Group in
Cathay Pacific Airways and/or its subsidiaries (the “Cathay Group”),
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 293), during the period from 2000 to 2012. Mr. Wong founded
an IT consultancy company principally engaged in offering IT
solutions to medical service providers in 1996. Mr. Wong obtained a
bachelor’s degree in business administration with major in
Information and Systems Management from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 1996.
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EENSREEANBBE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LUK Kun Shing Ben, aged 41, has more than 8 years of experience
in the aesthetic medical industry, and over 16 years of experience in
the information technology industry. Prior to joining our Group in
March 2010, from January 2011 to February 2014, Mr. Luk served
as a software engineer at Google (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary
of Google Inc., specialising in internet-related services and products.
From December 2003 to December 2010, he was a software
engineer at Google Inc., in Mountain View, California, the United
States and involved in the implementation of Google Maps.

Mr. Luk graduated from Cornell University with a bachelor of science
degree in computer science in August 2000 and Stanford University
with a master of science degree in computer science in June 2003.
Mr. Luk was appointed as the Engineering Site Lead at Google
Beijing. The Board believes that his role in Google Beijing will allow
him to be in touch with the state-of-the-art technology and Mr. Luk
will continue to advise the Company to enhance its IT systems and
access to the latest IT resources.

Dr. WANG Steven Dasong, aged 51, is a senior managing director
of Asia at OrbiMed Advisors LLC (a shareholder of the Company
holding approximately 6.41% of the issued Shares as of the date of
this report), an investment fund with a focus on healthcare industry.
Prior to joining our Group in April 2020, he was a managing director
and team leader of the Pharmaceutical Sector at CITIC Private Equity
Funds Management Co., Ltd (“CITICPE”) (FEE%ES). He has
over 20 years of experience of working in top global investment
banks and direct investment firms. Before joining CITICPE, Dr.
Steven Wang was a managing director and head of APAC
Healthcare Investment Banking at Credit Suisse. He previously held
various senior positions at the investment banking department of
UBS AG and Morgan Stanley in Hong Kong. He led a number of Asia
healthcare and related deals including the initial public offerings of
Sinopharm Corporation Group Co., Ltd. (Bl Z&¥E A% I AR A 7)),
Luye Pharma Group Ltd. (SxER LB FR A F]) and Rici
Healthcare Holdings Ltd (ls ZEBERSIZ/RBER A F), the
privatization of WuXi AppTec Co., Ltd. (ZBREE/E % 22593 AR A 7))
and Simcere Pharmaceutical Group (Jc&2 Z £ ), as well as Luye
Pharma Group Ltd.’s acquisition of Acino. Before returning to China
in 2007, Dr. Steven Wang worked for seven years in New York for
multinational investment banks and multi-strategy hedge funds.
Before his career in finance, Dr. Steven Wang was a senior research
scientist in the research and development department of Schering-
Plough Corporation (subsequently acquired by Merck & Co., Inc.),
focusing on allergy and immunology with multiple published paper
and patents. Dr. Steven Wang holds a Ph.D. in Medicinal Chemistry
from the Johns Hopkins University, and a MBA in Finance (with
distinction) from New York University. He is a Chartered Financial
Analyst. Dr. Steven Wang was a non-executive Director of a
company listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange, namely 3SBio
Inc. (Stock Code: 1530) from 30 June 2017 to 8 October 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Ching Nam, aged 67, was appointed as our Independent Non-
Executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Ma is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ma
has been practising law for almost 40 years. He was admitted as a
solicitor in England and Wales, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He
currently serves as Senior Partner of Hastings & Co, Solicitors &
Notaries, a law firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is also a Notary Public, China
Appointed Attesting Officer and Civil Celebrant. He was the President of
the Hong Kong Society of Notaries from 2007 to 2013.

Mr. Ma currently serves as directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited,
Heptacontinental Group of companies, Ma Kam Ming Company
Limited, Ma Kam Ming Charitable Foundation and Ma’s Enterprises
Company Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Time Watch Investments Limited (Stock Code: 2033) and an
Independent Non-Executive Director of JY Grandmark Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2231), both of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma was Chairman of Po Leung
Kuk from 2019 to 2020.

Mr. Ma is also a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Grantham Hospital in Hong Kong, and a council member of Hong
Kong St. John Ambulance. He has been appointed as a member of
Political and Consultative Conference in Hunan Province, PRC. He
was also the past Chairman of St. Paul’s Co-educational College
Alumni Association. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Hull
with a bachelor of science degree in economics with honours in
1977.

LAM Chi Hang Josekin, aged 40, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 14 September 2017. Mr.
Lam is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, as well as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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EENSREEANBBE

Mr. Lam has extensive knowledge and over 19 years of experience
in business consultancy and financial industry. Prior to setting up and
running his own business consultancy and real estate brokerage
firms in 2009 and 2014 respectively, Mr. Lam was a consultant at
Bain & Co, Inc , a management consulting Company. Mr. Lam was
the acting chief executive officer of Sanook.com, a subsidiary of
Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”), a Company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 700). Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lam last held the position as a director of strategy
department of Tencent. Mr. Lam graduated from Tufts University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Quantitative Economics and
International Relations in May 2001 and the University of Chicago
Booth School of Business with a Master of Business Administration
in June 2007.

LOOK Andrew, aged 56, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Look is also a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Look holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the University
of Toronto and has over 26 years’ experience in the equity
investment analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From
2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS”)
as the head of Hong Kong research, strategy and product. He was
rated as the best Hong Kong strategist and best analyst by the
Asiamoney magazine, a leading monthly financial and capital markets
publication for corporate and finance readers and investors, in 2001,
2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr. Look is currently an
independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1446), Citic Resources Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1205) and Ka Shui International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 822), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a company
delisted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September 2016)
from September 2010 to September 2016, an independent non-
executive director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1466, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)
from September 2014 to December 2016 and an independent non-
executive director of Cowell e Holdings Inc (Stock Code: 1415, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from April 2017
to December 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Union Medical Healthcare Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Union
Medical Healthcare Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 94 to 250, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Provision of services

FREENEE

MRENSRERERMNEXHE - RAHAR
MG AR BREANBARREENEH - BLF
HRARMETBBSAMBREAMBARRE
ETREN - RAATSHELETREHEFNE
B o

WA - RERE

Refer to notes 5 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

2004 & MR I35 2 25 LA R M 3681 f)
SHIE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NAEEZEE

Revenue mainly comprises income from the provision of medical,
aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services.
WAFZEBRERHERE XBBE XTLBERBOHWA -

Revenue is recognised when the related services are provided to
customers.

WARBBERGIRE T EFPEER -

Most of the Group’s services are sold on a prepaid basis. Payments
received for prepaid packages are initially recorded as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
time of receipt. The service period for a prepaid package is
generally one year.

BERENRBY RBITRAMNEZELE - BEROBHNERFKIER
WERIF R GE B BARARARIERTERA - BNEZHNRE
H—Ma—F-

Prepaid packages are non-refundable and customers may not
utilise all of their contracted rights within the service period. Such
unutilised services are referred to as “breakage”. An expected
amount of breakage is estimated by management based on
historical experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to
the pattern of services provided to customers.
BNERTAREREFEREPAAIE N ERAE S %
M o HERERGE BRI PRI 4R A [ RER R ] - FEERGE B a0
NeHEhEEERBRAECRMAT RZRETEPHRBERXL
LE BRI ©

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the contractual service
period is fully recognised in profit or loss.

RE KRR EMFIREC R ATIER AT HRHER o
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from the provision of services during the
year included the following:

B E IR 7 R AT F AR B RERB A
®WR - BREOATEE:

° assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over revenue recognition;

o B AR EEAREIEH RS
Fie &8 ERI KR ;

° inspecting, on a sample basis, sales
contracts and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the recognition of
revenue with reference to the terms set out
in the sales contracts and the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

s ZEHESHMENKERERITELEL
MRE  MEEREESOLFEERRE
HIWABRH G R

° inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers during the year and
comparing such receipts with relevant details
in sales contracts entered into during the
year;

s MMEEBRFARBFPHRESKIT - L#
ZEWKREF RN ZNHEES NN EBT
TBEVELLER

° comparing, on a sample basis, customers’
signed acceptance of services provided with
the customers’ utilisation records;

o HHRLLEE P Y ATIR M AR S 80 5 AR B
B EAR
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The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

B Az BRI

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHNESTNATEEZEE

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of services
as a key audit matter because (1) revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific targets; and (2) the estimation of
the utilisation pattern of services is inherently subjective and
requires significant judgement and estimation which increase the
risk of error or potential management bias.
BPISRBEAERE A —BEREAZTE  DRN)KAR &
SEBRRBES — At —EEERREEIREREW AR
REFEAZEISERN  RQRBEBRANMEFAE LHE
BMEFEETERAG RME  SENTERIEEEEER
RE Rk

recalculating, on a sample basis, the revenue
recognised for services provided during the
year with reference to the terms as set out in
the sales contracts;
2EHEQNMEANGT  BHEEEFA
PR AR TS O M RU A

analysing the Group’s historical data for
utilisation of prepaid packages and the
current year’s revenue recognised for
services provided to re-perform the
calculation of the breakage amount for the
current year; comparing our results with the
actual figures recorded by the Group and
investigating unusual items or trends and
assessing whether or not there was an
indication of management bias;

AN BEEERENEZCERABANBE
BB R AN FEMRHEREERAOUA - A
EFFERNFERERANENSHE B
MEERE ESEDHENEREFTIEL
B UTHAESEFEAXBE RITEES
ERERANTR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
residual deferred revenue had been
recognised in profit or loss at the end of the
contractual service period; and

AT (i TR IE WA = B R A LI AR 7% HA
RKRBRAER &

inspecting underlying documentation for
journal entries relating to revenue and
deferred revenue which were considered to
meet specified risk-based criteria.
ERWARRLEWAETBEFTEFTRER
B A BR A SR R AR RE S -
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Accounting for business acquisitions

EBUBEENS A RE

Refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

F2MGAMBBREN S ARNES 1 et
B -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN EBSTNAEEZEE

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group completed two
business acquisitions for an aggregate consideration of HK$76
million.
BE_Z-_FTF=—A=1+—HLEFEAR"
BEBTHMIBEEE -

EEETKERETE

Goodwill arising from these acquisitions amounted to HK$57
million, which represented the excess of the consideration paid
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net
assets, including the intangible assets amounting to HK$39 million,
of the acquired businesses.
HAzEWEEEERNEPEBETAEET DEENRER
o EEBEMEEBEBASNEEFENRATE(RERETLE
E39BESET)ES -

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in
these transactions were assessed by the directors based on
independent valuations prepared by firms of external valuers which
required the exercise of significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in relation to the forecast of future performance of the
entities acquired.
ZERXSHPEBAIRMNEERAEN AT EBEFREBINEMGE
EITAR BB (HEEITAME - EF BETERAE RMAEE - L
HEFMEBERBNARRKERANE -
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Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for
business acquisitions included the following:
BN BARFETHEBRRBFENSE
B BEMATEE:

° inspecting the sale and purchase
agreements and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the acquisitions
(including segregation of amounts from the
consideration payable related to transactions
other than the business acquisitions) with
reference to the terms set out in the sale and
purchase agreements and the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

s TRHREEWMR UW2EEEHIMEANK
HEBRITEFERNRETHERBH K
BEENGEIE (B EEBUIEIAIN
WRS5EHENENKESESH)

° obtaining and inspecting the valuation
assessments prepared by the external
valuers engaged by the directors and on
which the directors’ assessment of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired
was based and assessing whether or not
there was indication of management bias;

e HEWERHEFMEINEGLEMERD
BEE  EFENZEFEEMNL HE
CEBEERBENQATE  WiERES
ERERATR

° assessing the external valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the assets being
valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

o FTEINEMERAER - LB REATMG
BEMME TERETHERE T
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The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

B Az BRI

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHNESTNATEEZEE

We identified the accounting for business acquisitions as a key
audit matter because of the significant impact the acquisitions have
on the consolidated financial statements and because assessing
the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired can be inherently
subjective and requires significant judgement and estimation which
increase the risk of error or potential management bias.

B EBREN ST RET A HEREFEE  DAKES
BHEEMBRANEAZERAASEBEERABERTENT
BAE FEFHUELRFEETERAE R BB T HRK
BEERERINRR

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, discussing with the external
valuers, without the presence of
management, the valuation methodologies
adopted in assessing the fair values of the
assets and liabilities acquired, including
intangible assets, and challenging the
assumptions and critical judgements which
impacted their valuation by comparing these
assumptions and critical judgements with
market data, our past experience of similar
transactions and the Group’s business plan
supporting the acquisitions;
EHRMNOABEEEROHE T - EINE
HEMNR(EEREETNESHNERT)E
EREE(BREEVEE) RABQAFET
MAEMRANGEREZ - BREETER
B8 R AR K B K ) B BR 77 35 B8R - AP
EREURSGTENBRELERE E5E2
RWIERIAN X EETHLE - BRZ
e E Y EV N

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the valuation
methodologies adopted by the external
valuers with reference to industry standards
and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
EHRMOABEEEROHE T - 2E17
FRERBITGAT LB T - fTEINE
AR PSR A E B (EE %

evaluating management’s assessment of the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets
with reference to future operating plans and
our knowledge of the related industry; and
BERRKETERBRBERMEEAITE
TR THEBEERAEREEEMGA
RERTE &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
acquisitions with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

2ERTETEBNRE - ThEGEHHB
HRERANEBUBEZIHNBE -
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

90 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

B Az BRI
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

92

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

,—L—,/_\ O N\ /
N ([T E\@_

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ —Z -ZTF=A=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAE7T5R)

2020 2019
—B-FF —FTNF
(Restated)
(F2E 7))
(Note)
(PfF5E)
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
REVENUE S 1,948,500,643 1,852,452,059
Other net income and gains Hi A RIS F 58 6 38,571,647 20,536,990
Cost of inventories and consumables FERFEMRAR (215,636,061)  (227,286,741)
Registered practitioner expenses EfEERAY (297,275,711)  (207,277,549)
Employee benefit expenses EEEBFMAX (5639,871,422)  (446,391,375)
Marketing and advertising expenses MSHEENESHY (124,443,256) (154,538,138)
Rental and related expenses He REERE (42,662,695) (175,578,191)
Credit card expenses (50,218,456) (46,728,372)
Depreciation-right-of-use assets heE—FREEE (162,870,997)
Depreciation-owned property, plant WE-BEYE BEMK
and equipment (69,963,994) (48,987,080)
Charitable donations (1,736,885) (3,273,956)
Finance costs 7 (18,063,642) (2,743,135)
Other expenses (103,926,837) (113,481,088)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures 515 & &1 2 5% TR E 18 121,046 3,372,057
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 360,523,380 450,080,481
Income tax 11(a) (50,251,407) (65,575,517)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 310,271,973 384,504,964
Attributable to: AT F AR -
Equity shareholders of the Company RABERZIEER 286,576,155 361,105,819
Non-controlling interests 23,695,818 23,399,145
310,271,973 384,504,964
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12
Attributable to equity RN PSR R EG
shareholders of the Company
Basic 29.1 36.7
Diluted 29.0 36.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

e B@mR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZ - -—FHF =-A=+—HIFE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the comparative information is not
restated. See note 2.3.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has recorded as revenue for
the provision of performance marketing and related services and the
comparative information is restated to conform with the current year’s
presentation. See note 40.

The notes on pages 103 to 250 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note
28(b)

GEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51R)

AEBER=-T—AFMNA—BRALETEY
FEREREAMBREENE165 - Btk
BEHIWESY| - F2HME2.3 -

BE_T-ZTHFE=-A=+—-HIL¥E FKEHE
Eﬁ?zﬁ%éwﬁ(’*ﬁﬁ&*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&i‘%ﬁ SWA - LA R
BE - UM EAFENZ2HRIA - R0

F103EFE 250 E MBI S E MR —

o

- BRENEMEN T AR A RERERZR
BFIEEN M 28(0) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BmMEM TR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 =2 —Z T - A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAE7T5R)

2020 2019
—E-SF —T—NF
(Note)
(FF5E)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 310,271,973 384,504,964
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHM2E RS
FOR THE YEAR
ltem that may be reclassified HignEmonEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BEMWIEE
Exchange differences on translation of BEEBIBINGE R T
financial statements of subsidiaries B IR R A IE =58
outside Hong Kong, net of HK$nil tax MBRTETHRIE 1,181,215 497,941
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZERRERE
FOR THE YEAR 311,453,188 385,002,905
Attributable to: AT & IR -
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREFRIE 287,757,370 361,603,760
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 23,695,818 23,399,145
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FARERRERE
FOR THE YEAR 311,453,188 385,002,905

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the comparative information is not

restated. See note 2.3.

The notes on pages 103 to 250 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NN

FAR IR

At 31 March 2020 R —ZE-ZTF=HF=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51R)

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-hEF
(Note)
(FF&E)
Notes HK$ HK$
B &E BT BIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENREE 13 725,180,462 294,686,071
Investment properties "EYE 13 189,000,000 232,000,000
Goodwiill pgee 14 155,437,016 99,099,208
Intangible assets B EE 15 115,086,308 89,493,118
Interest in joint ventures REEDENER 16 50,729,399 37,051,803
Rental and other deposits HeREMZES 19 51,837,382 35,847,456
Prepayments AT FRIE 19 102,782,281 104,513,425
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFABSHNEREE
profit or loss 20 90,584,807 37,356,812
Deferred tax assets FEERIAE B 26(b) 22,324,635 12,239,612
Total non-current assets FEMBEELE 1,502,962,290 942,287,505
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 17 59,633,764 52,080,763
Trade receivables B 5 W HIE 18 79,025,977 104,668,285
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIR - 12 REMERGRIE
receivables 19 188,887,999 198,690,058
Deferred costs IRIEA A 5 73,014,766 80,455,099
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBENEREE
profit or loss 20 110,960,036 599,830,857
Tax recoverable BEEEE 26(a) 19,392,130 =
Pledged time deposits B E TR 21 - 2,001,612
Time deposits with original maturity over R %I EA H 4838 =& A 89 F Bi1E K
3 months 21 950,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREFEEY 21 520,441,937 366,969,663
Total current assets MEVEEBE 1,052,306,609 1,404,696,337
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables B S RIR 22 35,719,130 21,879,324
Other payables and accruals E b e A MBS E A 23 122,876,724 144,054,378
Bank borrowings RITHENK 24 261,950,991 497,713,680
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 161,190,926 5,882,739
Deferred revenue EIEWT A 25 436,619,721 420,461,620
Current tax payable FEAT BN ERR 18 26(a) 50,938,562 34,936,345
Total current liabilities MENE FEERE 1,069,296,054 1,124,928,086
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ RE(BE) EEFHE
ASSETS (16,989,445) 279,768,251
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABAR

LIABILITIES

1,485,972,845

1,222,055,756

BEERBRERASEERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Re BRI LR

At 31 March 2020 R—ZE-_ZF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 7T37R)

2020 2019
—B-FF —FTNF
(Note)
(FF5E)
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEAE 26(b) 11,127,747 6,159,759
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 296,761,978 40,889,102
Provision for reinstatement costs EENAEE 23 8,550,000 9,110,000
Total non-current liabilities EME B FEERE 316,439,725 56,158,861
NET ASSETS EESESE 1,169,533,120 1,165,896,895
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B A R
Share capital A& A 28(c) 9,853 9,845
Reserves 1 1,002,717,654 1,041,988,419
Total equity attributable to equity ARrERRRELERERE
shareholders of the Company 1,002,727,507 1,041,998,264
Non-controlling interests TR RE R 166,805,613 123,898,631
TOTAL EQUITY XA 1,169,533,120 1,165,896,895

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the comparative information is not

restated. See note 2.3.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

June 2020.

Lee Gabriel
EER
Director

EF

The notes on pages 103 to 250 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

== N\ 7
LEREBE

/\\/ \

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-Z -TF - A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANARERAEL
Shares held
for Share
Award  Share-based Non-
Share Share Scheme  compensation Merger Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
(note 28(d)(i)  (note 28(d)(v))  (ote28(d)(vi)  (note2B(c)i)) (note 28(c)i) (Note)
AROZE
HERET  ARBRAN
R& ROKE  KERE HekE RHEE EifE REEH &t FERER EHaE
(W8 (WEosy)  (KEos(n)  (WE28(a)i)  (KiE28(e)in) (Kisk)
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
ik B AL AL BT BT # E B A i
At 1 April 2018 R=F-)\EmA-A 9,834 715,110,627 80,282,064) 6,083,948 19,608 (808460, 180,715,202 820,848,705 16,665,278 837,513,983
Changes n equity for 2018; ZE-NENERED
Proft for the year R = = = = = - 31105819 361,105,819 23,399,145 384,504,964
Other comprehensive income Afp2EhE - - - - - 497,941 - 497941 - 497941
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZENEEE = S = = - 4794 361106819 361,603,760 23399145 385,002,906
Issuance of shares B1kia 280 1l 4891689 - (1,370429) - - - 3521275 - 3521215
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KEHBAF - - - - - - - - 29413037 29413037
Disposalof partl nfrests I subsiares LENBATEAER - - - - - - 148645 11486425 BOTST9 20144004
Disposal of subsiciries that resulted in HERR AL EONELR
Joss of control = = = = = = = = 12,138,131 12,138,131
Recognion of equity-satfled share-based DNERRE R AER
compensation: Shere award and share option Be: ﬂﬁﬁﬁmiﬂﬁ% 8,3 S - - 6315327 - - - 6,316,327 - 6316327
Recogniton of share-based payment for SR il
shares of subsidiaries granted to
non-controling interests - - - 1,389,570 - - - 1,389,570 483,809 6,226,379
Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payment for shere option ssued as : ’_ {8 Wﬁﬁx it ‘A
part o the consideration to acquire SEE LR BERE
an unlisted equity investment 30 o - - 6,958,000 - - - 6,958,000 - 6,958,000
Forfeiure of shares under Shere Award Scheme RERGREERRRG % - - - 407,081) - - 407,081 - - -
Disposal of shares held for Share Award Scheme R ERRH £BFrERENRD 0 - - 80280064 - - - 30808808 120,085,862 - 10088602
Dividends peid to non-controling interests R THERERARE - o o - - - - - (321,348 (3.211,348)
Contrbutions from non-controling interests FARESTE - - - - - - - - 32,000,000 32,000,000
Dividends declared E ERS 20) o o o = - - (290210660 (290.210860) - (290210660
t 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019
) 9845 720,002,316 - 18,969,339 19,608 (310519) 303307675 1041998264 123898631  1,165,896,89%
Changes in equity for 2020: R-E-EEEREE:
Proft for the year FRER - - - - - - 286576155 266,576,155 23695818 310,271,073
Other comprefensive income HME% - - - - - 1,181,215 - 1,181,215 - 1,181,215
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 1,181,215 286,576,155 287,757,370 23695818 311,453,188
Issuance of shares 20cl0) 8 3,824,605 - (851,763) - - - 2,972,850 - 2,072,850
Acquisitions of subsiciaries - - - - - - - - 17,178,600 17,178,600
Acquisition of partal interests in a subsidiary U&E&W E - - - - - - (929,859) (929,859) 1,675,036 45,471
Disposal of partal interests n subsidiaries HEHBAT - - - - - - 5,148,189 5,148,189 4451811 9,600,000
Disposal of a subsicary that resuited ﬁ%%%iﬁﬁ‘l%ﬂ%@ﬁ
in loss of control - - - - - - - - (952,724) (952,724)
Recogniton of equity-seted share-based BRNERRE RO AARNE
compensation: Share option Bhi k| - - - 6,631,605 - - - 6,631,605 - 6,631,605
Recognition of share-based payment for shares of s‘vﬂi% FRESAHELT
subsidiaries granted to non-controling intrests DR Hﬁm - - - 3,062,445 - - - 3,962,445 3,200,309 7,261,754
Contrbutions from non-controling inerests RS - - - - - - - - 600,049 600,049
Diidends peid to non-controling inerests N FEARER RS = - - - - - - - (040917 (1.040917)
Dividend declared BERRS 280) = - - - - - (44813357) (344813357 - (344813357)
At31 March 2020 R-B-3Ezf=1-A 9,853 723,826,921 - 26,711,626 19,608 870,696 249,288,803 1,002,727,507 166,805,613  1,169,533,120
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the M3 AEBEERZT-NFHA—ARBLKETEN
modified retrospective approach, under which the comparative YA E X ER @%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%&,ﬁu £16%:  Huttt
information is not restated. See note 2.3. REHWEST - F2HME2.3 -
The notes on pages 103 to 250 form part of these financial F103EFH 250 B MM sE A It E B SR T A —
statements. 2B o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mARBETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 =2 —Z T - A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAE7T5R)

2020 2019
—E-SF —T—NF
(Note)
(FF5E)
Notes HK$ HKS
B 5T BT BIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Profit before tax B 758 A1 52 ) 360,523,380 450,080,481
Adjustments for: FEE -
Interest on bank borrowings and IRITERRELFE
overdrafts 7 4,201,036 2,712,119
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNER 7 13,862,606 31,016
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 6 (726,088) (626,279)
Interest income from listed debt EFHEHIRENFEMRA
investments 6 (359,326) (11,390,581)
Dividend income from unlisted FLEMREESH
investment funds % S U A 6 (33,557) (5,013,624)
Depreciation e 8 232,834,991 48,987,080
Impairment loss on goodwill HERERIE 6 - 7,279,594
Impairment loss on other receivables E R IB R E R 18 8 3,621,029 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EE 8 12,948,304 12,758,082
Share of profits less losses of DEEE R RIEE
joint ventures (121,046) (3,372,057)
Equity-settled share-based payment DEREE RN ABER 2
expenses NEEX 8 13,893,359 12,541,706
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERB AR 6 (3,367,632) (2,149,749)
Loss/(gain) on disposals and write-off & RMEEYE - BB REE
of property, plant and equipment mEs1E, (M) 8 37,732 (4,098,377)
Unrealised and realised (gains)/losses BAFEFABENEREE
on financial assets at fair value MAZHENEEER
through profit or loss, net (=), EBFHE 6 (18,116,197) 9,207,775
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment WEMENNTFEEE
properties (Yea) 6 6,000,000 (1,417,000)
Foreign exchange differences HNE ZER 2,554,404 1,769,615
627,752,995 517,299,801
Increase in inventories FEHM (5,107,951) (20,179,611)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 2 5 fE U sk IBR A (38 40) 32,337,881 (38,745,229)

Increase in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in deferred costs
Increase in trade payables

BNRIR - e MEMER
FRIRE AN

BIER AR A,/ (45h0)

B 5 e SIRIE N

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and H it & {718 % fE =1 &

accruals
Decrease in deferred revenue

OB A),/ 38
SEEU AR D

(11,808,677)
7,440,333
9,210,792

(17,247,902)
(828,946)

(170,535,681)
(46,550,169)
12,512,754

46,525,208
(4,209,142)

1 00 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mMeaREemER
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ =L -_TF=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51R)

2020 2019
—ECEF ZE-NF
(Note)
(FF&E)
Notes HK$ HK$
Ees BT BT
Cash generated from operations KEEENRS 641,748,525 296,117,931
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EERNER (61,398,397) (565,185,832)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BENBEABRINGIE (3,853,693) (2,481,301)
Net cash generated from operating EEEE TSRS F R
activities 576,496,435 238,450,798
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Bank interest received BUERTTFIE 726,088 626,279
Payments for purchases of financial BERAFETABEN
assets at fair value through profit ERMEEMNR
or loss (45,126,728) (436,824,650)
Payments for purchases of intangible BEEFEENNR
assets - (11,270,001)
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets & A (EET AR
at fair value through profit or loss EREEFISHIA 498,885,751 292,557,824
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE  BELREDN
plant and equipment FriS k18 - 40,429,079
Interest received from listed debt B ETEBIRENF S
investments 359,326 11,390,581
Dividend received from a joint venture BREETEMNRRE 960,000 1,280,000
Dividend received from unlisted BUWFEEMIRERESHARE
investment funds 33,557 5,013,624
Acquisitions of businesses, net U B 275 SR T 31 (67,205,600) 4,453,846
Acquisition of joint ventures WEAEDE = (4,765,746)
Disposals of subsidiaries, net HERBAR)FE (3,504,986) (152,354)
Decrease in time deposits with original R 2| Hi B 838 =& A &
maturity over 3 months and TE BB 3 M3 R TE HR 17 3K
pledged time deposits VE% 1,051,612 396,529,778
Payments for purchases of property, BEME  HEMKE
plant and equipment EofRE=N (69,794,744)  (276,212,743)
Payments for purchase of an investment §& B &Y ZE BT
property - (40,183,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEFME(FB)IR4 %58
investing activities 316,384,276 (17,127,483)

BEERBRERASEERAT 101
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CONSOUDATHDCASHFLOWH;MWEMENT

= A
“m i%jiumgaﬁé
For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= —

“ERE=ZA=+—HILHFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA%JE?//T )

2020 2019
—E-EF —NnEF
(Note)
(FF5E)
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Interest paid on bank borrowings BTRITER RS FIE
and overdrafts 21(b) (4,201,036) (2,712,119)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEREMNELRILD 21(b) (149,200,701) (1,354,651)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSHFBEI D 21(b) (13,862,606) (31,016)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings B RITEFTERIE 21(b) 145,000,000 100,180,223
Repayment of bank borrowings BBIBITER 21(b) (379,215,888) (161,320,059)
Proceeds from sale and leaseback ERBRILHEEFIE
arrangement 21(b) - 46,000,000
Proceeds from disposals of shares HEMBRD ZETEEERN
held for Share Award Scheme R B PS8 - 120,085,862
Acquisition of partial interests in A =N E T
a subsidiary 745,177 -
Proceeds from disposal of partial HERBA 745 MY
interests in subsidiaries Frig T 9,600,000 20,144,004
Dividend paid AR B 28(b) (344,813,357)  (290,210,660)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests /< A% 2. T 3E1E AR A 25 (7,040,917) (3,211,348)
Issuance of shares BT 2,972,850 3,521,275
Contributions from non-controlling interests FE3Z2 gz T & 600,049 20,000,000
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFTEIR & %58 (739,416,429)  (148,908,489)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRSEEYEMFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 153,464,282 72,414,826
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MA—HMBEMREEED 366,969,663 295,481,085
Effect of changes in foreign YN FE RS BNy o 2L
exchange rates 7,992 (926,248)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS =A=+—HWEER
AT 31 MARCH BEZEEY 21(a) 520,441,937 366,969,663

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. Previously, cash payments under operating leases made by the
Group as a lessee of HK$147,090,764 were classified as operating
activities in the consolidated cash flow statement. Under HKFRS 16,
except for short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low value
assets and variable lease payments not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities, all other rentals paid on leases are now split into capital
element and interest element (see note 21(c)) and classified as financing
cash outflows. Under the modified retrospective approach, the

comparative information is not restated.

Further details on the impact of

the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2.3.

The notes on pages 103 to 250 form part of these financial

statements.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of
the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at L50
Langham Place Office Tower, 8 Argyle Street, Mong Kok,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of medical
and healthcare services.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing
Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 2.2 B HmREREE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and
the Group’s interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies.

Notwithstanding the net current liabilities of HK$16,989,445 as
at 31 March 2020, the Group’s consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
because the directors are of the opinion that the Group would
have adequate funds to meet its obligations, as and when they
fall due, having regard to the following:

(@) the Group is expected to generate positive operating
cash flows in connection with its principal activities; and

(o)  deferred revenue of approximately HK$437 million as at
31 March 2020 mainly relates to non-refundable prepaid
packages for which settlement (i.e. recognised as
revenue) is expected within one year without material
cash outflow.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.2.

1 04 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases,
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases —
incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the substance of
transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases,
except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
which remain substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to assess the effect that leases have
on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019.
The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective
approach and has therefore recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 April 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

B H AR I ot

2.3 St BREE

BRGNS CEMAT BBV BRE
R FEVBREENE16RHEERS
HARBMBRELMNER  ZFENR
BRTRAREER S MM ERER -

BREEMBRESERFE16REESI - Lt
EREAKEE R SURE BEEE MM
RANRBEIINRT AL BEBERNZE - K
SEYRERAEARNEMSRERRE
REVFTR] RIS AR -

BERVBRELANF165RHEE

ERMBHREERFZ16FTMABEGTE
AIFE17SREE RERRE - &8 (BRM&
BERBZEQ)FIANETLHELES
HE BRE(EAREZES)F155RLE
HE — HBAEBARELE(ERREZE
)R RAES REELREE AR ZHE
BEAE - EEABEASIAE -Gt RE
ERABARMEHERZERAREER
HERE HEBARIZEAXERENES
(EHREEDMEEBEEERERKIN -
HEAGRETREEGHERE7R -
ERNEHERHTE -

ERMBHREERE 165 H 5| ARME &
REEWRBEMRTE  NEFBRREMRET
HAEHERYBKN  MBERRAEES

N
MEMTE -

AEERE - T-NAFEUA-—RBONTER
BRI HMEENE 165 - AEBEERL
ERTEWE B ERERNRFTER
RENR_F—NFHUA - AR BIER
MR LRERNAUESES - BESRE
BFEGRTERETHRER

BEERBRERASEERAT
FE L 2019/20 1 05



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options applied

are set out below:

106

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to
the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the
basis of whether a customer controls the use of an
identified asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

The change in the definition on a lease does not have any
material impact on the Group’s lease arrangements.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead,
the Group is required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets which are exempt.
As far as the Group is concerned, these newly capitalised
leases are primarily in relation to leases of properties as
disclosed in note 13. For an explanation of how the
Group applies lessee accounting, see note 3.1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 April 2019),
the Group determined the length of the remaining lease
terms and measured the lease liabilities for the leases
previously classified as operating leases at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 April 2019.
The weighted average of the incremental borrowing rates
used for determination of the present value of the
remaining lease payments was 2.7%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

(i) the Group elected not to apply the requirements of
HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or before 31 March
2020;

(i) when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a
single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar economic
environment); and

@iy when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied
on the previous assessment for onerous contract
provisions as at 31 March 2019 as an alternative to
performing an impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS A P ot

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 23 BHEEH @)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) EBUBRRELEUNE16REE &)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b. RBAANEHEBEIRBESE
(Continued) (#&)
The following table reconciles the operating lease TREIWRZE—NAF=A=+—H
commitments as disclosed in note 33 as at 31 March E’j%(‘%fﬂfé\ﬁkﬁ*(ﬁ’\I?ﬁISS HEE) HlR
2019 to the opening balance for lease liabilities “E-NFUA—HE®ERHEARE
recognised as at 1 April 2019: B HA R 45 SR I ER
1 April 2019
—
MA—H
HK$
BT
Operating lease commitments at 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1+—HK
4R B RE 523,876,288
Less: commitments relating to leases exempt B BERA S & AL B E E MRS R R IE
from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases with — REAE R R
remaining lease term ending on or before R-E-_TF=A=+—H
31 March 2020 2 B JEm B AT & (7,986,567)
Add: lease payments for the additional periods where il : A& BR A E & IR HETE #E1TE
the Group considers it reasonably certain that B Tﬂg TRYEESNERR B9
it will exercise the extension options HEHT 40,295,275
556,184,996
Less: total future interest expenses W R B ke (26,674,681)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FIspHEMZKARE  FA-_E—NF
discounted using the incremental borrowing /YR — B MIG 2 & 50F KELIR
rate at 1 April 2019 529,510,315
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised m:R=—T—-AF=A=+—H
as at 31 March 2019 EAZHEHERE 46,771,841
Total lease liabilities recognised at 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFMNA—BEERD
HEBERE 576,282,156
The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously HBAASEAKERENHESHAN
classified as operating leases have been recognised at FAEEECRESNIREEAE
an amount equal to the amount recognised for the EHERLENSFAER °

remaining lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on
leases previously classified as finance leases is concerned,
the Group is not required to make any adjustments at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, other than
changing the captions for the balances. Accordingly,
instead of “obligations under finance leases”, these
amounts are included within “lease liabilities”, and the
depreciated carrying amount of the corresponding leased
assets is identified as right-of-use assets. There is no
impact on the opening balance of equity.

The following table summarises the impacts of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position:
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BEMBREE

b.

BIE16 R & (41)

FAANESTREEZIRBESE
(4&)

?ﬁ%%%ﬁ’é@ﬂ%i&if‘i@u”16?E¥TL
"*Eﬁmﬁﬁﬁfﬁ’ﬁﬂiﬂ%ﬁkm 2
C AREEBEARBEREREEY
%*&%EE'J E165% 8 RETEMH
MR RS REVIRRERSIN o B
ZEeBAAHEABIMIERE
HEAE| HEHEEENKFE
EE@TED‘FE%%U%EFH%EE c A
MNESR IR E

TRBARABT M HREERIE 16
RHAEE RSP HRARNTE -

Carrying  Capitalisation Carrying
amount at of operating amount at
31 March 2019 lease contracts 1 April 2019
RZFT—NF mE R=ZF-NF
—A=+—H HEEH MA—H
RERTE (B B BRI E
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
BIT BT BT
Line items in the consolidated TRMNEBMBERE
statement of financial position ZEBFE16 5T EN
impacted by the adoption of HRABERRE
HKFRS 16: EE :
Property, plant and equipment M - BENEE 294,686,071 529,510,315 824,196,386
Total non-current assets FRBEEHAE 942,287,505 529,510,315 1,471,797,820
Lease liabilities (current) HEBEORE) 5,882,739 142,966,897 148,849,636
Current liabilities REBaE 1,124,928,086 142,966,897 1,267,894,983
Net current assets REBEEFHE 279,768,251  (142,966,897) 136,801,354
Total assets less current liabilites BEABERREAME 1,222,055,756 386,543,418 1,608,599,174
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBEGERS) 40,889,102 386,543,418 427,432,520
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEHALE 56,158,861 386,543,418 442,702,279
Net assets BEEFE 1,165,896,895 - 1,165,896,895
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

FERRMIEE

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

110

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Impact on the financial result, segment results and
cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019, the Group as a lessee
is required to recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This results in a positive impact on the profit
before tax (excluding finance costs) in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as compared to
the results if HKAS 17 had been applied during the year.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest element (see
note 21(b)). These elements are classified as financing
cash outflows, similar to how leases previously classified
as finance leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather
than as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although total cash
flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of cash
flows within the consolidated cash flow statement (see
note 21(c)).

Leasehold investment property

Under HKFRS 16, the Group is required to account for all
leasehold properties as investment properties when
these properties are to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation (“leasehold investment properties”).
The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the Group previously elected to apply HKAS 40,
Investment properties to account for all of its leasehold
properties that were held for investment properties as at
31 March 2019. Consequentially, these leasehold
investment properties continued to be carried at fair
value.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
e. Lessor accounting

The Group leases out certain properties as the lessor of
operating leases. The accounting policies applicable to
the Group as a lessor remain substantially unchanged
from those under HKAS 17.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or where appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Interest in joint ventures is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
joint ventures, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures (after applying the ECL (as
defined below) model to such long term interests where
applicable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred (except those
segregated from business combinations) is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the sellers of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

If the business acquisition is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill at the end of each financial year. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business acquisition
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities and
unlisted equity securities and unlisted funds, other than
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are set out
below.

Investments in debt securities and unlisted equity securities
and unlisted funds are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classifications.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the effective interest
method.

—  fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
(recycling), if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows
and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in profit
or loss of expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds (Continued)

Investments other than equity investments (Continued)

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained
profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from
an equity investment, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Properties leased for own use  Over the lease term

Building held for own use Over the shorter of the lease
situated on leasehold land term and their estimated
useful lives

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Operation equipment 10-20%
Office equipment 20%
Computers 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are
still in the course of construction or development at the end of
the reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note 3.1
section “Revenue recognition”.

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest was classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which had been
classified as an investment property was accounted for as if it
were held under a finance lease, and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as were applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments were accounted for as described in note 3.1 section
“Leased assets”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business acquisition is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
subsequently amortised over the assets’ estimated useful lives
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite useful lives as set out below.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Customer lists and relationships 10 to 33%
Licence 10 to 33%
Club memberships and school debentures  Indefinite
Trademark 710 33%

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. For an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually, whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1

122

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

() Asalessee

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

i)

As a lessee (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are carried at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS A P ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

() Asalessee (Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant and equipment’ and presents lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

For sale and leaseback transactions, the Group
considers whether the initial transfer of the
underlying asset to the buyer-lessor is a sale. The
Group applies HKFRS 15 to determine whether a
sale has taken place.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is a sale, the
Group derecognises the underlying asset and
applies the lessee accounting model to the
leaseback — the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at the retained portion of the previous
carrying amount (i.e. at cost), and recognises only
the amount of any gain or loss related to the rights
transferred to the lessor.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is not a sale, the
Group continues to recognise the underlying asset,
and recognises a financial liability for any amount
received from the buyer-lessor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, was or contained a lease if
the Group determined that the arrangement
conveyed a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination was
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and was regardless of whether
the arrangement took the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

In the comparative period, assets that were
held by the Group under leases which
transferred to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership were
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which did not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group were classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

126

Leased assets (Continued)

() As alessee (Continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019 (Continued)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquired the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset,
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets were
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was provided at
rates which wrote off the cost or valuation of
the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group would obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset.
Impairment losses were accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policies (as
set out in note 3.1 section “Impairment of non-
financial assets”). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments were charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
were incurred.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

3.1 EXEHBEBE @

HEEE @)
(i) MFREEAGE)

B Z—F—AFMHAH—HEIEHD
BE (%)

(i) ABMEHEBANEE

MRAEBEUREHER
BEEMNERE EaF
HERHEEERFEN
EEAENRRE(NE
REZE)NSBCHERY
¥ BB KA Mk
REZRRNARERER
SIRMEHERE - TE
BEBEMNHBHEEDRN
ATRAHR(NAEERA
ERBSEENMAR)A
M EERAKEENLL
REtiR - BEBELRESR
BRARRCANPFE3.1( 3E
TREERE] &
#H) - HEMNKAZHRE
ERgst \HEHANE
& e PEAES
BRABMAROLE R
Ef - EREL
VEEHHIRE ABSE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

i)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019 (Continued)

(i)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group had the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases were charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received were recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were
incurred.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with
accounting policy as described in note 3.1 section
“Revenue recognition”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit loss and impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured at amortised
cost, including time deposits, cash and cash equivalents, lease
receivables and trade and other receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

— trade and other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate; and

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the measurement
of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1

130

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 3.1 section “Revenue recognition” is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
— abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises and is included in “other net
income and gains”.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of
discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is
the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses as set out in
note 3.1 section “Credit loss and impairment of financial
assets”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy as set out in note 3.1 section “Credit
loss and impairment of financial assets”.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy as set out in
note 3.1 section “Borrowing costs”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Macau are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension schemes.

1 36 Union Medical Healthcare Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

EBEEH
T & BB A

e FRIEA EHFREFEEREN
AN EBIRHBRBIRE M FE R -
REBONKIGEEREEREAERE
2 RIUREINHZFHE -

RAKEREE

RIFCGRFERTERFTBRD)  AEES
ETHARERSENRER I EEMNR
HEATRSRAENEE(TRESE) -
HHBERBEAREENEAF SR —ELL
BIEHE - RIFBRIE S SRR EHRE
TN EEERANBREAING - 8&
TR EMEERARENEENR - A A
BUEEESHA -REBESTEHM
A BT AEBEREBREMEHKEE DI -
AL B R MR TE & R8I H R H R
EHEBENEE  HEEBRERESEZH
BEBRBEHRARER - MASEED
SR REFBREER D

AEBEREARKMBE((HE]) KR
RENMBARNEBASERAMT T
FRERNPREREE - ZFHMEAQF
AP REBRSFENELHK  2BAE
TERAN—EBNEL - REPREKRS
SHEIERAN - SR ER BR RME R HNER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment
Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as employee expenses with a corresponding
increase in share-based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is included
in the amount recognised in share capital or share premium for
the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EAESTHBEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share Award Scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”), under which
the Group receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (shares) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

— excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Under the Share Award Scheme, employees (excluding core
connected persons as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Group are entitled to the shares for which are held in trust by
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) for
the benefit of the employees. The Trustee may be instructed to
buy shares from the market using the funds held by the
Trustee. Details of outstanding shares can be referred to note
29.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share awards given by the Group’s subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiaries of the Group are awarded to certain
registered practitioners in respect of their future services for the
Group. The fair value of such shares is recognised as
registered practitioner expenses with a corresponding increase
in either the share-based compensation reserve or non-
controlling interests within equity, depending on such shares
awarded are attributable to the Group or the non-controlling
shareholders of the subsidiaries.

The fair value of such share awards is spread over the
expected vesting period, which is consistent with the expected
service period of these registered practitioners. The expected
service period is reviewed annually and the expense charged
to profit or loss is adjusted prospectively from the date of
change of the expected service period.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the end
of each of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business acquisition and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any

unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of

140

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
acquisition and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS A P ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@ Most of the services are sold on a prepaid basis. The
service period of a prepaid package is generally one
year.

Generally there are multiple components within the
package, the deferred revenue of each component is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

Deferred revenue is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue, such deferred revenue is regarded as contract
liability in accordance with HKFRS 15.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
when the services have been rendered to customers.

The Group’s customers may not utilise all of their
contracted rights within the service period. Such
unutilised services are referred to as breakage. An
expected breakage amount is determined by historical
experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to
the pattern of services utilised by the customers.

1 42 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

3.1 EXEHBEBE @

LI& A EE 7% ;it)

BRARNEEN KA R E R AR RERB R
HFF BRI T

@ ARBABRBARNSTALE - AHE
ERGBESH—F -

—&mE EEABRZERS ¥
HMAOMBEERASER/ANE NS
EBRAENAELD - HRBEIEL
EEEEEANEB NAHENMBEEM
NAR# 2 FRDE

EEWAER PR B R K
AR X HRERER  BRELTEA
REBBUHREERNEAS TR
BHARE-

BB PR AR B R R AR WA R S
RE AERENEE - WAKEA
S AR R AN 0 AN S B T SR AR R UL AT
WEH(E  TERRBEMNAME - £
FERT - RIS RERARME R KR -

KERHBREORAERBGRESE
ﬁﬁ%%b(ﬁ@ﬁ/u

AEBEXPHERBMANGEREM
B AR o AR &R FIZ
TRRERROERN - EERAFOTE
HIOK 62 A B9 BE ) & B A I8 TE AR B T
E 0 WIRE P AR A RIS R A A Bl
FER AN o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the service
period, after the effect of previously recognised expected
breakage amount, is fully recognised in profit or loss.

Services which are not sold on a prepaid basis is
recognised in full when the services have been rendered
to customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts the products.

Commission income and marketing service income are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial asset or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has
been established.

B H AR I ot

3.1 EXEHBEBE @

WA TERR ()

@)

(%)

REET R SRR E MR IR AR E AR
MEE - IR B R (AR SRR T
WAZBBN B R -

I FELATERT 38 & B9 BR 75 Ty i R 41t
RIS TR PR 28R -

HEERKWATCRFPHBEAEMEXE®
RFRERR ©

BEWARTIHHERERE KA - £
HABRARR TS S 3R o

RELLHERKRESWRAEERE
ENMEAREES BN REHER
HEES—EEFERRERHEESR
EEEMNFZEXRRIN - IRAESE
RERBEERREEEENFFE

METH —aB 7 -

MEWATIABR M EEIZN & BE
ENFEFHREEE A (WEE) 8
A ARRR S WABERESRE
EREFENRER

FLETREBRBUA  REELRRW
ERAS RO R ) B R

BEERBRERASEERAT
FE L 2019/20 1 43



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.1 EXBHBEME@®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (‘HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of an operation outside
Hong Kong and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of that operation and translated
at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Deferred costs

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer,
which represent sales commissions and bonuses paid or
payable to the staff or third party agents, are capitalised as
deferred costs in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Such costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the deferred revenue to which they relate is
recognised as revenue.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

@iy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

3.1

146

FERRMIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity).

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3.1

3.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty

Notes 29 and 30 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of share award and
share options granted. Other key assumptions concerming the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.2 ERETHE R M &

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Business acquisitions

For the business acquisitions undertaken by the Group, the Group
first segregates the amount related to transactions other than
business acquisition and then allocates the costs of the acquisition
to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair value on the date of acquisition. This process is
commonly referred to as the purchase price allocation. As part of
the purchase price allocation, the Group is required to determine
the fair value of any identifiable intangible assets acquired. The
determination of the fair value of the intangible assets acquired
involves certain judgement and estimates. These judgements can
include, but are not limited to, the cash flows that the intangible
assets is expected to generate in the future.

The fair values of the identifiable intangible assets were determined
by the Group with inputs from the independent appraisers using
mainly the discounted cash flow method of the income approach.
Future cash flows are predominantly based on the historical
pricing and expense levels, taking into consideration the relevant
market size and growth factors, and involves making a number of
assumptions including growth rates. The resulting cash flows are
then discounted at a rate reflecting specific risks related to the
relevant operation.

A change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible
assets would have an offsetting effect on the amount of
goodwill recognised from the acquisition and would change
the amount of amortisation expense recognised related to
those identifiable intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of assets

The Group performs annual impairment test on goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, and also performs
impairment assessment on the carrying amounts of other assets
when indication of impairment is identified to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Management assesses
the differences between the carrying amount and recoverable
amount and makes provision for impairment loss. Any change in
the assumptions adopted in calculating the recoverable amount
would increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss and
affect the Group’s profit or loss and financial position.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and lease receivables is
assessed and estimated by management based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and assessment of both current
and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date. Any increase or decrease in such estimation of credit loss
allowance would affect the Group’s profit or loss in future
years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.2 ERETHE R M @)

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Revenue

Revenue recognition on provision of services is dependent on
the estimation of the utilisation pattern of each type of services.
Based on the Group’s historical experience, the Group makes
estimates of an expected amount of breakage. Actual utilisation
may be higher or lower than those estimated at the end of
each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and
profit recognised in future years.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
depreciated and amortised on a straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews annually the useful
lives of these assets and their residual values, if any. The
depreciation and amortisation expenses for future years are
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and products. Upon the
acquisition of Prime Inspire Limited (see note 31(a)),
management also identities performance marketing as an
identifiable segment. Accordingly, the Group has three
reporting segments as follows:

(@  Medical;

(b)  Aesthetic medical, beauty and wellness and sale of
skincare, healthcare and beauty products; and

(c)  Performance marketing.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
management monitors the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of investment properties,
interest in joint ventures and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Segment liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, provision for
reinstatement costs, lease liabilities relating to properties leased
for own use, deferred revenue, current tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

The segment revenue of the Group is based on the type of
services provided to the customers. Revenue and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred
by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that bank
interest income, unrealised and realised gains/losses on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net, rental
income from investment properties, fair value gain/loss on
investment properties, dividend income from unlisted
investment funds, interest income from listed debt investments,
share of profits less losses of joint ventures and head office
and other corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R %5 Rk B

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REQIER (#)
(Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEIEE  EBEENEEE)
Aesthetic medical, beauty Performance
and wellness and sale of skincare, marketing
Medical healthcare and beauty products (Note (ii) Total
ZEBE RERBLERBIR ENEy
BRI HERR RERZZER (R i) gt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“$-8%  -F-)f  CECEE “I-0F ZBCEE “I-0F ZE2ERE CTNE
(Restated) (Restated)
(%5 (@mE3))
(Notes {i & (i)
(W0 R
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT iy AT BT BT BT BT
Reportable segment revenue EECHELIN 623,247,783 522841849 1,262,392463 1313956512 66,247,605 15653698 1,051,887,851  1,852452,050
Less: Inter-segment revenug W AEERA - S = - (367,208 - (387,20 -
Revenue from external customers HRFMA 623,247,783 522,841,849  1,262,392463  1,313,956,612 62,860,397 15,603,698  1,948,500,643  1,852,452,059
Segment result PHEE 56,049,915 57,188,124~ 290,095,654 414,637,249 2,572,552 218446 348,718,121 472,043,819
Bank interest income RITHEHA 726,088 626,279
Interest income from listed debt IhEBRANNE 359,326 11,300,581
investments WA
Divicend income from FITREESHRE 33,557 5,013,624
unlisted investment funds WA
Unrealised and realised gains/ EATEABERN 18,116,197 (9,207,775)
(losses) on financial assets at SHEENKER
fair value through profitor loss, et~ R2EB M/
(BE)F8
Fair value (oss)/gain on investment — RENEATE(SE) (6,000,000) 1,417,000
properties /%
Rental income from nvestment RENFESHA 4003087  7,0735%
properties
Share of profts less losses of MEAELEENE 121,046 3,372,057
joint ventures EE
Others A (6,554,042) (41,648,629
Consoldated profit before tax GRRRET 360,523,380 450,080,481
Depreciation and amortisation FRNAEREH 90,259,158 25,360486 150,678,095 35,788,555 4,846,042 596,121 245,783,295 61,745,162
for the year
Impaiment loss on goodil BEHEER = - - 7,079,504 - - - 7,279,504
Impairment loss on other receivables  E NGB ERE = - 3,621,029 = - - 3,621,029 -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. K&
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aesthetic medical, beauty and
wellness and sale of skincare,

BRI

DEER (#)

DEEE  BEEREBE@R

healthcare and beauty Performance
Medical products marketing (Note (i) Total
BB ZAREEREUR
BRER HERE RERZZER e (W () Eh
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECEE CE-NF ZBIBE CR-AF ZBIBE RN ZEIRE CRf
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(EZ5) (5 (&5
(Notes
(1 and (i)
(M0 RM)
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
B BT B AT AR BT AR BT
Reportable segment assets TRELPEE 741508079 561868745 1,291,834224 841034651 80,652,354 37840974 2,113,994,657 1,440,744,370
Investment properties REmE 189,000,000 232,000,000
Interest n joint ventures REELENER 50,720,399 37,051,803
Financial assets at far vaue through 12 TEE A B8
proft or loss SREE 201,544,843 637,187,669
Consolidated total assets RABELE 2,555,268,899  2,346,983,842
Additions to non-current segment  ERFEFERHHHEAE
assets during the year (excluding (FEEEHRE)
business acquisitions) 25200519 1283733719 61,676,208 158,841,360 850,868 28005 87,749,655 287482744
Reportable segment liabilities TREHPEE 306,465,117 82800068 725569551 543796633 ~ 50,657,928 10004725 1,082,692591 636,601,426
Bark horowings RAER 261,950,991 497,713,680
Lease liabilties HERE 41,092,197 46,771,841
Consolidated total ibiltes FRaBaE 1,385,735,779  1,181,086,947
Notes: BisE
0] The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the i) AEEER-_ZT-—NFMOA —AHEBLER]
modified retrospective approach, under which the comparative EBEAERERE AN ERELERE 165 -
information is not restated. See note 2.3. B E BRI EET - FL2EME2.3 -
(i) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s management (ii) BE-Z-_TEFE=B=+—HILEE ' "&

also identified performance marketing as an identifiable segment.
The comparative information is also restated to conform with the

current year’s presentation. See note 40.

EERE A E S BRI AR # R HE -
BEEHIREES  LFEAFENERA
= o FHLREMIFE40 -

BEERBRERASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

FERRMIEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of () the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s investment properties, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and interest in joint
ventures and non-current portion of prepayments (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on (i) the physical location of the asset,
in the case of investment properties and property, plant and
equipment, (i) the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwill, and (iii)
the location of operations, in the case of interest in joint ventures
and non-current portion of prepayments.

4.

REHITER (#)

PEELE  BEREE @)

TREINEBATSRANMMENERNER
() AR ER B MR P A B (if) AN 52 B Y
REME WX BELRE  BEEE -

FEMREEPENEZ A RBERNRIED
ERBAD((HTERBDEE] - BFH
HWENEERIRERE AN ERD

UE - FTEIRDEEMNMIBMBEN()E
ENERMUE (REEMEARME - BKE
LE#EME)  (\EWoRAENEEVE
(Eﬁﬁﬁ/égﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁm>&(lll)k S E (T
/\%ﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁéﬁﬁl«x&?EH,TAIEE’HE”@JJ
DME) °

Information about geographical areas EREMBENER
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIEBEFHBRA BEFRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEH —ET-NF —ECEH —E-hF
(Restated)
€ 5=7))
(Note)
(B3E)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BT
Hong Kong & 1,814,326,578 1,734,854,402  1,267,398,141 821,533,844
Macau SEPY 45,720,770 39,272,276 4,658,647 1,278,001
The PRC F 88,453,295 78,325,381 66,158,678 34,031,780
1,948,500,643 1,852,452,059 1,338,215,466 856,843,625

Note: For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has recorded as
revenue for the provision of performance marketing and related
services and the comparative information is restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation. See note 40.

Information about major customers

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of
the Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue during each of the reporting periods
presented, no information about major customers in
accordance with HKFRS 8, Operating Segments, is presented.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

5. REVENUE 5.

Revenue represents the value of services rendered and the net
invoiced value of goods sold, excluding value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of trade discounts. An
analysis of revenue and deferred balance is as follows:

A

WAERERBHNEEREEH

EmrE

FFE (PRI MIBERSIEMEER - WE

BREMBE ST - WA RREZRR

D

wr

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
(Restated)
(&E7)
(Note)
(Ff3E)
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Revenue PN
Medical services BE RS 623,247,783 522,841,849
Aesthetic medical services EEBRERG 780,991,660 835,193,379
Beauty and wellness services ERLEBHIRG 419,220,564 399,751,560
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products  EE - RELRERE W 62,180,239 79,011,573
Performance marketing and related services 4% % %4 $% & #878 IR 7% 62,860,397 15,653,698

1,948,500,643

1,852,452,059

All of the above revenue is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 15.

Note: For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has recorded as
revenue for the provision of performance marketing and related
services and the comparative information is restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation. See note 40.

LB WATIRBEE MRS

155 TR ©

%82

Wi ME-B-FF=AST—BLTE AR
BB IR RS A -
HEAREES - AFAREENZBH -

EEulEL D

ERBRBREEERATH

FE L 2019/20

155



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR M RE

REVENUE (continued)
Deferred balances
The following table provides information about deferred

liabilities from contracts with customers and related deferred
costs.

'ONC ),

TREIEFTF ]G ORELRERAE
BRIER AR B HYL -

2020 2019

—ECEF —ZT-NEF

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Deferred revenue (note 25) BEEWA (FFE25) (436,619,721)  (420,461,620)
Deferred costs PEIERK AN 73,014,766 80,455,099

The deferred costs primarily relate to the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer, which represent sales
commissions and bonus paid or payable to the staff and third
party agents, are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Such costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the deferred revenue to which they relate is
recognised as revenue.

All of the capitalised deferred costs are expected to be
recognised in profit or loss within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the amount of such
incremental costs charged to profit or loss was HK$223,359,890
(2019: HK$228,846,359) and there was no impairment loss in
relation to the costs capitalised.

BHREEFAKNIEERAEHAHET
PR (FEE e BN B T B =77 RIZH) 8
EME ML) RERMBMRKRER - B
Fﬁﬁkﬁiﬁﬁiﬁi&tﬁf%’]LLW}\ﬁEu L RBA
H AR AT 1R 2 A RERR

Fﬁ*ﬁaéfZMtE’J LI A A FE RS Y — B
RIBERER ©

ﬁ%ti —TFE=ZA= + BIEFEE  »
8= ?D%Mﬁ%ﬁi ERAHNEESE
223,359,890‘}%77:(:?*j1$ 1 228,846,359
Bot)  WREREERMEKARRERES -

OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS B AR KT FEE
2020 2019
—EZH —E-NEF
(Restated)
(#2&E7)
(Note (ii)
(B & i)
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Bank interest income SRITR B UL A 726,088 626,279
Interest income from listed debt investments T & %54 & H) A1) 8 H&U\ 359,326 11,390,581
Dividend income from unlisted investment  3E F R EE S HIPR,
funds 33,557 5,013,624
Unrealised and realised gains/(losses) on AT EGFABGNEREEN
financial assets at fair value AEIR R EIRKkE
through profit or loss, net (E18) F538 18,116,197 (9,207,775)
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties % & M3 8 A & (E518 ) /Was (6,000,000) 1,417,000
Rental income from investment properties 1% & ¥ %5 4 A 4,003,087 7,073,525
Impairment loss on goodwill HERERE = (7,279,594)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (note (i)  HEHE R B AU R (F5E () 3,367,632 2,149,749
Others Hib 17,965,760 9,353,601
38,571,647 20,536,990

1 56 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AR I ot

6. OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 6. HUW AR WS FEE (&)

Notes: Mz -

0] During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group disposed of a [0} REBEEZZT-FF=A=+—HLFE K&

non-wholly-owned subsidiary, which is principally engaged in BEHE—MFENERHLHERENIERE MW
provision of marketing services, at a cash consideration of BATF - WEREA5,150,000/8 7T ° %KM B
HK$5,150,000. The net assets of this subsidiary immediately before AR EYEEHA N EEEMES1,045355
the disposal was HK$1,945,355, while the goodwill attributable to BT MM B R REEEER A790,237 %
this subsidiary was HK$790,237. The total net cash outflow in T FREZYESHEABNRES R FEE
respect of this disposal during the year was HK$3,504,986. The H AB3504986F L R_E_FTF=A
consideration of HK$5,150,000 was outstanding as at 31 March :Jr A+ R{B5,150,000& TR+ I
2020 and included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables. SABNTUE - 7 REAMEWTIE -
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group disposed of two non- REBEE_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HLFE &%
wholly-owned subsidiaries, which were principally engaged in provision @tb’%fﬁfﬁigﬁéi?%@i\%wﬁﬁ EiE S
of beauty and wellness services, at a cash consideration of HK$102. WIEREMBAR - REREARI102HB T © %
The net liabilities of these two subsidiaries immediately before the RElELEERA 75%5& HEFHINARFER
disposal was HK$24,276,261, while the goodwill attributable to the 24,276,261 BT * 48 & 3% M 51 BT B A =) FE 78
operations of these two subsidiaries was HK$9,988,483. The total net 78R %9,988,483 7T o IWEFIEMER
cash outflow in respect of this disposal was HK$152,354. MEFEE 1B 152,354 8T

(ii) For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has recorded as revenue (ii) HE_ZTE-_EF=-A=1+—RHLFE K&
for the provision of performance marketing and related services, and the BRI A B AR R S SRS A -
comparative information is restated to conform with the current year's tl:f BREEY  UREAFENZEHRIA -
presentation. See note 40. B2BMTE40

FINANCE COSTS 7. BEEA

2020 2019

—g=%F -T-nf

(Note)

(BfF&E)

HK$ HKS$

B B

Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts #2717 & 5% i X 518 4,201,036 2,712,119
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBME 13,862,606 31,016
18,063,642 2,743,135

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach, under which the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2.3.

S

AEBCR-_F-NFMA—BRBEER
EWEBRERATEBRELAFE 165 -

BRI E R A EED - F2HME2.3 -
EEEIEREEARAHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

FERRMIEE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. PBR®IAIGFI
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEBBTBDSEF &G (5FA) LA
(crediting): TRIEREL :
2020 2019
—E-EHF — &
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Staff costs (including directors’ ETITRA(BEESEHM) :
emoluments):*
Salaries, wages, allowances, bonuses, e~ I& -~ 2BL - JEA
commissions and benefits in kind Me REYH R 640,050,941 520,875,163
Equity-settled share-based AR EE ARG BEREZ
payment expenses e 9,930,914 11,152,136
Pension scheme contributions BRRESEEIHR
(defined contribution scheme) (REMHFETE) 22,963,325 19,246,949
672,945,180 551,274,248
Equity-settled share-based payment MM £ AR EE
expenses to registered practitioners LARS () BER R
(excluding those included in staff costs) (GFABIRAERIN) 3,962,445 1,389,570
Total minimum lease payments for leases  SCRIIRIEE B S ERF 1758
previously classified as operating leases DERKEHENHER
under HKAS 17+ HEMERNRERE
— Land and buildings — T RETF - 146,783,868
— Equipment — R - 306,896
Auditors’ remuneration Z EREM N & 2,677,400 2,630,760
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and equipment!  — BB - HENMEE 69,963,994 48,987,080
— right-of-use assets* —[ERAEEE" 162,870,997 -
Amortisation of intangible assets | B E R 12,948,304 12,758,082
Loss/(gain) on disposals and write-off of HEMBEME - BEX
property, plant and equipment HBEOEER (W) 37,732 (4,098,377)
Impairment loss on other receivables H OB R EEE 3,621,029 -
Foreign exchange differences, net HNFE Z 5B F R 1,069,237 404,162
Rental income from investment WEMERS WA EE
properties less direct outgoings of 7§84 566,004 75 7T
HK$566,004 (2019: HK$618,093) —ZT—f4F : 618,093 7T) (3,437,083) (6,455,432

*

158

Included in staff costs are employee benefit expenses of
HK$539,871,422 (2019: HK$446,391,375) and registered
practitioner expenses of HK$133,073,758 (2019: HK$104,882,873)
paid/payable to certain registered practitioners who are also
employees of the Group.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets which were
previously included in property, plant and equipment is also identified
as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets
at 1 April 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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BIRABIERBBA Y 539,871,422
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AR I ot

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEEBABIEFIE 3831 KL AR (KE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EENFERENE2A D HBENESH
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BHEEIBT -
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share
fees in kind bonuses contributions Sub-total options Total
o 2R B
EZHe REMNE BiEwd SRR it ERE @it
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZ-B-EF
ZR=T-HLEE
Executive directors HIEE
Tang Chi Fai iy - 1,100,000 - 16,500 1,116,500 - 1,116,500
Lee Gabriel =2 - 1,905,125 1,970,000 18,000 3,893,125 1,637,101 5,530,226
Lee Heung Wing (appointed on ZAR(R-5-%F
6 January 2020) (note () R BEZA)
R - 1,825,960 - 18,000 1,843,960 919,196 2,763,156
Wong Chi Cheung (appointedon %2 (R-F-F%
6 January 2020) (note i) —AABEZHE)
(P32 i) - 1,922870 - 1725 1940120 1,334,734 3,274,854
- 6,753,955 1,970,000 69,750 8,793,705 3,891,031 12,684,736
Non-executive directors HiEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben R 114,000 - - 6,000 120,000 - 120,000
Wang David Guowei (note (i) TEE (i) - - - - - - -
114,000 - - 6,000 120,000 - 120,000
Independent-non-executive directors B #4/7EE
Ma Ching Nam 558 240,000 - - - 240,000 219,337 459,337
Look Andrew 63 220,000 - - - 220,000 - 220,000
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
580,000 - - - 580,000 219,337 799,337
Notes: Mz -
0] Lee Heung Wing was the Corporate Finance Director/Chief Financial i) FMREZERNEENTES ZA - RE

Officer of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 before
appointing as executive director of the Group. His remuneration
disclosed above included those for services rendered by him as the
Corporate Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer and executive
director of the Group.

E-Z-TF=A=t+—HIFEREER
SEMCERMERE HEMEE o Ll
BOFH e EIAEEcErERE H
BB E RATTE SRRSO -

BEERBRERASEERAT
FE L 2019/20
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9. EEHFM =

Notes: (Continued) MaE - ()

(ii) Wong Chi Cheung was the Chief Digital Officer of the Group during (ii) EEEREEZARANEENTEST ZAT RE
the year ended 31 March 2020 before appointing as executive E-E-EF=-A=+—BHIEERNEER
director of the Group. His remuneration disclosed above included SEMNEFYSE - LB ENFHaEER
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Digital Officer and EAAEEEFEEBEE MNTEFRER
executive director of the Group. TEE T o

(i)  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 24 April 2020, iy MRBEHRE ITERBER_ZT_ZTEWA
Wang David Guowei resigned from non-executive director of the I HBEAEEIENITESES - RHE
Group. On the same date, Wang Steven Dasong was appointed as FTANMEZRTANEBIENITES -
non-executive director of the Group.

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-total options Total
5o 24 RIR
Ezhe REWMAE HETA HEIR gt B @
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
oy BT B BT BT AT oy
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-E-NE
ZAZt-ALEE

Executive directors HEE

Tang Chi Fai HEE - 1,218,000 - 18,000 1,236,000 - 1,236,000

Lee Gabriel 55 - 1,651,000 1,940,000 18,000 3,609,000 198483 5593836

Luk Kun Shing Ben EHR(R_Z-N\F

(redesignated from executive NAZ1H
director to non-executive BETEEHL
director on 20 August 2018) BEEIES) - 46,685 = 2,334 49,019 = 49,019
Yeung Chin Wan BEB(R-Z-\F
(resigned on 20 August 2018) NAZTHEHE) - 202,783 - 7,339 210,122 - 210,122
- 3118468 1940000 15673 5104141 198483 7,088,977
Non-executive directors FEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben BHE(N-E-\%
(redlesignated from executive NBZ+HBHT
director to non-executive EEE =P a1
director on 20 August 2018) %) 73,315 - - 3,066 76,981 - 76,981
Wang David Guowei IBE(R=2-\F
(appointed on 20 August 2018) NAZTBEZE) - - - - - - -
73315 . - 3,666 76,981 - 76,981

Independent-non-executive diectors BV 3877EE

Ma Ching Nam Eign 240,000 = = - 240,000 570,049 810,049

Look Andrew ER 220,000 - - - 220,000 - 220,000

Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 120,000 - - - 120,000 = 120,000

580,000 - - - 580,000 570,049 1,150,049
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2019:
one) of the individuals is director for the year ended 31 March
2020 and his emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the four (2019: four)
individuals for the year ended 31 March 2020, are as follows:

B H AR I ot

10. RS HEMA =

HEZ-_FTF=-A=+—RHLFE &
HEmTATHR—R(ZZE—NF : —F&)
ATAES  EHFUWRMZORSE -#H=E2=
ZoZF-A=Z+—HULEFE HE(ZZE
—NF - mB) ALTREBETE S BIE 0

T
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in ~ #& - 32BE R H B Y H 2

kind 9,091,000 10,890,517
Performance related bonuses BRI RS 17,179,778 25,330,427
Equity-settled share-based payments AR E ARG BER 2R - 4,836,809

Pension scheme contributions (defined RIREFTEIME R (R EHKETED
contribution schemes) 72,000 72,000
26,342,778 41,129,753

The emoluments of the four (2019: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2020 are

within the following bands:

HB DRI RIATEE

BE T ZF=-"A=+t—HILFE %
MERSHEOE(ZT—NF : mME) ALH

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 77T — 5,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 77T — 5,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$7,000,001 — HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 % 7T — 7,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 77T — 9,000,000 7T - 1
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 7T — 9,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 77T — 11,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$11,500,001 — HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 77T — 12,000,000 7T - 1
4 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

162

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

11.

mEBBERANAER

@) MNEEBBRRANBIARE

2020 2019
—B-BF —FNF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Current — Hong Kong BEY — B/

Provision for the year FREE 63,840,184 77,644,379
Over-provision in respect of prior years AT 4 S #AKE B (6,433,555) (7,032,855)
57,406,629 70,611,524

Current — Outside Hong Kong BIHY — HABEHN
Provision for the year F N 4,335,851 3,716,626
61,742,480 74,328,150
Deferred tax IEETIA (11,491,073) (8,752,633)
Tax charge for the year FRBIEZ H 50,251,407 65,575,517

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
BVI.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax charge and accounting profit (b)

at the applicable tax rates:

1. FEBEERANAES @

BB T E O BBR R D
F2 B BERBI T -

2020 2019
—E-BHF —E-NF
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Profit before tax B 5% B A 360,523,380 450,080,481
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated B Fi A& Fll 2 B 18 - 124073
at the rates applicable to profits in MIErEERER 2
the tax jurisdictions concerned BB EETE 58,928,539 72,784,002
Over-provision in respect of prior years AR [E B RE (6,433,555) (7,032,855)
Tax effect of non-taxable income JEFERFHIMA 2 TR & (5,528,914) (5,396,722)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HBREST 2 HE & 6,999,593 8,718,918
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERGIBBE BB E 561,617 -
Tax effect of utilisation of unused B RBTFERARERD
tax losses not recognised in prior years KB AT EEE (1,993,725) (4,024,870)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not BAEFEHMRERED
recognised in prior years but recognised ~ RAFEEREZ RS FH
during the year MBIz MIBETE (7,467,268) (952,154)
Temporary differences not recognised BEFE W ARERME
in prior years but recognised ERARFE R
during the year s =R 5,287,538 -
Statutory deductions SETEHUR (740,000) (520,000)
Others Hib 637,582 1,999,198
Tax charge for the year FABIELZ 50,251,407 65,575,517

BEERBRERASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R MR

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

12. XD F

TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$286,576,155 (2019: HK$361,105,819) and
the weighted average share of 985,085,236 ordinary shares
(2019: 983,875,783 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,

calculated as follows:

BREXNER

983,875,783 ix &

EERREAERER

EREARBF HERAD BRI EEN
£ R3% 71 286,576,155 B T ( — B — N 4F :
361,105,819/ 70 ) R F N2 B 17N T3

@AY A 985,085,236 ( —ZF — L& -
B FTEWNT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: LBERA DTS E
2020 2019
—ECEH —ET-NF
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning REBREE N BEITL B
of the financial year 984,519,948 983,429,948
Effect of share options exercised TEBRENTE 565,288 445,835
Weighted average number of ordinary R=ZA=+—HHNEBER
shares at 31 March DORE L8 985,085,236 983,875,783
Diluted earnings per share BREBERF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$286,576,155 (2019: HK$361,105,819), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 988,375,274 (2019:
986,636,181) shares is calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

988,375,274k (=&
B BATHAEE -

A (HE) g8

ERESERFTIERAR A EEREENL
4 286,576,155 ;o( = & — N, F:
361,105,819 7T ) & & i@ A% hn 4 F 39 &
— L% : 986,636,181

2020 2019
—B-BF —NF
Weighted average number of ordinary —A=1+—B®Z@mnE
shares at 31 March ?i@ £ 985,085,236 983,875,783
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RN B BB A AE EJr SR 1E
the Company’s share option scheme EEITRONZE 3,290,038 2,760,398
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—HrmEFEH
shares (diluted) at 31 March Timik (58 ) 20 B 988,375,274 986,636,181

1 64 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75k B

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. 1% - BMERREUARREYE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at 1
April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. See note 2.3.

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount: (@) EREEYHER:
Ownership
interests in
leasehold
landand  Properties
buildingsheld  leasedfor  Leasehold ~ Furniture  Operation Office Motor Investment
for own use ownuse improvements and fixtures  equipment  equipment  Computers vehicles  Sub-total  properties Total
KERAN
AELHR
B30 ARSAN A ) *
faREE  HEYE EENERE BERRE  EERE  HORR HER AE Mt RENE &t
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
b7 AT B B B B B - - -7 b7
Cost or valuation: HARME
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FRA-A - - 116842546 14104577 79540353 4800066 6310562 6,919,845 228517949 190,400,000 418,917,949
Addtions i - - 77600080 95028975 98052552  2,092502 2623529 815,105 276212743 40,183,000 316,305,743
Business acquistions Sl - - - 3318419 - - - - 3318419 - 3318419
Disposals HE - - (3628922) (37965452  (1,477,131) (196,023 (15,195) (1,658,689 (45,001,412) - (45,001412)
Transfers &% - - (16,803674) 16,803,674 - - - - - - -
Exchange adjustment B 8% - - (89,106)  (178,697) - - - - (467,803 - (467,809
Fair value adjustment AFEER - - - - - - - - - 1417000 1,417,000
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-A - - 173720924 91,111,496 176115774 6,696,545 8858896 6076261 462,579,896 232,000,000 694,579,896
Representing; f&:
Cost s - - 173720924 91,111,496 176115774 6,696,545 8858896 6076261 462,579,8% - 462,579,89
Valuation 2019 Z3-NERE - - = - - - - - - 232000000 232,000,000
- - 173720924 91,111,496 176115774 6,696,545 8858806 6076261 462,579,896 232,000,000 694,579,896
At31 March 2019 R=F-N§=A=1+-A - - 1713720924 91,111,496 176115774 6,696,545 8858896 6076261 462,579,896 232,000,000 694,579,896
Impact on inial appiication of ERERAAMBRS RS
HKFRS 16 (Note) Z1e5hTe () - 529510315 o - - - - - 529510315 - 529510315
At1 April 2019 R=E-nFmA-A - 529510315 173720924 91,1149 176,115774  6,696545 8858896 6,076,261 992,090,211 232,000,000 1,224,090,211
Additions HE - 23655767 28922563  3877,067 25373249  1,059.836 3,356,029 605,144 87,749,655 - 81,749,655
Business acquisitions R - 10204939 2,248,108 521,775 - 62,690 2,203,640 291,250 15,622,402 - 15622402
Other disposals Al o o - - (386,795) - - (69,891)  (456,686) - (456,686)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBAA o - (2709823 - - (1,623,156) - (1,139331)  (5,472310) - (5472310)
Transfer @ 37,000,000 - - - - - - - 37,000,000 (37,000,000 -
Exchange adjustment B 5% - (29%6,061) (1415488)  (634,754)  (116,890) (837) (2,987) - (5,107,017 - (5,107,017)
Fair value acjustment NTERE - = = = = = = = - (6,000,000 (6,000,000)
At 31 March 2020 R-E-FFZA=1-A 37,000,000 560,524960 200,766,284 94,875,584 200985338 7,005,078 14415578 5763433 1,121,426,255 189,000,000 1,310,426,255
Representing: R&:
Cost RA 37,000,000 560,524960 200,766,284 94,875,584 200985338  7,005078 14415578 5763433 1,121426,255 - 1,121,426,255
Valuation 2020 —E-TEfE - - - - - - - - - 189,000,000 189,000,000
37,000,000 560,524960 200,766,284 94,875,584 200985338 7,005,078 14415578 5763433 1,121,426,255 189,000,000 1,310,426,255
Accumulated depreciation: B
At1 April 2018 RZE-/\§RA-A - - 04164105 5508859 50872125 2348746 4,019,874 966,378 127,880,087 - 127,880,087
Charge for the year FRTH - - 2392299 3210566 18,207,944 892863 1,187,177 1,555,561 48,987,080 - 48,987,080
Witten back on disposals REERER o - (3250694  (2711,765)  (1,214,708) (64,455) (69,013  (1,359,175)  (8,670,710) - (8670,710)
Transfers 5 - - (2928579) 2928579 - - - - - - -
Exchange adjustment 35} - - (239,736) (62,896) - - - - (302,632) - (302,632)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H - - 81668065 8933343  67,865361 3,177,154 5087138 1,162,764 167,893,825 - 167,893,825
At1 Apri 2019 RZE-NERA-A - - 81668065 8933343  67,865361 3,177,154 5087138 1,162,764 167,893,825 - 167,893,825
Charge for the year ERE 835,783 158,992371 36480487 5389035 25800186 1322871 2475282 1,538,076 232,834,991 - 232,834,991
Witten back on other disposals P LERED - - - - (349,063) - - (69,891) (418,954 - (418,954)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HRBAA - - (1,196,965) - - (1,077,545 - (568,022) (2,843,432 - (2843432
Exchange adjustment BB - (367,649)  (779,869) (28,750) (44,096) (69) (204) - (1,220637) - (1,220637)
At 31 March 2020 835,783 158,624,722 116,171,718 14204528 93272388 3422411 7562216 2,062,027 396,245,793 - 396,245,793
Net book value:
At 31 March 2020 36,164217 401,900,238 84,504,566 80,581,056 107,712,950 3672667 6853362 3701406 725180462 189,000,000 914,180,462
At31 March 2019 - - 92052859 82,178,153 108250413 3519391 3771758 4913497 294,686,071 232,000,000 526,686,071
Mz AEBEERARBIEREERERE

BB RELRFE6H  UHBER=T
—NEMA - BRI  UERE
LRARBEBETENFITHOBER
SHENHEAHNEREEE - F2
BIFRE2.3 °

BEBERRARESRAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

166

properties
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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(b) REWENLFEFE

DNFEER

TRENAEMBEMER S
EERRE R R R 2
T W RBES S REE
AIE1SRATEHENTEES
ASEATESM . AT@EE
2 10 8 4 T 2 R f (2.5 15
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RYBERAERATAE
REE TR - Tl #iR
BB EEEADREMISEE
BHOSUE

. ESEGEE: EATY
B EERR RN A
i -



13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

()  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(#&)

A 75k B

13. 1% BMERREBURRENEF

(b) REMENDFETE )

U

DR EERE)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2020 categorised into
R-Z-ZF=A=+-H
SEAUTERANATETE

Fair value at
31 March
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R
—E-BF
=A=t-H
HAYE F-B# EZER EZBR
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
Recurring fair value measurement BEMATE
Investment properties SEREME 189,000,000 - - 189,000,000
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2019 categorised into
RZE-NE=A=1+—H
AERATERINATEAE
Fair value at
31 March
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
i
—T-NE
=R=+—H
MAEE E-ER E_ER E=ER
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Recurring fair value measurement N
Investment properties FTEREYE 232,000,000 - - 232,000,000
BEERBRERASEERAT

FE L 2019/20
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

168

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

0]

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

The valuations of investment properties were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, AP
Appraisal Limited (2019: Asset Appraisal Limited),
who have among their staff fellows of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property being
valued. The Group’s finance director and the chief
financial officer have discussions with the surveyors
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at annual reporting
date.

13. M5 - MERREUARRENE
(#)

(b) BEMENRXFENE#E)

) AFERRGE

REZE-_ZE-_ZFR-_ZT—AN
FZA=+—BULEE F—
BAREE —BR BT EEE
NESEASEHEZEHR - K
EECZBERERAFEERZ
A ER N REHBERER
ERRERE o

WEYEREERB LA E/TT
AP Appraisal Limited (ZZ— A1
F-pBEEENERERMAR)
T - EPRETAFEANEA
Beog ¥ FlHEWER
AR AL EELSR -
REBzTENBEERER
B EEHAEMAmTEFE
WA AEITHENRERNER -

Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
REF% TABEHAYE #E
Investment properties Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on quality -15% t0-10%
BB mEHEE of the properties -15% £ -10%

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(ii)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurement

The fair value of properties is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square foot basis, adjusted for a premium
or a discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

B H AR I ot

13. M1 - BERREUARRENE
(#)

(b) BREMENRAFENE#E)

(i) SF=BRAFETEEHR

W% 2 DA T 6 A 8 LB
EERE - RESETHLRY
$ESFHRREREENHF
ZEBERE BERAREY
S B 2 R W TR (R
A 94 32 5 LL XA B ) (R 38
#oMOEEEREEBENE
BE - SEHGHEREZAT

EDIEEIE
The movements during the year in the balance of FZERATEAESZEHTE
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as FRZEBIT
follows:
2020 2019
—ECTF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Investment properties REWE
At 1 April REA—H 232,000,000 190,400,000
Additions INE - 40,183,000
Transfer to leasehold land and BRI EE B
buildings held for own use AELtHRET (37,000,000) -
Fair value adjustment N EFAE (6,000,000) 1,417,000
At 31 March R=B=+—H 189,000,000 232,000,000

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Other net income and
gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

All the gains/losses recognised in profit or loss for
the year arise from the properties held at the end of
the reporting period.

RAMEHATEABRES
B R I EAMA BS54
HE R -

AEFERED RN A K
#/BREORENEERFA
HH)3E

BEERBRERASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CME - BERREUARKREWE

AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) (&)
(c) Right-of-use assets (c) FREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets RIBAEERROMNEREEERN
by class of underlying asset is as follows: BREFENT -
31 March 1 April
2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NEF
=A=+—8H mA—HR
Notes HK$ HK$
B aE BT BIT
Ownership interests in leasehold  #F{FE AR EEHE
land and buildings held for own + 3 BT A RE
use in Hong Kong, with remaining  #%5 © Fl&fEl A
lease term between 10E 504
10 and 50 years (i) 36,164,217 -
Properties leased for own use MEFBANME (i) 401,900,238 529,510,315
Motor vehicles and operation RELN BB
equipment (iii) 49,948,231 54,246,186

488,012,686 583,756,501
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

13. M1 - BERREUARRENE
(#)
(c) EREEE@)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases RIERTHEZEERENHZEE D

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: Mo :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
(Note)
(FF&E)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use 1% A8 & E L85I8l 5 B A #E
assets by class of underlying asset: BEZITERX -
— Ownership interests in leasehold ~ — #H{EE AHEE +# MIETH
land and buildings FRE R
held for own use 835,783 -
— Properties leased for own use — HEEERANYME 158,992,371 -
— Motor vehicles and operation — AEREER
equipment 3,042,843 5,225,870
162,870,997 5,225,870
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEa GRS (ME7) 13,862,606 31,016
Expense relating to short-term leases EE4ZHIFAE I HNEZ
and other leases with remaining —E-EFE=A=+—H%
lease term ending on or before ZBIfEmE A E R
31 March 2020 Z X 12,720,642 -
Total minimum lease payments for A RIBEE S 2T EL
leases previously classified as FTRDBAKEHRERN
operating leases under HKAS 17 HENKEKBAENREE - 147,090,764
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mizr - A"EBCDHEBAKEITEMEZEaNERSE

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the
finance lease assets which were previously included in
property, plant and equipment is also identified as a right-of-
use asset. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1
April 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See note 2.3.

BB HRELBNE16  LEFHER =
Z-NFOA—AMMBER AR
EBERBEEGEREITHROER
KEHENHERMMERAEEE - K
KEBLERFAME  BERRENH
EHEEENERAENERRENE
BE-R-_ZT-NLFUA-BERHER
EREEER  AEBEREEARE
REMBREENE  MIFBERKRRE
AERHARRALEREELNAS
P o RIRULTTE - LEAR U EES -
E2HMEE2.3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

172

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
HK$33,950,706 (including HK$10,294,939 arising from
business acquisitions). This amount primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under new or
renewed tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 21(c) and
27, respectively.

@i

(ii)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

The Group holds a property for its medical
business. The Group is the registered owner of
these property interests. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered owners, and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under
the terms of the land lease, other than payments
based on rateable values set by the relevant
government authorities. These payments vary from
time to time and are payable to the relevant
government authorities.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office, warehouses, clinics and
beauty centres through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 6
years. Lease payments are usually increased every
2 to 3 years to reflect market rentals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(ii)

Properties leased for own use (Continued)

Some leases include an option to renew the lease
for an additional period after the end of the contract
term. Where practicable, the Group seeks to
include such extension options exercisable by the
Group to provide operational flexibility. The Group
assesses at lease commencement date whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease
payments during the extension periods are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities. The
potential exposure to these future lease payments
is summarised below:

B H AR I ot

13. 1% BMERREBURRENEF

(#)

(c) EHEEE @)

(ii)

Lease liabilities
recognised
(discounted)

HEFE RN (E)

BLOMEBREESHNERER
BIGHEBRNTEINETR - 7
ATERAT  AEEIKBRE
REBAITHNEREER MU
REELEEN - XEERHE
EHMMEBMTERESERTE
SITRBHEER - MAEE
BEEEEITRARBERE -
A B H AR B9 R R & R
AAAHERENFE - ZFR
PR AE B A R 7 7 R B 451 At 40
T

Potential future
lease payments
under extension
options not
included in
lease liabilities
(undiscounted)

WEFAHEER
WEFRIERET
ERANEEESRE BEAKREE
(BEER) AR GREER)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Clinics and beauty centres P RERF L
— Hong Kong — &H/E 101,726,998 104,136,036
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

174

(ii)

(iii)

Properties leased for own use (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
leased a number of clinics and beauty centres
which some of them contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated
from the clinics and beauty centres and minimum
annual lease payment terms that are fixed. The
amount of fixed and variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss for the year is
summarised below:

13. 1% BERRBURRENE

(#)

(c) FEREEE @)

(ii)

HEEB RN (&)

HE-_ZT-_FTF=A=+—H
EEE AEBHEERETZHH
REARFL ERETZHAR
ERFLHEBRSREDZTKL
EARAFLEENEETETEN
AIEHEENRERREE &K
FEMEMNFIER - RFARIE
mTERNETE R SHEERN
REemBEmT

Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
RN IR J0E TR
HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT
Clinics and beauty centres 2P REAH 0>
— Hong Kong — &% 5,419,887 S 5,419,887

At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that an increase
in sales generated from these clinics and beauty
centres by 5% would not increase the lease
payments.

Other leases

The Group leases motor vehicles and operation
equipment under leases. The leases run for an
initial period of 3 and 8 years respectively. Some
leases include an option to renew the lease when
all terms are renegotiated, while some include an
option to purchase the motor vehicle and operation
equipment at the end of the lease term at a price
deemed to be a bargain purchase option. None of
the leases includes variable lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(d) Assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2 to 3 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every 2 to 3 years
to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes

variable lease payment.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be

receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

BRI

13. 1% BMERREBURRENEF

(#)

(d)

RELLHEHENEE

AEERBELEHELHELZAREY
X -REHE-RVNTAEME=
FOUREBERE  RZARMA
FReEHiEr HENTBEEM
E=FLA-K UARBRTSESE -
ZEMEMBERFBTEHEENK

A BB R R IR B R 3R 45 B
B A A TR T R B
ERFMT ¢

2020 2019

—E-FF —

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 1 year 1ER 4,551,360 3,760,000

1-2 years 1&E26F 2,839,731 3,630,000

2-3 years 2E34F - 2,420,000
7,391,091 9,810,000

14. GOODWILL 14. HE

2020 2019

—E-FF —T-NF

Notes HK$ HK$

B 5T BT BT

At the beginning of the year F14) 99,099,208 95,223,189
Business acquisitions Ei 3g 31 57,128,045 21,144,096
Disposals of subsidiaries HERB QA 6 (790,237) (9,988,483)
Impairment losses EEE 6 - (7,279,594)
At the end of the year ER 155,437,016 99,099,208
2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Cost B AN 165,062,017 108,724,209
Accumulated impairment losses ZiHRERE (9,625,001) (9,625,001)
Net carrying amount BREEE 155,437,016 99,099,208
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUS”) is as follows:

14.

BB R E R

ThEEREELBEM((ReELEM])
MEERREENT

2020 2019
—EZEH —nEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Spine treatment services in Hong Kong BBAWEERS 24,545,805 24,545,805
Beauty services in the PRC — Sunflower ~ FEIZEA AR — Sunflower 12,862,225 12,862,225
Aesthetic dental services in HAEFEEARE — Conya
Hong Kong — Conya 22,050,613 22,050,613
Therapy services in Hong Kong — McKenzie &8 AR — ZER 18,735,722 18,735,722
Child clinic operations and medical services Z& 4 52 52 B J2 B2 fﬂlﬁm
in Hong Kong — Prime Kids — Prime Klds 35,822,527 -
Performance marketing and related services 7 [ #1 Bl 45 7k 4 4
in Hong Kong and PRC — Prime Inspire ¥zl ﬂlﬁ% — Prime Inspire 21,305,518 -
Other insignificant goodwill H I NE KA R 20,114,606 20,904,843
155,437,016 99,099,208

Spine treatment services in Hong Kong CGU

The recoverable amount of the spine treatment services in
Hong Kong CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 13.9% (2019: 17%) and the growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the CGU beyond the five-year period is 1%
(2019: 1%).

Aesthetic dental services in Hong Kong — Conya CGU

The recoverable amount of the aesthetic dental services in
Hong Kong — Conya CGU has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a
five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 13.9% (2019: 15%) and the growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the CGU beyond the five-year
period is 1% (2019: 1%).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Beauty services in the PRC — Sunflower CGU

The recoverable amount of the beauty services in the PRC —
Sunflower CGU has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14.7%
(2019: 16%) and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the CGU beyond the five-year period is 1% (2019: 1%).

Therapy services in Hong Kong — McKenzie CGU

The recoverable amount of the therapy services in Hong Kong
— McKenzie CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is
13.9% (2019: 12%) and the growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the CGU beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2019: 3%)).

Child clinic operations and medical services in Hong
Kong — Prime Kids CGU

The recoverable amount of the child clinic operations and
medical services in Hong Kong — Prime Kids CGU has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a five-year period. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 15.3% and the grow
rate used to extrapolate the cash flow of the CGU beyond the
five-year period is 2%.

B H AR I ot

14. EE @)

%ﬁ/mﬁ//\ (‘[;E)

B ERRT — Sunflower BE& ELEE

fz

REIZEARH — Sunflower IR & EE BRI
AEEBEIAEREEEERESRE
BEENVBEEMEEN T FHBR
ReREMEBET BARKRESREHED
BRIREB14.7% (ZT—NEF : 16%) * MH
CEABNAFHEENRSRERA 1%
—NF 1% EREREE -

BRAEERY — ZEREEBRBRESE
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BERCERY — ERBFREEFEMHNA
WEeEIAEREEEZRSREEEL]
ENMBREMBEEN T FHRANER SR
%ﬁﬁﬁéi ° fﬁﬁﬁﬁ’t\i@u%mui #E’JEEEET
713.9% (ZF—NF 1 12%) ﬁ’ﬁfﬁ‘f?‘i
BURAFHBENRESRERAI®% (=
—NEF 3%) B RERE -

EBNRDREERSE — Prime Kids
REELEN

BBNRL M REERY — Prime Kidsii
CELBUDNUCRBEEIRSRERE
HENMBEEMEENTFHRERNRSE
//lb%ﬁﬁ@i"ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\\iﬁﬂimiﬁ H’]EEEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS A P ot

14. GOODWILL (Continued) 14. BE (®)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Performance marketing and related services in Hong
Kong and PRC — Prime Inspire CGU

The recoverable amount of the performance marketing and
related services in Hong Kong and PRC — Prime Inspire CGU
has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 16.5% and the
grow rate used to extrapolate the cash flow of the CGU
beyond the five-year period is 1%.

Impairment losses

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the goodwill
at the end of each of the reporting period. No impairment loss
has been recognised during the year ended 31 March 2020. In
last year, impairment losses of HK$7,279,594 relating to a
number of insignificant businesses attributable to aesthetic
medical, beauty and wellness and sale of skincare, healthcare
and beauty products segment were recognised in the line item
“Other net income and gains”, as these businesses were loss-
making and management assessed that the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs that such goodwill related to were
HK$nil, determined based on value-in-use calculations using
cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of
all CGUs, which include discount rate and growth rate, on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
perform impairment testing of goodwill. The values assigned to
the key assumptions are consistent with external information
sources.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. GOODWILL (continued)

Management has identified that a reasonably change in two
key assumptions, discount rate and growth rate beyond the
five-year period, could cause the carrying amount of Prime
Kids CGU to exceed its recoverable amount. As at 31 March
2020, the estimated recoverable amount of Prime Kids CGU
exceeded its carrying amount by approximately HK$2 million.
The discount rate would need to increase by 0.3% or the
growth rate beyond the five-year period would need to
decrease by 0.5%, with all other variables remain constant, for
its estimated recoverable amount to be equal to the carrying
amount.

For all other CGUs, management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the key assumptions of cash flow
projections would not cause the respective carrying amount of
these CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount.

B H AR I ot

14. EE @)

EREECEET  MERRERX(AFEHBE
AR ERERE)NAES e EH
Prime Kids3R & E A B M REBERAER]
WE4zE R_E-_EE=H=+—8 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Club
memberships  Customer
and school lists and
debentures relationships Licence  Trademark Others Total
efeR  EFZE
REREH RE% R [l Hif @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B B B B BT
Cost; %
At1 April 2018 RZZ-\EHA-H 19,518,000 6,922,547 4,112,997 24,033,016 38,607,000 93,193,560
Additions RE 11,270,001 - - - - 11,270,001
Business acquisitions (note 31) ES AGER)D) - 4,300,000 - - - 4,300,000
Exchange adjustment R AR = - (266,022) = = (266,022)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-nE=A=1+-H 30,788,001 11,222,547 3,846,975 24,033,016 38,607,000 108,497,539
At1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—A 30,788,001 11,222,547 3,846,975 24,033,016 38,607,000 108,497,539
Business acquisitions (note 31) ¥R (M 31) - 17,956,996 - 20673539 - 3863053
Exchange adjustment R AR - = (208,414) - - (208,414)
At 31 March 2020 W_E-EF=R=1+-H 30,788,001 29,179,543 3,638,561 44,706,565 38,607,000 146,919,660
Accumulated amortisation: St
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\¥NA—H = 1,875,263 1,326,067 3,130,776 - 6,332,106
Charge for the year ERYH - 1,116,170 793,329 2,403,302 8,445,281 12,758,082
Exchange adjustment ERAR S = (85,767) - - (85,767)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=1—H - 2,991,433 2,033,629 5,534,078 8,445,281 19,004,421
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NFENA-A - 2,991,433 2,033,629 5,534,078 8,445,281 19,004,421
Charge for the year ERTH S 4,080,887 719,417 3,322,125 4825875 12,948,304
Exchange adjustment B 5 R - - (119,379) = = (119,373
At 31 March 2020 W-E-ZEF¥=R=1+-H - 7,072,320 2,633,673 8,856,203 13271186 31,833,352
Net book value: EHFE:
At 31 March 2020 W-Z-2F=R=1-H 30,788,001 22,107,223 1,004,888 35,850,352 25,335,844 115,086,308
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-A%ZA=+—H 30788001 8231114 1813346 18498938 30,161,719 89,493,118

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The intangible assets with indefinite useful life are related to
club memberships and school debentures in Hong Kong. No
impairment loss was recognised during the year (2019: HK$nil).
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16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

16. AEELXEMNER

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Share of net assets DEEEFE 50,729,399 37,051,803
Loan to a joint venture ERXRTFaLrE - 14,500,000
50,729,399 51,551,803
Less: Loan to a joint venture classified W [TERSRIA - e R HA
as current asset under “Prepayments, FEWEIE | B N0 E A
deposits and other receivables” TMHEEMNERTEEE - (14,500,000)
50,729,399 37,051,803
(@) Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures, which are @ AEERFZEELEREEUD

GUC and GUM (together referred to as the “GU”), HDS, RETA
and Tengkang, the joint ventures in which the Group
participates, are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted

accounted for using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

HWREAEDEAR)FBEWT :

kxS 4l
Place of Particulars of issued ~ Group's Held
incorporation  and effective bythe Heldbya
Name of joint venture and business  paid up capital interest  Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
EMELR BRTR r5E e
RELEER ERQeny  HMREREE BERER AQAME s TEER
Good Union Corporation Hong Kong Registered capital 50% - 50%  Provision of repair and
Limited (‘GUC") HK$100 maintenance services
for beauty equipment
BIREARAR ([BIE]) Bk HMEA 50% - 50%  AEBRERELE
10047 REERS
Good Union Medical Limited (‘GUM”) Hong Kong Registered capital 50% - 50%  Sales of medication
HK$100 products
Good Union Medical Limited ([GUM])) &% HMEA1008T 50% - 50% HEEMER
Hero Design Studio Limited (‘HDS’) Hong Kong Registered capital 50% - 50%  Provision of interior
HK$1,500,000 design services
WERERHABRERRA(ME)  BR FMER 50% - 50%  REFHRRS
1,500,000 7T
Reta Investment Holding Limited British Virgin Registered capital 50% - 50%  Investment holding
(‘RETA) Islands USD50,000
Reta Investment Holding Limited AR #ERER 50% - 50% KRB
(TRETA) #5 50,000% 7t
Tengkang Healthcare (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Registered capital 45% - 45%  Provision of medical
Limited (‘Tengkang”) HK$15,605,500 services
EREREE(BE)BRLA &k FMEA 45% - 45%  REBERE
(Mg 15,605,500 %7

market price is not available.

REBF R A S D E A2 EMGUM (5
IGUL) - F21E - RETARREER - A&
BHISHRENIE LT AA]

-
o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 16. REELENER @)

BB EAEEELEENEA
ABPECURBANBE REAKS
B RRRE BN MR ENT -

(b)  Summarised financial information of the material joint
ventures, GU, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in

5

the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

below:
2020 2019
—B-F —TNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gross amounts of GU GU#RE
Current assets RENEE 42,084,813 45,309,820
Non-current assets IEREEE 2,087,981 2,395,284
Current liabilities MENEE (16,405,443) (20,399,086)
Non-current liabilities ERHEE - -
Equity S 27,767,351 27,306,018
Included in the above assets and FFALMEERERE
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREFEEY 5,855,275 14,536,266
Current financial liabilities (excluding mHemeE(ESNEMER
trade and other payables and I N BAER N
provisions) (2,890,258) (1,745,004)
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gross amounts of GU GU %8
Revenue WA 61,675,570 95,563,985
Profit from continuing operations KA E KL EEAET 2,381,333 7,122,668
Total comprehensive income 2HEWA BT 2,381,333 7,122,668
Dividend paid B E (1,920,000) (2,560,000)
Included in the above profit: FTA MU R -
Interest income FEUA 31,508 37,242
Interest expense FEMAZ (111,234) (144,627)
Income tax expense FrS Bl - -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in GU E2 7N 52 B AT+ GU R 1 BR
Gross amounts of GU’s net assets GUEEFE®EZR 27,767,351 27,306,018
Group’s effective interest AEEETRERS 50% 50%
Group’s share of GU’s net assets AEBREEGUEEFE 13,883,675 13,653,009
Identifiable intangible assets AIEREEE 5,847,728 5,847,728
Fair value adjustment on net assets IR EE 2 N EHE
acquired 591,451 591,451
Goodwill [EES 12,383,146 12,383,146
Carrying amount in the consolidated RiRa M mKRmEREE
financial statements 32,706,000 32,475,334
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16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

17.

Summarised financial information of the Group’s shared portion
of joint ventures, excluding GU, that are not individually material

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75k B

are disclosed below:

16. R P ¥R @)

AEBEDHEERFERGLLE(TERE
GU) & 2 HIE BRI BB T

2020 2019
—EB-FF —T-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually ERIZEERE EFEREAE
immaterial joint ventures 18,023,399 4,576,469
Loss from continuing operations K EIFEREERREE (1,069,621) (189,278)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wk - _
Total comprehensive income FHEHREERE (1,069,621) (189,278)
INVENTORIES 17. &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement (a) HZKEMBRAXRNEERRE
of financial position comprise:
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products #E - /2 M EBE M 12,091,544 13,268,932
Medications, consumables and EY) - FEM R E AR SR
other supplies 47,542,220 38,811,831
59,633,764 52,080,763
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRABRXIFAEBEZNEE
recognised as an expense and included in SEIHWT :
profit or loss is as follows:
2020 2019
e —TNEF
HK$ HK$
BT I
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEMERNFERTE
and consumed 215,636,061 227,286,741
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FE L 2019/20 1 83



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. EZEWFKIE

2020 2019

—ECEF —ZT-NEF

HK$ HKS

BT BT

Trade receivables Z B ERFA 79,025,977 104,668,285

All of the trade receivables are receivables from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit card settlements and other institutional customers in
respect of provision of medical and performance marketing
and related services. The credit period is generally 1 to 120
days for the credit card settlements from the respective
financial institutions and other institutional customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BB S RYGRIAEY KB BB EEL
F1RBEANNRE TP A KM RUGIR -

AEEEZFHESGRAREIEENERR
REE DA LR A BE AR DA R B U 8 IR AE R
RBHEMEERTS B8 RBBERE
EEPRENERREENERM—
RAB/1E120K - REE S BIEABIZHIE R
Ym e U RIR - B B As s = AR E IR
JEEHIER - AR E Y EHE 5 WK
TRAE R R B AR fn SR ER HL (5 A%
EFEE - B S RUPGRIRETE R -

BERSHR REZAHRERRES
RIEHNE 5 R UIRRNRE DT

2020 2019

—ECEH —ET-NF

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Within 1 month 1EAR 55,992,432 95,616,865
1 to 3 months 1E31@A 14,359,334 7,323,003
Over 3 months 3MEAME 8,674,211 1,728,417
79,025,977 104,668,285

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
35.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. FERIE - RER HMEWRFRIE

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—EEF —E—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments (note) FEA FE () 149,934,657 181,687,300
Deposits e 68,307,273 64,968,908
Other receivables H o pE U 2008 125,265,732 92,394,731
343,507,662 339,050,939
Portion classified as non-current D48 A IERNEIR
— Rental and other deposits — e kHEMES (51,837,382) (35,847,456)
— Prepayments (note) — FER IR (M) (102,782,281)  (104,513,425)
Current portion ENEAER S 188,887,999 198,690,058

Note: In connection with certain acquisitions in last year, the Group prepaid
HK$122,783,000 to certain practitioners in respect of their future
services to the Group.

The amounts included in prepayments as at 31 March 2020 were
HK$104,513,125 (2019: HK$116,791,425), of which
HK$12,278,300 (2019: HK$12,278,300) is expected to be charged
to profit or loss within 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

The above other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable within one year, except for a receivable as at 31
March 2019 amounting to HK$17,966,294, which was interest
bearing at 5% per annum.

The above other receivables include amounts due from non-
controlling interests of HK$64,292,970 (2019: HK$20,481,103)
and a loan to a joint venture of HK$nil (2019: HK$14,500,000).
The amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable on demand. The details of the
loan to a joint venture are disclosed in note 16.

The above receivables also include an amount of
HK$7,453,664 (2019: HK$nil) due from a related company
which is related to the profit guarantee in connection with the
acquisition of 50% equity interest in GU during the year ended
31 March 2017. The related company is beneficially owned by
the spouse of Tang Chi Fai, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

The above prepayments include an amount prepaid to a joint
venture of HK$10,428,374 (2019: HK$10,407,432) which is
trade in nature.

Mz REAFHETUWENS AREERETEER
1% RS EIR A BRTE M Z T8 122,783,000
BT e

£104,513,125 & 7L (= — J14F : 116,791,425
BIT) s H122783008 T(—ZF — h F :
12,278,300/ 7T ) FBHA#S M RS AR 5t + — &
AARIB=EIR °

T EMmENRGIEAERE  2ERAR
—FRKE - ERZE-AEF=A=1+—
H #Y i U 5k T8 17,966,294 78 7T Bll 1% £ 7l &
5%t 8 ©

bt E b Uk FROE B3 1E PR AR SR 1 AR A RS K
1864,292,970/% 7L( = ZF— L4 + 20,481,103
BL)RERTFTARECETEL(ZZ—A
F 1 14,500,000 7T ) o FE UL FEIE AR 4 25 3K
BAREIRWE  £ERAZERWE - 5
ERTHEELENFBRWT16HE -

FERFRENEEREK —MEEARR
TE7,453,664 8T (ZT—NF : THT)
ZRBEEEE—_T—+tF=A=+—8L
FREUIEGU 50% BEREFRESH - &
ERRAARRERRRESSENEEE
A o

FHMEMREBERNEE L ENKIE
10,428,374 8 70 (=& — JLE : 10,407,432
BT BRESHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yy g D
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. ZEAFEFAEENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through  EAFEABENEREE
profit or loss
Non-Current F B
— Unlisted equity investments — JFELETIRAKRE 46,166,625 37,356,812
— Unlisted fund investments — ELTESEE 44,418,182 =
90,584,807 37,356,812
Current B
— Unlisted fund investments — ELMESKRE 110,960,036 176,383,259
— Listed debt investments — FTEBIRE - 423,447,598

110,960,036 599,830,857

201,544,843 637,187,669
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75k B

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAFEFABEGHNERMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (45)
The performance of the Group’s financial assets at fair value B Z - ZF=A=+—HIFE &
through profit or loss under current assets for the year ended EENEHEER M EATESTAEBRED
31 March 2020 is as follows: SREERROT :
Percentage of
Percentage of total financial
shareholdings assets atfair ~ Percentage of
or offering of Carrying Net fair value Carrying  value through  total assets of
Descriptions (with bond interest rate and the debt at amount at Additions Disposals gain/(loss) amountat  profit or loss at the Group at
maturity date if applicable) ISIN numbers 31 March 2020 1 April 2019  during the year  during the year fortheyear 31 March2020 31 March2020 31 March 2020
RoB-RE
it St 2:3 ZAST-Bf  RIBIBE
ZH=t+-8 R=B-1E R RIB-EF BRAYE ZA=t-B#
EREDER mA-BH AVERE/ :ﬁ:‘l‘—BH’J SABHNEE 1. ]
b (BEESAENAMA - NER) ELEEA B LA REE ERFE FRHE (B8R) 38 REE SEAENHE AEENHA
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Agricultural BK China/HK 3.08875% XS1897393200 NATER 1,670,431 S (1,566,254) (4.177) S N/ATER NATER
Bank of China Hong Kong (2.77%; 8 MAR 2021) XS1785829414 NATER 62,811,588 S (62,548,912) (262,676) = N/ATiER NATEA
Bank of China Hong Kong (6.75%; 23 OCT 2049) X$1122780106 N/A TR 21,863,737 - (04,637 415) 2,773,678 S NATER NATER
Bank of China London (3.15%; 7 JUN 2023) XS1832452103 NATER 15,681,387 S (15,808,170) 126,783 S N/ATER NATER
Barclays Plc (3.70%; 16 MAY 2024) US06738EBC84 NATER 11,620,829 S (11,670,963) 150,134 = N/A TiER NATEA
BOC Aviation Limited (3.41%; 2 MAY 2021) US09681MAG33 NATER 23,672,799 - (23,832,168) 159,369 - N/A @R NATER
CDBL Funding Two (3.49%; 18 JUL 2021) XS1845139515 N/A &R 31,460,949 S (31,409,843) (51,106) S NA T ER NATER
CICC HK Finance 2016 Mtn (3.52%; 11 SEP 2021) X51852578431 NATER 23,698,618 S (23,663,441) 64,823 = N/A T @R NATEA
China Minsheng Bkg (3.11%; 9 MAR 2023) 31789639884 N/A R 9423716 - (9,473,340) 49,624 S NATER NATER
Gam Star Fund Plc IECOBYYLYN74 NATER 8,962,066 S (9,067 443 105,387 S NATER NATER
Goldman Sachs Group Inc (3.48%; 16 MAY 2024) US38141GXD14 NATER 27,032,373 S (27,202,901) 170,528 = N/A TiER NATEA
HSBC Holdings Pic (6.25%; 23 MAR 2049) US404280BN80 N/A TER 29,880,546 - (30,418,211) 537,665 - N/A @R NATER
ICBC (6.00%; 10 DEC 2049) USY39656AA40 NATER 23,861,901 = (24,326,300) 464,399 = N/ATER NATEA
ICBC London (3.05%; 14 JUN 2021) X51830984628 NATER 48,815,991 S (48,656,537) (159,454) - N/A @R NATER
ICBCIL Finance Company Limited (3.45%; 15 MAY 2023) XS1810003928 NATER 62,564,114 - (62,741,091) 186,977 - N/A @R NATER
Inventive Global Investment Limited (3.18%; 19 SEP 2021) XS1879568894 NAREA 7,864,322 - (7,879,131) 14,809 - NA @R NANEA
PIMCO Funds GIS Pic (HKD) IECOBYXVWS09 NATER 60,226,142 S (60,338,983 112,841 S N/A @R NATER
Red Arc Term Liquidity Fund IEQ0BYZ7Y673 2.90% 107,195,061 - - 1,480,672 108,675,733 97.94% 4.25%
Societe Generale (6.75%; 6 APR 2049) USF8586CBQ45 NATER 21,834,297 S (23,644,648) 1,810,351 S NATER NATER
Yuanming Prudence — Healthcare fund NATiER NATEA S 2,356,640 S (72,337) 2,284,303 2.06% 0.09%
599,830,857 2,356,640 (498,885,751) 7,668,290 110,960,036 100.00% 4.34%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 Rk B

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAFEFABEZNERMEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (4&

Percentage of

Percentage of total financial
shareholdings assets atfair ~ Percentage of
or offering of Carrying Net fair value Carrying  value through  total assets of
Descriptions (with bond interest rate and the debt at amount at Additions Disposals gain/(loss) amountat  profit or loss at the Group at
maturity date if applicable) ISIN numbers 31 March 2019 1 April 2018  during the year  during the year fortheyear 31 March2019 31 March2019 31 March 2019

R--n%
RZB-NF ZAZt-Bf RZB-hE
ZAZt-B  RIB-NF R R-F-1E BAVE ZA=t-AE
ERERES mA-RH ATERE/ ZA=t-BH HABENER E3 1)
T (BERFARNIAA - mER) ERESREE Eil:: 4] REE FRFE FRLE (B8 F8 REE BEAENLA  BEEOLA
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
BT BT BT BT B BT B
Agricuttural BK China/HK (3.08875%) X$1897393200 0.04% - 1,670,844 - (413) 1,570,431 0.26% 0.07%
Bank of China Hong Kong (2.77%; 8 MAR 2021) X51785829414 0.80% 62,840,569 S S (28,981) 62,811,588 10.48% 2.68%
Bank of China Hong Kong (6.75%; 23 OCT 2049) X51122780106 0.05% 23,871,813 o - (2,008,076) 21,863,737 3.64% 0.93%
Bank of China London (3.15%; 7 JUN 2023) X51832452103 0.40% - 15,700,694 - (28,307) 15,681,387 261% 0.67%
Barclays Plc (3.70%; 16 MAY 2024) US06738EBC84 0.10% S 11,749,314 S (228,485) 11,520,829 1.92% 0.49%
BOC Aviation Limited (3.41%; 2 MAY 2021) US09681MAG33 0.60% o 23,630,831 - 41,968 23,672,799 3.95% 1.01%
CDBL Funding Two (3.49%; 18 JUL 2021) X51845139515 0.60% - 31,427,696 - 33,253 31,460,949 5.24% 1.34%
China Construction Bank (3.09%; 24 APR 2021) XS1880301228 NATER S 23,560,036 (23,601,662) 41,626 o - -
CICC HK Finance 2016 Min (3.52%; 11 SEP 2021) X51852578431 0.75% - 23,564,036 - 34,582 23,598,618 3.93% 1.00%
China Minsheng Bkg (3.11%; 9 MAR 2023) X51789639884 0.20% 9414219 - - 9,497 9,423,716 1.57% 0.40%
Gam Star Fund Plc IEOBYYLYN74 0.01% S 36,783,601 (28,173,036) (4,648,509) 8,962,066 1.49% 0.38%
Goldman Sachs Group Inc (3.48%; 16 MAY 2024) US38141GXD14 0.23% - 27,556,583 - (6524,210) 27,032,373 451% 1.15%
HSBC Holdings Plc (6.25%; 23 MAR 2049) US404280BN80 0.16% 6,421,121 23,043,288 - (483,863) 29,880,546 4.98% 127%
ICBC Asia Limited (4.50%; 10 OCT 2023) XS0976879279 NATEA S 7,922,613 (7,845,700) (76.913) o S -
ICBC (6.00%; 10 DEC 2049) USY39656AA40 0.10% 24,076,851 - - (214,950) 23,861,901 3.98% 1.03%
ICBC London (3.05%; 14 JUN 2021) X51830984628 1.24% - 48,865,176 - (49,185) 48,815,991 8.14% 2.08%
ICBCIL Finance Company Limited (3.45%; 15 MAY 2023) X51810003928 1.33% S 62,952,004 S (397,890) 62,554,114 10.44% 2.66%
Inventive Global Investment Limited (3.18%; 19 SEP 2021)  XS1879568894 0.20% o 7,853,076 S 11,246 7,864,322 1.31% 0.33%
Li & Fung Limited (6.00%; 8 NOV 2049) XS0851808435 NATNER 23,561,682 - (23,543,100) (18,682) - - -
PIMCO Funds GIS Pic (HKD) IECOBYXVWI09 0.01% 178,485,021 S (117,310,925) (947,954) 60,226,142 10.04% 251%
PIMCO Funds GIS Pic (EUR) IE00BBDOPH41 NATEA 47,005,720 - (43,652,838) (3,352,882) - - -
Red Arc Term Liquidity Fund IE0BYZ7Y673 0.29% 103,958,773 - - 3,236,288 107,195,061 17.87% 4.57%
Societe Generale (6.75%; 6 APR 2049) USF8586CBQ45 0.24% S 23,654,508 S (1,820,206) 21,834,207 3.64% 0.93%
Standard Chartered Bank Limited (4.10%; 25 MAY 2018) X51415312120 NATEA 16,193,983 - (16,751,418) 557,435 - - -
Towngas Finance Limited (4.75%; 28 JAN 2049) X51022151416 NATEA - 24,037,841 (23,919,142) (118,699) - - -
Westwood Group Holding Limited (4.88%; 19 APR 2021) XS1807198145 NATER - 4,707,174 (4,788,251) 81,077 - - -
Yuexiu Reit Mtn Company Limited (4.75%; 27 APR 2021) X51800164904 NATEA o 7,820,530 (7.971,752) 151,222 - - -
495,829,752 407,308,840 (292,557,824) (10,749,911) 599,830,857 100.00% 25.56%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
TIME DEPOSITS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents and time

B H AR I ot

21, BEeRBEEEYUREHER

@ BRERREFEYWUREHE

deposits comprise: FEFE
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITER M FERS 520,441,937 366,969,663
Time deposits with original maturity FREIHBBE=18A 1
over 3 months/pledged time deposits ~ FHIFR T K EHER 950,000 2,001,612
521,391,937 368,971,275
Less: Pledged time deposits for banking & : ZhiR1TRIEEAE RO 8
facilities as security for credit card sHEIERE IR EE
instalments programme T - (2,001,612)
Time deposits with original maturity JREIEAH BB =& A8
over 3 months TEHRFR (950,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkBEEY 520,441,937 366,969,663

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying period from one day to one year depending on
the Group’s immediate cash requirements, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Included in cash and cash equivalents, HK$27,258,682
(2019: HK$13,504,197) are denominated in Renminbi
and deposited with the banks in the PRC. These
deposits are not freely convertible and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

RITIEFIRIRITFK A MR F BT
KB EHERNERMR—KRE
—FTERFAKENNEREH
SKME) @ WEEPERNEETE - R
THHEREHEREROHLEELD
st BE M RAFRVERTT

RReRBRESEEBYF - 27,258,682
BIL(ZZ—F  13,504,197787T)
TIAAREESE - WEHRRFBEAR
T -ZEGFRAUTTERER &S
B AP B 7B 38 ST P B U HE 1T RO BE
Rl o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=+ KW
B RN
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. RERBESEEVURERER
TIME DEPOSITS (continued) (#&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BETEBRMELEENEER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREANAEEREZHOTELE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- ENEE  SFERSNIEREEFH -
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities MERHELEBEREERERE
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash SAKRNEERESNAEEBNL LS
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash RenaRkP OB ARE TG
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. B RENAE-
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
(Note 24) (Note 27) Total
RITEF HEER
(FMizE24) (Mzx27) st
HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 R-BE-NENAE—A 558,853,516 2,126,492 560,980,008
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREREEE :
Proceeds from new bank borrowings ~ #Ti8R1TE TS EIE 100,180,223 - 100,180,223
Repayment of bank borrowings BRBITER (161,320,059) - (161,320,059)
Proceeds from sale and leaseback ER MO T HAERIE
arrangement = 46,000,000 46,000,000
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREHER
o - (1,354,651) (1,354,651)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEAEEHSHNFS
o - (31,016) (31,016)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERHRITERFE (2,712,119) = (2,712,119)
Total changes from financing cash flows F&ER & RE 2 &5 EZE (63,851,955) 44,614,333 (19,237,622)
Other changes: Hitt# 5
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBFE - 31,016 31,016
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFRF S 2,712,119 = 2,712,119
Total other changes Hin & E) A% 2,712,119 31,016 2,743,135
At 31 March 2019 R=-B-AE=H=+—H 497,713,680 46,771,841 544,485,521
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

modified retrospective method and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS

17. See note 2.3.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. BENHREEBYLUREEER
TIME DEPOSITS (continued) (#&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) METBFELEEENHIE
financing activities (Continued) (#&)
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
(Note 24) (Note 27) Total
BITER HEsE
(KizE24) (Bpx2r) @gt
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT
At 31 March 2019 RZB-NE=ZA=1+—H 497,713,680 46,771,841 544,485,521
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 & /X JEFR & 5 B S i 45 2 A
(Note) F165HT2 (M) - 529,510,315 529,510,315
At 1 April 2019 R-ZE-NFNAE—H 497,713,680 576,282,156  1,073,995,836
Changes from financing cash flows: BERERECEH :
Proceeds from new bank borrowings MIERITRE AT B E 145,000,000 - 145,000,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITER (379,215,888) - (379,215,888)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BAAERSHER
B - (149,200,701)  (149,200,701)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHAEHLSHFE
2B - (13,862,606) (13,862,606)
Interest paid on bank borrowings and BERBRITEFREZFE
overdrafts (4,201,036) - (4,201,036)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BER & FREZ EH)1E5E (238,416,924)  (163,063,307)  (401,480,231)
Exchange adjustments ERAR - (2,594,240) (2,594,240)
Other changes: Hith 25
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ~ FREIHBEEHAE
into new leases during the year BEEm - 23,655,767 23,655,767
Increase in lease liabilities from business £ AGHHERHE R 1L
combinations - 9,809,922 9,809,922
Interest on lease liabilities HEBETS - 13,862,606 13,862,606
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts $877{& 3 & S & 4,201,036 = 4,201,036
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HMBAR (1,546,801) = (1,546,801)
Total other changes Hin B 5@ 2,654,235 47,328,295 49,982,530
At 31 March 2020 R-BE-_BE=H=+—H 261,950,991 457,952,904 719,903,895
Note: The Company had initially applied HKFRS 16 using the MizE : ARREHAKBIIBNEERERE

BUBHREENFE16 > LRBR=-F
—NFOA - BNEER  ARERE
ERRBEEBSHLENE TR BAK
EHENHERRE - F2HHE2.3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. RERREEBYUREBRER
TIME DEPOSITS (continued) (#)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HENBEESRHALE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow IAGEH S RERNEESEBIE
statement for leases comprise the following: AT&IE :
2020 2019
—ECERE —T-NF
(Note)
(B&E)
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Within operating cash flows KREWEMEN 12,720,642 147,090,764
Within financing cash flows MEREESRERN 163,063,307 1,385,667

175,783,949 148,476,431

Note: As explained in the note to the consolidated cash flow Wik : BGeREenERMEMBE KR
statement, the adoption of HKFRS 16 introduces a change in ERMBRELEAFE 165 AEHAHEE
classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid on leases. WETENHEHNRERESDEES -
The comparative amounts have not been restated. LEERESFEIMED

These amounts relate to the following: ZESRHUENTEIBEE -

2020 2019

—EB-BF —FNF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Lease rentals paid BENHERS 175,783,949 148,476,431
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22.

23.

TRADE PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice

22, EZENFEIE

B2 RNRENRROMRBERAHEL)

date, is as follows: PO
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Within 1 month 1EAR 25,346,736 12,631,726
1 to 2 months 1ZE21E A 3,195,707 1,384,677
2 to 3 months 2E31EA 2,514,437 2,930,877
Over 3 months 3ME AL 4,662,250 4,932,044
35,719,130 21,879,324

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally have

payment terms within 60 days.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BHRNKBERFTE - AR —RB60K

AR

23. Hit BN ERESEH

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNEF

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Other payables H A FE S /IR 87,268,957 56,167,679
Accruals FEEtE A 33,707,767 86,846,699
Provision for reinstatement costs EEMARME 10,450,000 10,150,000

131,426,724 153,164,378

Portion classified as non-current DI RIEANEE
— provision for reinstatement costs — BEERAEME (8,550,000) (9,110,000
Current portion BIERER > 122,876,724 144,054,378

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average

payment term of three months.

Other payables included amounts due to non-controlling
interests of HK$18,111,392 (2019: HK$8,785,600), which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

HMENARELFE  FHNRYS=(E

Ao

HEM A REBEREN IR ERKE
18,111,392/8 ;. ( — T — /L4 : 8,785,600
BIr) AR REEWR - 2B RIRERE

2 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS A P ot

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of dismantling
and removing the leasehold improvements and restoring the
sites on which they are located.

23. HittEENSRERESER @)

EENABRBREEEHASEFAFH
ERERHENFERREARREREMEE
EFEBARAN R B2 REMRE

The movements in the provision for reinstatement costs are as BERABENESNT
follows:
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At the beginning of the year F1) 10,150,000 6,500,000
Additional provision FRINE - 4,060,000
Additions from business acquisitions BBEBWEERE 300,000
Amounts utilised during the year FRERALEE - (410,000)
At the end of the year FR 10,450,000 10,150,000
Portion classified as current liabilities SEARBEENIS (1,900,000) (1,040,000)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 2 8,550,000 9,110,000

24. BANK BORROWINGS

At 31 March 2020, the bank borrowings were repayable as

24, RITHER

R-ZE-_ZEF=A=+—0 RITEXD

follows: EEIT
2020 2019
b g 35 —ZE-NEF
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Bank borrowings repayable within 1 year R—FRNEENRITE
without repayable on demand clause I 3R B SR(E R IR = 356,114,245
Portion of bank borrowings due for E’\\*ﬁ WE|HAE R R IRTTIE X
repayment within 1 year which contain BT ERBEKEBIER
a repayable on demand clause 135,088,268 23,261,204
Portion of bank borrowings due for S —i%: FIHAE B mIRITIE 3K
repayment after 1 year which contain R BB EREB IR

a repayable on demand clause

126,862,723 118,338,231

261,950,991 497,713,680
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B SRR My 5
24. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 24. SRITER (&
2020 2019
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Bank borrowings IRITIER
— secured — HiEHA 246,796,385 476,712,254
— unsecured — A 15,154,606 21,001,426
261,950,991 497,713,680

At 31 March 2020, investment properties of HK$189,000,000
(2019: HK$163,000,000), ownership interests in leasehold land
and building held for own use of HK$36,164,217 (2019:
HKSnil) and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$nil (2019: HK$492,635,797) were pledged to various
banks to secure the bank borrowings of HK$174,658,785
(2019: HK$120,598,009), HK$72,137,600 (2019: HKS$nil) and
HK$nil (2019: HK$356,114,245) respectively granted to the
Group.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s or
relevant subsidiaries’ financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities may
be subject to repayment immediately.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities has been breached.

RZE-_ZTF=RA=+—H KEWZE
189,000,000/ 7T (= Z — /L4 : 163,000,000
BIT) C FHEE ANAE L TR A
1#2536,164,217 BT (ZE—NF : THT)
FIEATEFABENEREETBL(Z
T— 4 : 492,635,797 8 7T) BB F LM
RIT DREAAEEBERRITERX
174,658,785 7L (ZZ — /L4 © 120,598,009
ABIT) 72,137,600 L (ZE— N F  TF
T0) REABTL(ZZE —NLF : 356,114,245
TO) FIEIR ©

AEBETRITHERBFENBHELRE
B EENME AR A T RARLNE -
FIREE - WERNE RN BB HEER
YREERYY - WAKEEERZED B2
IR E AT g B RS (EE -

R-B_ZFER-F-NF=A=1—8"
B ‘ib*ﬂ_ﬁiaﬁﬂirﬂéﬂﬁéi@
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25.

26.

B FS R MR

DEFERRED REVENUE

The deferred revenue is mainly related to the provision of
medical, aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services
and performance marketing and related services.

The service period for medical, aesthetic medical and beauty
and wellness services is generally one year and all customers
are required to prepay the packages in full prior to utilisation of
services.

Upfront payment is required for certain customers for provision
of performance marketing and related services.

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: year ended 31 March 2019) that was included in
deferred revenue as at 1 April 2019 was HK$420,461,620
(1 April 2018: HK$452,391,483).

All of the deferred revenue as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 is
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year from the
end of the reporting period.

25.

JESE WA
B L BEIBHE R  BBERUR

KB NEE R ARG RE 6 M AE R RS
B8 -

BE BEXRULREBRNRBLERBOR
BHBER—F MATPRERREA
VRAREBANERER -

T EPARHRERE H RAABRSE X
IR -

RIE—AFNA—HNELTWRAET X
BE-_E_EE=-A=+—HItFE(ZZ
—hWF HE-_Z-NAF=ZA=+—H1
FE)MERABWAR420,461,6208 7T (ZF
—N\FMA—H : 452,391,483 1) ©

R-ZF_ZEFER-_FT-NE=A=+—H
E‘JFﬁﬁLLH&Z)\?&E,ﬁﬂﬂﬁC#&i,ﬁﬂﬁﬂé F
NFERRBUA o

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26. MEMBRARAWAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (a) HAEFBRRERAMBIEATIER
position represents:
2020 2019
S B —hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBFESHEME
for the year 63,840,184 77,644,379
Provision arising from business acquisitions 3£ 15U 88 2= 4 Ay 15 119,697 -
Provisional tax paid BT E A BIE (48,367,344) (46,561,727)
15,592,537 31,082,652
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating HBAFEEAN
to prior years ST BB AR 11,618,044 -
27,210,581 31,082,652
Provision for tax outside Hong Kong EEIEINELIE RS 4,335,851 3,853,693
31,546,432 34,936,345
Represented by: Rk -
Tax recoverable AT B B K (19,392,130) -
Tax payable JERT IR 50,938,562 34,936,345
31,546,432 34,936,345
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B T Rk Pt 5
26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26. FEUBMRRKRAMTEH @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (b) EEHREBE(EE) B&
Temporary
Temporary differences
differences between Fair value
between  depreciation adjustment
right-of-use  and the related arising from
Unused assets and depreciation business
tax losses lease liabilities allowance  combinations Total
RAREER REREENE
HEEEZH BEzEN EEBAHEL
FBRBERE WERMHEE ORMEE  NOTERZ @3t
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B B
At1 April 2018 RZZ-\ENA-A (2,311,349 - (724,132) 4,998,761 1,963,280
(Credted)/charged to RIEE (GEA) /1l
profit or loss (9,928,263) - 1,846,104 (670,474) (8,752,633)
Business acquisitions (note 31) EHUE (3Es1) - - - 709,500 709,500
At 31 March 2019 and RZF-NE=A=1-A
1 April 2019 R=E-NEMA-A (12,239,612) - 1,121,972 5,087,787 (6,079,853)
(Credted)/charged to RERGIA) /B
profit or loss (12,762,584) (1,434,188) 4,045,900 (1,340,201) (11,491,073)
Business acquisitions (note 31) ERIE (H3E31) - - - 6,374,038 6,374,038
At 31 March 2020 R_E-FF=A=1+-H (25,002,196) (1,434,188) 5,167,872 10,071,624 (11,196,888)
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by N

26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26. e BB RARAMWTER @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of SEMBRAROEER

financial position

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RER B B ROR RFERH
consolidated statement of financial position & EF+ 18 & &= (22,324,635) (12,239,612)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RIERA TSR R IER
consolidated statement of financial positon ~ EEFLIBE (& 11,127,747 6,159,759
(11,196,888) (6,079,853)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised REREEHREEERERS
At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material R_BE_TEEFER_FT—HNF=A=+—8"
unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities. AEBVESAAERNECHBEEE K
afE-
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities

B H AR I ot

27. HE&GE

TRETNBEETBYBRELENE16

of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current and ER AEERABAKBEREHARSN
previous reporting period at the date of transition to HKFRS HEBENRTASYINEHA -
16:
31 March 2020 1 April 2019 (Note) 31 March 2019 (Note)
ZE2CEFZA=t1-H ZE-NERA-H () ZE-NEZA=T-B(HE)
Present value of Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum Total minimum the minimum Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments  lease payments  lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
REHE REAE REHE HERE RERS RERE
HHRRE eSS NHRE N [FRE N aE
Within 1 year 15/ 161,190,926 170,877,946 148,849,636 162,091,766 5,882,739 7,322,104
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ 1E L FE2ER 145,795,594 151,495,581 142,897,232 152,234,549 5,281,606 6,547,692
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ 2F L FIESER 138,218,182 146,038,158 265,854,835 275,371,653 16,927,043 19,643,076
After 5 years S5ENE 12,748,202 13,220,639 18,680,453 19,643,076 18,680,453 19,643,076
296,761,978 310,754,378 427,432,520 447,249,178 40,889,102 45,833,844
457,952,904 481,632,324 576,282,156 609,340,944 46,771,841 53,165,948
Less: fotal future interest expenses i, : R RF SF % 2% (23,679,420) (33,08,788) (6,384,107)
Present value of lease obligations 7 & & ZER(E 457,952,904 576,282,156 46,771,841
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mgk AEBEDEBLBITRYEE N ERE BTSSR

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. These
liabilities have been aggregated with the brought forward balances
relating to leases previously classified as finance leases. Comparative
information as at 31 March 2019 has not been restated and relates
solely to leases previously classified as finance leases. Further details
on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2.3.

SREAF16  ACHER -_Z—NFHOA—
RO MAGES - AR EBERIET B &L
FITHESERKEHENEEARNEERRE -
ZEABEREHENABAREHENHED
FEERERL -R-T-NF=ZA=1+—HNK
REMITESEY  BEEEpBEAREHEED
HERR ERBEETEPBMERERE 16
AT ERNE - SHBRRME2.3
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R %5 Rk B

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS

28. B - RERRKRE

(@) Movements in components of equity

(@) HEmAD BB

The reconciliation between the opening and closing NEHK 1A REZS N ERW) 2 BR AR
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated Fh HE%Q b_/\,ﬂ' BEREEER - AANT
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of BRI 2520 R EF) & F R HfE &
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the BEEIE %@@J;zu"l— :
Company’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Shares held
for Share
Award  Share-based
Share Share  Contribution Scheme compensation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(note 28(d)(i)) (note 28(d)(iv))  (note 28(d)(v)) (note 28(d)(vi))
R EE
RGN UROXAH
R EE HERE BEZRG Mot
RA (HEE2s)i) (HEE2s(d)iv)  (KiEE28(d)(v) (Bf&E28(d)(vi)) RiER @t
Notes HKS HKS HK$S HKS HKS HK$ HK$
At 1 April 2018 R=-Z-\EWA-A 9,834 715,110,627 7 (80,282,054) 6,083,948  (442,330461) 198,591,901
Changes in equity for 2019: E-NENEREE
Issuance of shares %éfﬂﬁxf“ 28(c)() 1 4,891,689 - - (1,370,425) - 3,521,275
Recognition of equity-settled ANEREE RN B

share-based compensation: %M’Hé

Share award and share option {7 588 R BB i 29,30 - - - - 6,315,327 - 6,315,327
Forfeiture of shares under Share  1RIZ k{7 2 Bh=t 2| A AR L.

Award Scheme 29 - - - - (407,081) 407,081 -
Disposal of shares held for Share (&R Bk (3 1B 2l A

Award Scheme o] e 29 S S > 80,282,054 - 39,803,808 120,085,862
Dividends declared EERRE 28(0) - - - - - (290,210,660)  (290,210,660)
Recognition of equity-settled RETEREE FHRER

share-based payment for share ~ #% é DRREBHERE

option issued as part of the AUEREE RN

consideration to acquire an BEBRH

unlisted equity investment 30 - - - - 6,958,000 - 6,958,000
Loss and total comprehensive  £RBRR 2 AN LE

income for the year - - - - - (6,053,614) (6,053,614)
At 31 March 2019 and R-E-NE=A=+-H

1 April 2019 k=E-NERA-H 9,845 720,002,316 7 - 17,579,769  (698,383,846) 39,208,091
Changes in equity for 2020: “ECTEMREREE:

Issuance of shares Bk 28(c)f) 8 3,824,605 - - (851,763) - 2,972,850
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HERIAEREE LKA A

share-based compensation: HREMS -

Share option BikE 30 - - - - 6,631,605 - 6,631,605
Dividends declared BERES 28(0) - - - - - (344,813,357)  (344,813,357)
Profit and total comprenensive ~ EREFIR 2 EMELE

income for the year - - - - - 824520,195 824,520,195
At 31 March 2020 W-Z2-FF=A=1+-H 9,853 723,826,921 7 - 23,359,611  (218,677,008) 528,519,384
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BTSRRI ot
28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 28. B& - EERKRE @)
DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends b) BE
() Dividends payable by the Company to equity () ALAFESERBRRENORE :
shareholders:
2020 2019
—g-8% -—T-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interim dividend declared and paid of BERESZATEHRE
15.00 HK cents per ordinary share AR 3 A% 15.00 811
(2019: 15.00 HK cents per ordinary (ZZ—hN&F: BREBR
share) 15.007%11) 147,775,867 147,564,742
Final dividend of 8.0 HK cents R E R ERRE RS
(2019: 6.5 HK cents) per ordinary share G A% iBA% 8.0 4L
and special dividend of nil HK cent (ZZ2E—NE 658K
(2019: 13.5 HK cents) per ordinary RRIREERE BRT AL
share proposed after (ZZ—N%F - 13.5%8)
the end of the reporting period 78,822,196 196,978,990
226,598,063 344,543,732
In respect of the interim dividend for the six months mEE-_ZET—HNEALA=+H
ended 30 September 2019, there was a difference FREAMHBEBREmS  —
of HK$3,000 between interim dividend disclosed in T NEDHPRREFRRE
the 2019 interim financial report and amounts BRIl EHERNE TS ENL Y
declared and paid during the year which 458 2 B1E4E 3,000 8 7L K
represented dividends attributable to new shares 25 RoWEARBRBEE
issued upon the exercise of 20,000 share options, DESEHFBEA RTE
before the closing date of the register of members. 20,0001 BE P 15 B 2 1T 57 1%
FEAGRL S -
The final dividend proposed after the end of the A 25 4 BA RS ok 14 11 E 3¢ 7 R R
reporting period has not been recognised as a A% B Y ok 7T 2R 4 HARS Sk FE 2R
liability at the end of the reporting period. B1F o
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28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

202

(ii)

28. BA& - RERRE #)

b) B2 (@)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) E—HMBFEEGLEMSTFED
the Company attributable to the previous AEERENKRE  REAFE
financial year, approved and paid during the & RIRAT
year:
2020 2019
—EC-EBFE —T-NF
HK$ HKS
BT BT

Final dividend and special dividend

in respect of the previous financial

year, approved and paid during
the year, of 20.00 HK cents per
ordinary share (2019: 14.50 HK
cents per ordinary share)

F—UBREERBKRER
5 Bl A% B B &
A B A% 38 A% 20.00 781
(ZE—NF : FREER
14.507%)
197,034,490 142,640,117

In respect of the final and special dividends for the
year ended 31 March 2019, there was a difference

REE-F-AF=A=+—
I Lk 4F [ 0 R 8 R B B AR .

of HK$55,500 between final and special dividends 5 _ENFFERBHRE
disclosed in the 2019 annual financial statements T B R H R Rl pR B ER

and amounts declared and paid during the year
which represents dividends attributable to new
shares issued upon the exercise of 277,500 share
options, before the closing date of the register of

members.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

B H AR I ot

28. BA& - RHERRE #)

DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Share capital (c) B
2020 2019
= “ENF
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
RAEE BT BHEE BT
Authorised T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.00001 each SARMEE0.00001 BLALAA  38,000,000,000 380,000 38,000,000,000 380,000
Ordinary shares, issued ZER CERORMRE
and fully paid
At 1 April REA—H 984,519,948 9,845 083,429,948 9,834
Exercise of share options () TR EBRRIE () 757,500 8 1,090,000 1
At 31 March R=A=+—H 985,277,448 9,853 984,519,948 9,845

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

U

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Company issued 320,000 shares (2019: 792,500
shares), 147,500 shares (2019: 165,000 shares),
100,000 shares (2019: 120,000 shares), 45,000
shares (2019: 12,500 shares), 100,000 shares
(2019: nil) and 45,000 shares (2019: nil) upon
exercise of share options by the relevant grantees
at exercise prices of HK$3.03, HK$3.50, HK$4.00,
HK$5.00, HK$5.92 and HK$6.00 respectively
under the Share Option Scheme. These new
shares ranked pari passu in all respects with other
shares in issue.

BRRSA ABREIRAEE IR
B RARBERRAE LERERNA
—ERER - IAEBRHEARFN
RABEZARSHERN -

() RBE-_Z-_ZEF=A=+-—
HIEFE  AQFREERE
=1 20 7E 48 B R IR A 1T {5 BE AR A
B #2717 {F B 3.0378 7T~ 3.5078
JC * 4.0078 7T ~ 5.00/87T ~ 5.92
% T &6.00% T o Bl 1T
320,000 I (=T — I F -
792,500 B %19 ) ~ 147,500 % A%
B (=Z — N5 : 165,000 % A%
) ~ 100,000 B D (ZFE— 1
F 1 120,000 % B 15 ) ~ 45,000
R (ZZ— hF : 12,500 B
A& 19 ) ~ 100,000 % B 9 ( = &
— N ) K 45,000/% 8 1m (=
T—NF  E) ZETRHE
FrErEmEEIMEBETROA
BRIZEHAL o
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B FS R MR

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

204

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

@i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of the
business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the consolidated
share capital of Union (Group) Investment Limited
(“UGIL”) and a subsidiary acquired under common
control.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 3.1.

Contribution reserve

The contribution reserve represents the difference
between the share of equity of Union Health
Services Holding Limited and the par value of share
capital for the issuance of new shares arising from
the reorganisation completed prior to the initial
public offering of the Company.
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28. BA& - RERRE #)

(d)

EENEERBH

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R0 = E

A7 4 (B 5 78 A =] B9 B 47 T (B
BT R B B BT ER T 15
RIBZHENERE - RIEF S8
BRENE ARBRMEER
AEDIIKRTFARBRR - HEE
EEE KRS BHE  AA
AIABRNEEREENAEER
BIEP DR ZER -

ROHEE

ROFERERA(RE)RESR
[RAR(TUGIL)) B —RUBEM
K e B B A ) (B2 AR EH]) B9

HABRK -
5 b

EXFHEESMARRERE
BINKB B RREENINE
ER o ZBIRM S FTEE
SERTBOREHE -

HE R

it & % 1% 8 9 fh Union Health
Services Holding Limited &9 % 4
HBARNBERAREEATTA
) 25 48 BT S| B A B2 1T ETAR Y AR
AEEZ R ZEL -



28.

29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Shares held for Share Award Scheme reserve

The shares held for Share Award Scheme reserve
represents the purchase costs of shares held for
Share Award Scheme as disclosed in note 29.

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options and share awards
granted to employees, registered practitioners or
other third parties of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payment in note 3.1.

(e) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$528,509,531 (2019: HK$39,198,246).

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 26 September 2016, the Board approved the Company’s
Employees’ Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”). Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
the Company had appointed a trustee for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme and holding the shares
purchased for the Share Award Scheme before the award and
vesting of the same. The Company paid to the trustee from
time to time for the purchase of shares held for the Share
Award Scheme from market.

28.

29.

B H AR I ot

BRA - RERKRE @)

(d) REOEERE®N@#E)

(v) RROERBTEBENFEN
B4

ARy BB ET & R T =5 A Y
Pin e M 29 PR IR BE R B R X
0 B2 Rh T 8 45 A HO B 1D B9 AR
o

(vi) BABRAD A BN < 7 48

VAR AD 32 A B B <& o 48 15 IR BB
MEEESA FTEl A IAR D RER 2
1< 3R 5K 4% B0 & 5 B P RE AR
BTASEES  TMELK
HME =7 B SKMAFRTT
EREBESE RO RBNA
FE-

(e) RBHYA o EIE

AZEZTF=—A=+—8 " &2Q
BN i NI L Hxﬁmin%ﬁi%
528,509,531t (ZF—NLF :
39,198,246 7T) ©

B4 SR BT &)

EE@HR=B AN AR
S R 80 A RO )
LGRS PEIREYNCISESi S
LN BT BE DN r
Ve D GEL B
Bt - KA RRE S THEE BRI &

RSB TIRA RBIERANR -
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7

FERRMIEE

29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The terms of the Share Award Scheme provide for the award
of shares in the Company to employees of the Group as part

29. R{pRBEE ()

Betn REDETBIIRRATARAI R TASHEER
Zﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%’ﬁf’ﬁz%ﬂif}iﬁ@ﬂﬁ’]*ﬁ%” o R

of their compensation package. Subject to the rules of the R EENETE 2R B EE2BNIE T
Share Award Scheme, the Board shall determine at the time of REMRBEERONEBRE -

grant the vesting date for the relevant awarded shares.

Dividends payable to the awarded shares were applied to
acquire further shares and pay the related purchase expenses
and expenses incurred by the trustee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited and held by the
trustee of the Share Award Scheme who may award such
shares to other awardees taking into consideration the
recommendations of the Board.

Movements in the number of awarded shares in the Company

BN BZEBRMOOBRE R BIEE—FBA
Bt R ST AERARE B R X A R FEA 31 3
2R e

REBAMIABEXERASENEREE -

BER N SELW  mi B 8K
XREARE XAEAAREEEFTEAH
BERRSZERD R THMEREE -

PR AR AR R BB RAERTF IR

and their related average fair values are as follows: EEZFHT
2020 2019
it gt 52 —TNE

Number of Average Number of Average

awarded fair value awarded fair value

shares per share shares per share

EXRROME SRTIATE ERBROHUE SRTHATE

HK$ HKS

BT BT

At 1 Apri REA—H 79,000 2.56 238,016 2.56

Forfeited [mE 6 (79,000) 2.56 (159,016) 2.56

At 31 March R=A=+—H - - 79,000 2.56
No remaining vesting period of the awarded shares in the RIEBE-_TEF=ZA=1+—HARAETHE

AN BE B AR A7 I £ T 4
14F) °

Company outstanding as at 31 March 2020 (2019: 1 year). HEH(ZZE—NF:
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Uyl D
29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 29. R B ETE ()
Movements in the number of shares in the Company held RABRBRDEBA2NERNDER &
under the Share Award Scheme and their costs are as follows: Hp A& shm T :
2020 2019
“E2-%F —2-NF
Number of Number of
shares held Cost shares held Cost
FrEROEE BA  FERHEE A
HK$ HKS
B BT
At 1 April RUA—H - - 31,106,786 80,282,054
Disposal of shares held for Share HERER DR E
Award Scheme BENRG - - (31,106,786) (80,282,054)
At 31 March R=R=+—-H - - - -
All of the shares held for Share Award Scheme had been FrESE L EBETEFENRNERER
disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2019. ZE-NF=A=T—HLEFELE-

BEERBRERASEERAT
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B FS R MR

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 September 2016 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at consideration ranging from HK$3.03 to
HK$9.50 to subscribe for shares of the Company. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective within 10 years commencing on the
date on which it became effective. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company
and is settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

30. BBRAESTE

ARARZZE—RNFLAZTNBRNE
WHETE  ARREEZERERNB RS
SEEE (BEAEBIMNARES)UR
E3.03BILE9.50BLIEMEBALHE - AR
BARRRKND - BRIERTTEHENKIERT - B
BETEEEEERERRTFAERARLE
o GBRERTHEAEFNREBAQ
Al RERR - WEEARMDES -

(@) BRHFRRBARMFMT

as follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
THEHE HBEGH BRESHEH
Options granted to directors:
BRTEENBRE
— On 26 September 2016 6,970,000 Exercisable in ten tranches from 10 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2026
—RZE-—RFAAZ+RAHE AR BRZEL TR -Z—LF 104
—A—HEZZ-XEF
TZA=+—RERETE
— On 18 September 2017 735,000  Exercisable in one tranch from 10 years
1 January 2027 to
17 September 2027
—RZZE—tFNA+NHB A ARREz RN _tF 104F
—RA—HAEZE=-tF
NA++EREEITE
— On 18 September 2017 100,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2018 to
31 December 2021
—RZZE—tEFHATNAHB AN RRAZE AN T —N\F 45
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants

are as follows: (Continued)

Number of
instruments

TAHE

B H AR I ot

30. ERERE (m)
(a) REGERRELGOT @ (4@)
Contractual life

of options

BRESHFH

Vesting conditions

BE &R

— On 21 August 2018

—RZE-N\FNAR=+—H

— On 21 August 2018

—RZE-NFNA=-1+—H

— On 2 October 2018

- RZE—NF+HA=H

— On 2 October 2018

- R-E—NF+HA=H

— On 28 November 2018

—RZZE-N\F+—A=-+/\H

300,000

500,000

100,000

735,000

1,500,000

Exercisable in two tranches from
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028

AN RRAE MR _E—NF 104
—AZHEZ-Z-N\F
ANRAZ+BEETE

10 years

Exercisable in four tranches from
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028

AN RRAE AR T —NEF 104
—AZHBEZZZ)N\F
AAZ+BERMTE

10 years

Exercisable in four tranches from
2 January 2019 to
1 October 2028

AN ARZEZMIER =T —NF 104
—AZREZZ-N\F
+ A—BHRETE

10 years

Exercisable in one tranch from
3 January 2028 to
1 October 2028
ADRREs —#HR_FT-N\F 104
—A=ZRE=ZE-N\FE
+A—BHRETE

10 years

Exercisable in seven tranches from
2 January 2019 to
27 November 2028

AN RRAZEZEHRZT—NF 9%F
—AZHEZZZ)N\F
+— A=+t A EETE

9 years

BEERBRERASEERAT
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FERRMIEE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

210

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

as follows: (Continued)

Number of
instruments

TAHE

BT &l (@)
(@) RHEIEE

Vesting conditions

BERSE

ARGBIT (&)

Contractual life
of options

BRESHFH

— On 12 July 2019

NEELA+=H

—RN=EF—

— On 16 October 2019

NE+HA+RA

—RN=EF—

— On 16 October 2019

NE+HA+RA

—RN=E—

Options granted to employees:

BT ESNBRE :
— On 26 September 2016

— On 18 September 2017

+tFENATNAR

—RN=F—

— On 5 December 2017

—R-_F—tH£+_AAAH

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NENLAZ+RHE

1,000,000

735,000

1,000,000

230,000

1,270,000

200,000

Exercisable in four tranches from
2 January 2020 to
11 July 2024

A RRZEZMILN —E _TF
—AZHRE-T-_WF
+A+—BEETE

Exercisable in one tranch from
2 January 2029 to
15 October 2029

AN RRAZE s —HHRZZTZNEF
—AZHEZZZAHF
+A+HBEETE

Exercisable in five tranches from
16 October 2029 to
15 October 2029
ANABREZAIR T ZNF
+A+NBE-ZT-AF
+A+HRBHEITE

Exercisable in four tranches from
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2020
AR RRAE AN T —+4F
—A—HEZZE-ZF
+ZA=+—RHETE
Exercisable in four tranches from
1 January 2018 to
31 December 2021
AN ARZEZEIER =T —\F
—A—HEZ=Z=—%F
+Z A=+—H8BIE

Exercisable in three tranches from
1 April 2018 to 4 December 2027

AIDAREZ =R _E—N\F
MA—BE-ZZT_+4F
+ = A HEETTE

5 years

5%

10 years

104F

10 years

104F

4 years

45

4 years

44

10 years

104F
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B H AR I ot

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. FERMESTE (@)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are () RHEGRRREHFNOT @ &#)
as follows: (Continued)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
TA®E SHEGH BRESHEH

— On 24 May 2018 1,000,000 Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
3 July 2018 to
23 May 2028

—RZE-NFHRA=Z+WEH ADAREzUMN_T—N\F 104F
+A=H&EZ-ZT=-NF
AAZ+=RHEMTE

— On 10 July 2018 100,000  Exercisable in five tranches from 5 years
2 January 2019 to
31 December 2023

—RZZE-N\FtA+H ANRRAEZ AN _T—NF 5%
—HAZHE-Z-_=F
T+ A=1+—HBETE

— On 7 September 2018 100,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
6 September 2028

—RZE-N\FHALALH ANRRAZ AR T —NEF 104F
—AZRE=ZTE-_)N\F
NANBEREITE

— On 2 October 2018 727,500  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
1 October 2028

—RZE-N\F+A=H AN RRE AN _E—NF 104
—AZBEZZZN\F
+HA—BHRTE

— On 28 November 2018 120,000  Exercisable in seven tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
27 November 2028
—RZZE-NF+—HA=Z+N\H AN ABRZEZ IR —NF 104
—AZREZZ-N\F
+—AZ+tHEREE

BEERBRERASEERAT 211
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B FS R MR

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

as follows: (Continued)

30. BB AETHE (@)
(a) BHKEZRRGHEWNT : (&)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
IAEZE HBEGH BRESHEH
— On 2 July 2019 150,000 Exercisable in three tranches from 4 years
2 January 2020 to 1 July 2023
—RZE-AF+HAZH AN BREL =R _ZF 45
—AZHE-ZT =%
+ A—HHEBETE
— On 8 November 2019 150,000  Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
8 November 2019 to
7 November 2029
—RZE-AF+—ANA A RREz IR _T—NF 104F
+—ANBE_ZE-_AF+—A+t
B8R TE
— On 5 March 2020 150,000  Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
5 March 2020 to
7 November 2029
—RZZEZZEF=AAAH AN RAE —HR_ZB_FF 104F
=AREAE-T-h%E
+— At BHHEITE
Total share options granted to 17,872,500

directors and employees
RYESREENBRERST
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

B H AR I ot

30. BB AETHE (@)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BREHB RMEFIITEE
prices of share options are as follows: mE
2020 2019
bt 22 “Z-hE
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options  exercise price options exercise price
BEREHE NETHTEE BREZE METOTRE
Outstanding at the beginning of FERTE

the year 14,687,500 4.19 10,712,500 3.09
Granted during the year ERNEFLE 3,185,000 6.60 5,455,000 6.10
Exercised during the year FENTE (757,500) 3.93 (1,090,000) 3.23
Forfeited during the year ERHE (167,500) 4.40 (390,000) 3.62
Cancelled during the year FRFE (150,000) 6.00 = =
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ FRAKITE 16,797,500 4.64 14,687,500 419
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ FRAI1T{E 5,327,500 4.48 3,227,500 3.86

()

The options outstanding at 31 March 2020 had a
weighted average exercise price of HK$4.64 (2019:
HK$4.19) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 6.51 years (2019: 7.32 years).

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services or assets received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured based
on a binomial option pricing model, which takes into
account the suboptimal exercise factors and the post-
vesting exit rates. The contractual life of the share option
is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the model.

(c)

NZEBE-_FEF=A=+—HBKR1T{EH
REE R N9 1TEE B4.6478L(=
T—NF 4198 m)  MEFHH
BRANERAESIE(ZTE—NF:
7.324F) o

BRELFERRERR

PATR Hh 8 B R 1 25 B Bt P I 1S AR TS
BEZAFEZEMEHBERENR
FEFE - AREBRENGSTRF
ERE-_BEAHEEERA (ZEIE
BTERELRBBEMERHE)GE -
BRENAOFHRELAEANZ
o ZBRAR RBHREETENEA
= o

BEERBRERASEERAT
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213



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5ERR M

ES

[

° Fi) ¥ G LU [ 17 20 S
IR MOFEH AR AT THE R
VS S B B4R o (PIOSE Y )
NG [ 2 OO oL k) M 26t 47y ) Sl e S o S

° HHEE)
TV BAEEPRLEERYBEEET B HETH
SHICEHEHEL - FEEH Y EEH S BB
LERHESETHET REY U FH L
B2 8 e B oA B U0 B B 2 YT G B M B

o 553% (P)OS T2 [ 04 3 B 25 %208 JOO oL 34 .

‘sjuelb

uondo aJeys eyl Yum pareidoosse SUOIIpUOD 193Jell OU 8JaM aiey | ‘PaAied8l
S90IAIBS 8] JO JusWaINSeaW aneA Jie) 81ep 1uelB 8yl Ul JUNODoo. OJul Usyel
uea( Jou sey uompuoo siyl “((p)og elou ul psulep Se) 4O 01 pejueld
S0y} J0} 1d80X8) UOIIPUOD 821AJBS B Jopun pajuelb alem suondo aleys

"91BWIISS BN[eA Jie) 81 1091k Ajletsrew pinoo suonduinsse indul eanosigns
ay) Ul sebueyD 'SPUSPIAID [BO1I0ISIY UO PasSeq 848 SPUapIAIp pe1oadx]
"uonewlojUl sjgeeAe Ajplgnd uo peseq AlljiiejoA aininy 0} sebueyo pe1oadxe
Aue Joj peisnipe ‘(suondo aieys ey Jo ol Bulurewss ebelene pelyblom syl
Uo peseq peje|nofes) Ale|oA OLI0ISIY 8yl UO paseq S| AlljilejoA pe1oadxe ay |

“(P)Og 810U Ul PESOIOSIP SB DX 0} pajuriB a1em suondo aleys esey | R

(spuoq Juauuun0B Buoy Buok aup o

%/80 Sl %S %0 %609 %9102 %1867 %1e %2 %166 %6902 %50? %% %60 %98 %001 % Pk uo pasee) e 1 sy

E 4 g - g g g k4 E ¥ B 4 § - g g 4

IN IN N IN IN IN IN IN IN N IN IN N IN IN IN N B SHUBAP PR

30 H0H 30 EH E1J 30 30 E 30 3 B 30 E1d EH 01 E1d 30

safl ) sieaf Speal 0} sieaf ¢ skeafly Steal 0} Seaf O} S8 ) sieal 0} Seal g sal g sieal 0} sieaky srafl ¢ sieaf sieak Rl Erage juody

%U0E8 %998 %898 %LV %3567 590805 %0919 %L1 %8715 %85 %9185 %99S %50 %60 %9 00 Ly %1878 HYgd fynen paoeg
0U5H 09 (S BSNHI6 LM

009YH 009H BLSH B0 LM 0099 009H  OSSHHBSOH 009 0096 SO 0990H  OSMHTESH 00 Q0PGSO Q0THH (S ST COESHH gay audespeq

9H 9LDH LM B0 IOH 0096 BOH HIH JUES B9 SSOH WWSHH OH LM H9EOH LIEOH IO SS9 L1 s arlg

IO 00Z9H IO P 6919 IO BLIH 19K 1T 0919H IO WIOH 0019H EHIOH I WO WISH BHEEER SJED WeLRINSERL I eNfeh Je

BTH= BVE-+ B BTHEE HTER BV4ZE-+ BoEE BRHY B-$2HV GEZHEY  H4ER HE4-HT  BHHE  B-+HE EEETH BVHEY BUHHY

$§T8C  #Y-EC HY-EC  SY-EC HY-ET HV-ET HV-EC HV-ET HV-EC 0 HU-ET \-§=  HU-EC V-8 3V-ET -8 8T H1-EC

020¢ 610¢ 6102 610 610 8108 8102 810 8107 8102 810 810¢ 8102 810 110 10 110

[ BUBIONS  0R09L Az g JBOUBIONGE 00107 muedsg,  wnyiz gl Aok ey by 24 oy 1} BUERIS  eUadeS g QuaIsg g

EHNE AT RS
() B N B &7 B B

()

(%) [g{SB I8 "0C

suondwnsse pue suondo aJeys Jo anjeA Jie4

(penunuon) suondwnsse pue suondo aJjeys Jo anjea Jie{ (9)

(ponupuog) JINFHOS NOILAO FHVHS "0€

Union Medical Healthcare Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

214



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d)

Share options granted other than those
under Share Option Scheme

In addition to the share options granted in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31
March 2019, the Group granted share options by specific
mandate to GCP Properties Limited (“GCP”), which
entitle GCP to subscribe for 4,349,000 shares in the
Company at an exercise price of HK$5.53 per share with
a contractual life of three years, as part of the
consideration to acquire an unlisted equity investment.
The share options vested immediately following the
completion of the acquisition of the unlisted equity
investment. The Group measured the fair value of such
grant by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted instead of the fair value of the investment as it
could not be estimated reliably on the date of acquisition.

As at 31 March 2020, the share options granted to GCP
outstanding had a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1.39 years (2019: 2.39 years).

B H AR I ot

30. BB AETHE (@)

(d)

EREBREEREBERE
&I HEBRD)

B AR I B IR R AT B9 A B IR A O
REBE-_ZT-—NFZAZ+—HILF
- AKN& B E BRI % RGCP
Properties Limited ([GCPJ) # H & i%
# - BT GCPIRTTRE &M S.538 T
R KX F)4,349,000 B AX D RIREF -
AHFRAE=F  FRWEIELTR
RIERE D RAE - BITHIEBE K
WHEIEETRARERTR - AEEH
LEZERBRENQAFEMIIEZEE
MNATEHEEERENATE R
EHRWE B BEEr ST E -

R-ZE-_ZEFE=F=+—08  %F
GCP B 18 AR 1715 B IR #E /0 e F 15 #4
TAHNFERB139F(ZT—HEF -
2.394%) o
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FE L 2019/20 21 5
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7

FERRMIEE

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

216

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended

31 March 2020

The fair value of the net assets acquired through
business acquisitions as at the date of acquisitions is as
follows:

31. RBWRE
(@) REBE=-EBE-_ZEF=H=1+-—

BLEFENRBESE

RUEE B BB B X BB AT B ey 5
BENRFHEWT

Prime Kids Prime Inspire
Limited Limited Total
Prime Kids Prime Inspire
Limited Limited e
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Total identifiable net assets ~ AJ I/ EFEE A58 29,759,751 6,490,804 36,250,555
Non-controlling interests FEIERS (14,582,278) (2,596,322) (17,178,600)
Goodwill on acquisitions WS EE e 35,822,527 21,305,518 57,128,045
Consideration for the WIS = I8 AR (E
acquisitions 51,000,000 25,200,000 76,200,000
Cash and cash equivalents ~ FTUIEIR & &
acquired REeZEEY (881,339) (8,613,061) (8,994,400)
Net outflow of cash and FFAREBEE RS
cash equivalents included MEMNRES K
in cash flows of investing BEEEBYR
activities O 50,618,661 16,586,939 67,205,600
The Group measured the non-controlling interests at their AEBIZENZENHB AR

proportionate share of these subsidiaries’ net identifiable
assets.

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2020, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the year would have been
HK$1,995 million and HK$320 million, respectively. In
aggregate, the Group incurred net cash outflow totalling
HK$67 million from acquisitions of subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

FEEMA DI E IR -

HMKBEEREE -

—TH=H

S Emir%ﬂﬁﬂé’ﬁi FRAE
B U A A& B R 8 5 Bl A 1,995
BEABTMI0BERT HE-Z
“EEZA=+—HIFE AEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2020 (Continued)

The business acquisitions are analysed in below:

@i

Prime Kids Limited

On 1 August 2019, Jade Master International
Limited (“Jade Master”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the seller (“PKL Seller”) to acquire
51% of the equity interests in Prime Kids Limited
(“Prime Kids”). Prime Kids is principally engaged in
child clinic operation and medical services.

According to the agreement, the Group acquired
51% of the equity interests from PKL Seller at a
cash consideration of HK$51,000,000. Upon
completion of the acquisition on 1 August 2019,
Prime Kids became a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, PKL Seller
agreed to guarantee the profit generated by Prime
Kids for the coming 10 years amounting to HK$100
million. PKL Seller shall compensate Jade Master
for any shortfall of the profit attributable to Jade
Master in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement. Management expected the guarantee
profit could be met.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
expansion strategy in child clinic operation.

The goodwill of HK$36 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of
the Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$102,005. These costs have been charged to
“other expenses” in the consolidation statement of
profit or loss for the year.

B H AR I ot

31. EXWEE &=

@ RBZE-—S-—SF=A=+-—
AIEFENRBEE®

EBWELFIT
() Prime Kids Limited

R-ZZE—AENA—HB K&
z & [ B A 7] Jade Master
International Limited ([ Jade
Master |) EBE 75 ([PKLE /5 1) &
S EE W AU Prime Kids
Limited ([ Prime Kids |) 51% E9f%
& ° Prime Kids £ B# Ei2t4)
SRR EER o

BiEHE NEEURSRE
51,000,0007 T MIPKLE 7 W&
BE51%MEE - RZZT—F
VA — H E KW EE & - Prime
Kidsik B A £ BEZEHB A
E—Jo

ZHEEEEFRELH R
BLH PKLE H R ERE
Prime Kids 7 R R10F N & &
BEHI100B EATT - PKLE T JE
B 15 B & %% M Jade Master I
{E Jade Master & {i B9 1E {a] )4 F)
EH TIEEEBRERF 4
Z3 -

FRAMBERAARBNRD
PraEmRRIEM—aD

WEEENEEBEEETT
KEERNEEBEMEBNER
BRZo 0 RUE -

AEBEEMWEMRBKRAS
102,00578 7T ° & E KA AF
NizaiEakR [EmRAZ A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ an
R e ey
31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 31. EXKUWE @)
(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ RB8E====F=A=+-—
31 March 2020 (Continued) HIEFEFENWEBHSE &)
()  Prime Kids Limited (Continued) () Prime Kids Limited (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities UL B H » Prime Kids Limited
of Prime Kids Limited as at the date of acquisition WA #HREENBBENAFE
is as follows: /N
Total
st
Note HK$
B 5E BT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B REE 5,380,707
Inventories FE 2,445,050
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b EWGRIE 1,535,529
Cash and cash equivalents RERFCEEY 381,339
Trade and other payables B NEMENFIE (2,199,205)
Tax payable FERTFRIE (119,697)
Lease liabilities HEAE (3,252,063)
Intangible assets on acquisition WSS B EE 15 30,644,420
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIRAE (5,056,329)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 12 A FEEH 2 K AT 4 5
FERERE 29,759,751
Non-controlling interests FEFE (14,582,278)
Goodwill on acquisition IWBEAREE 14 35,822,527
Consideration KRB 51,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FIbiER e MRS EEY (381,339)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents (AR EZH RS AENIRS
included in cash flows of investing FIReEBYRL 5
activities 50,618,661
Since the acquisition, Prime Kids contributed BEWEEERLE B2 =%
HK$41 million to the Group’s revenue and HK$4 F=ZA=+—HIEFE - Prime
million to the Group’s consolidated profit for the Kids ¥ R EB R AEH 41 B B
year ended 31 March 2020. BILHER MEAEERBSS
mAER 4 B BBITHER °
The intangible assets are amortised over their EBEEEDREGEAERSE
estimated useful lives. BR{E#ESY -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2020 (Continued)

(ii)

Prime Inspire Limited

On 14 June 2019, Team Expert Investment Limited
(“Team Expert”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the sellers (“PIL Sellers”) to acquire 60% of the
equity interests in Prime Inspire Limited (“Prime
Inspire”). Prime Inspire is principally engaged in the
provision of performance marketing solution.

According to the agreement, the Group acquired
60% of the equity interests from PIL Sellers at a
cash consideration of HK$25,200,000. Upon
completion of the acquisition on 14 June 2019,
Prime Inspire became a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, PIL Sellers
agreed to guarantee the earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) as
defined in the agreement, for the coming 5 years
amounting to HK$39 million. PIL Sellers shall
compensate the shortfall of the EBITDA attributable
to Team Expert in accordance with the sale and
purchase agreement. Management expected the
guarantee EBITDA could be met.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy of securing marketing resources.

The goodwill of HK$21 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from
integrating the marketing efforts of the Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$10,015. These costs have been charged to
“other expenses” in the consolidation statement of
profit or loss for the year.

B H AR I ot

31. EXWEE &=

(@ REBE=-ZBE=-_ZEF=HA=1+-—
B FENKRBEE @)

(i) Prime Inspire Limited

R-ZZE—AFANA+HTA &
EE 2 &M B2 7 Team Expert
Investment Limited ([ Team
Expert 1) EE 75 ([PILE 5 1) ]
B EWE U BEPrime
Inspire Limited ([Prime Inspire])
60% K f% #E ° Prime Inspire £ &

SRR E HPORTTER -
RS NEEABRSKE

25,200,000 T A PILE 5 W EE
60% K I HE - M =T —NEF X
A+ H 5% - Prime
Inspire i A A SEBEIEZEH B A
S0

ZESEERFRELH R
BZH - PLESREREBRE
RAFABHMATH BRI
ER#E 2B ERITE
REEHER 2 AN]) BIOEEE
TLoPILEFEREE S HEE
{E Team Expert fE/G R S FIITE
MEEfICANESE - E1EE
TEERBERITE R AT <
BFgeES -

FRRBEERAARKEERS™T
BB EIRRIEEN —E 7

WEEENEEXNBEETLD
KEAEEEBAEHITESR
H) 15 R RUE

AEBEEMWEMRBKRAS
10,0158 7L © X EWM AT A F
NizEiEak [EmRAE A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ RS
R e ey
31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 31. ¥XWE @)
(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ RB8E====F=A=+-—
31 March 2020 (Continued) HIEFEFENWEBHSE &)
(i) Prime Inspire Limited (Continued) (i)  Prime Inspire Limited (#&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities ® U B B HB - Prime Inspire
of Prime Inspire Limited as at the date of acquisition Limited B9 7] 2 51 & = & & &/
is as follows: NEELT
Total
@t
Note HK$
B 5E BT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB REE 10,241,695
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b EWGRIE 27,941,455
Cash and cash equivalents HekBReSEYD 8,613,061
Trade and other payables E 5 NE M IE (23,428,907)
Deferred revenue R A (16,987,047)
Lease liabilities HEBAE (6,557,859)
Intangible assets on acquisition WEEFT S EREE 15 7,986,115
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBAE (1,317,709)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value A ER 2R AR
FEEMER 6,490,804
Non-controlling interests FEPE bl (2,596,322)
Goodwill on acquisition I EAR SR 14 21,305,518
Consideration B 25,200,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriER e MRS EED (8,613,061)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents (AR BZHHR S EENIRS
included in cash flows of MRS E BRI F58
investing activities 16,586,939
Since the acquisition, Prime Inspire contributed BEREEEE 2%
HK$35.5 million to the Group’s revenue and FZA=Z+—BILFE > Prime
HK$0.7 million to the Group’s consolidated profit Inspire ¥ Zx £ B Ug A 1E 1 35.5
for the year ended 31 March 2020. BEBTHNEER  RHEAE
RABFIELOTEBALME
The intangible assets are amortised over their | EEDNZEAAFERSF
estimated useful lives. HAVE#ESH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2019

The fair value of the net assets acquired through

B H AR I ot

31. ¥KUWEE @)

b) ARBZE=-T—h&E=A=+-—
BiEFENBERE

RUHE B B B X BB P i e %

business acquisitions as at the date of acquisitions is as BEOAEEDT :
follows:
McKenzie
Healthcare
Limited Others Total
BERRFEE
BIRAF Hith st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Total identifiable net assets ] 3% 5l /5 & &= 42 %8 45,616,231 17,652,710 63,268,941
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (22,351,953) (7,061,084) (29,413,037)
Goodwill on acquisitions R 2 A g 18,735,722 2,408,374 21,144,096
Consideration for subscription R AKX B
of new shares 42,000,000 13,000,000 55,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents ~ FTUIEIR & &
acquired REEEW = 953,846 953,846
Contribution from non- EBBEEER
controlling interests arising FEIE ISR A
from business acquisitions*  &Ef* - 3,500,000 3,500,000
Net inflow of cash and FFAREEERS
cash equivalents included in  EEHIRE K&
cash flows of investing BeEZEBEYR
activities R R - 4,453,846 4,453,846
* The total contribution from non-controlling interests as stated * EBNEEE RN ERESRNE

in the sale and purchase agreement in respect of a business
acquisition was HK$7.0 million, of which HK$3.5 million was
settled during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group measured the non-controlling interests at their
proportionate share of these subsidiaries’ net identifiable
assets.

Bamn7oa&En EH35BEEE
TERBE-_E—AF=BA=+—H1i1
FREEE

AEBERERZEWNE QR AR #5
FEEMIGL DR EIFER R -
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B FS R MR

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

222

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2019 (Continued)

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the year would have been
HK$1,867.5 million and HK$382.9 million, respectively.
In aggregate, the Group generated net cash inflow
totalling HK$4.5 million from acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The significant business acquisition is analysed in (j).

@i

McKenzie Healthcare Limited

On 1 November 2018, Team Expert, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
business transfer agreement with the sellers (“the
Sellers”), which the Group agreed to incorporate a
new company, McKenzie Healthcare Limited
(“MHL”), with the Sellers. MHL would provide
therapy services in Hong Kong which was originally
operated and owned by the Sellers.

According to the agreement, the Group subscribed
for 51% of equity interests in MHL at a cash
consideration of HK$42,000,000, while the Sellers
subscribed for the remaining 49% of equity
interests, which was satisfied by the transfer of the
therapy business. As a result, the above
transaction was regarded as a business acquisition
which the Group effectively acquired 51% of the
equity interests.

Upon completion of the acquisition on 1 November
2018, MHL became a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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b) ARBZE=ZT—h&E=A=+-—
Bl FENRBEE @)

HWREEERNBEE -_T—NLE=A
—t—HILEFEVHEE  FREAE
B A RAEBEFE DB A&1,867.5
BEBTK3RIBERETT BHEZ
TZ-NF=ZA=+—BHLFE  £&
EEkBEHBAREERESRAFE
AFt45BEETT -

BEREHWIBR () 24T

@i

EENFEBERRAT

RZE—NF+—A—HB" 'K
£ B2 & [ /& A7) Team Expert
BMEFIERFDIILEBEZR
W% Bt AKEERRERE
FEEMBR AR R R EEE
BRARI([ERE]) - HERE
REBRMAERS - BRAH
BEHEERES -

BiERZE AEENBESRE
42,000,000 7T R B & B ¥
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2019 (Continued)

(@i

McKenzie Healthcare Limited (Continued)

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the Sellers
agreed to guarantee the revenue generated by
McKenzie Healthcare Limited for the coming 2
years amounting to HK$38 million each year. The
Sellers shall compensate Team Expert for any
shortfall of the deemed profit attributable to Team
Expert each year calculated in accordance with the
business transfer agreement. Management
expected that the guarantee revenue could be met.

The acquisition enables the Group to expand the
scope of medical services and can be benefited
from the synergy mentioned below.

The goodwill of HK$18.7 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool and combining the
operations of the Group and MHL.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$121,003. These costs have been charged to
“other expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year.

B H AR I ot

31. EKUWE @)

b) REE-F-NAF=A=1+—
A ik FE BB E ()

() ZBREBERRLIF(E)

ZhBEEEREFRELH - R
BZEH BAREERER
FEEERARIRRKMFEZF
B AZESEESTTL - BN
15 5t & F JE 8% 15 Team Expert JE
1 A8 1B S M e = B e
Team Expert * A RAEEIRER
HEpETE  EERERAT
FEBRBUA o

WEEDAEEREABRERE
R E - BN T XA E
195 R RUFE

WEEANEMEBISTEBAET
TRERFHEZT R ALEE
BHERERFMESA G -

AEEEEMKRBRABKAS
121,00378 7T ° 2 E AT AF
NizaEmR [EmRAEI A -
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31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

224

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2019 (Continued)

@i

McKenzie Healthcare Limited (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of McKenzie Healthcare Limited as at the date of

31. EXKUWE @)

b) ARBZE=ZT—h&E=A=+-—
HIEFENREESE @

() ZEBREBERRIT(H)

RKBAH  ZEREERR
RAEAIMABRNEERBENR

acquisition is as follows: FEIMT
Total
et
Note HK$
Bt BT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B REE 25,731
Other receivables HAth pE IR 42,000,000
Intangible assets on acquisition WS B EE 15 4,300,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIAA & (709,500)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value A ER =R HE R
FRERTE 45,616,231
Non-controlling interests FEFE bl (22,351,953)
Goodwill on acquisition WESE £ R iR 14 18,735,722
Consideration for subscription of REBFRARE
new shares 42,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents acquired and
net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
included in cash flows of investing
activities

FikERE LREEEYMR
AARERDESTEN
RekReFEMRAFHE

Since the acquisition, MHL contributed HK$15.5
million to the Group’s revenue and HK$0.2 million
to the Group’s consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The other receivables represented the cash to be
contributed by the Group as stated in the business
transfer agreement.

The intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32.

33.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

B H AR I ot

HREE

R|EMR - AERGE M BERRAIR
BREOIARRENT

2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank guarantee given to a credit M= A R ERR R IRITIER
card institution - 2,000,000

As at 31 March 2020, the Group no longer has liability under
the bank guarantee given to a credit card institution (2019:
HK$2,000,000) after the expiration of the arrangement.

COMMITMENTS 33.

(a) Operation lease commitments

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

NR-ZBE-BE=A=+—H0 KXEBEIE
REBLZEEZRMAER FERERERITER
EHTHMEE(ZZE—LF : 2,000,000/%
JL) °

AR
(a) KEMERE

R-B-NE=ZA=+—B K£H
KA s S S TR A T8
RO SR B B AL BOE R EES
mT

2019
—E-NF
HK$

ATT

Within one year —FA
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUAEBERFR

146,765,316
377,110,972

523,876,288
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33. COMMITMENTS (cContinued)

(a)

(b)

Operation lease commitments (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties and items of equipment held under leases
which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1
April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these
leases (see note 2.3). From 1 April 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the policies set out in note 3.1, and the
details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are
disclosed in note 27.

Capital commitments
Management has budgeted to establish an advanced

imaging centre with a capital expenditure of
approximately HK$15 million as at 31 March 2020.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

(@ In addition to the transactions and balances detailed

3. BBHAIRS

(@) BRUBRREMHBIAHFLNRS R

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the RN REBEFANBEH HE]HE T
following material transactions with related parties during EARG
the year:
2020 2019
—EBEF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
i BT BT
Companies beneficially owned HEEEE R
by Tang Chi Fai BEENLT
Lease rentals payment HERSMAZ 0] 1,909,721 1,884,000
Companies beneficially owned HSEERBEER
by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai BEENRAT
Lease rentals payment HERS M () 288,000 264,000
Insurance brokerage service fee RO IREE (iv) - 1,068,660
Joint ventures AELE
Sales of skincare and beauty HEEBNMEREMD
products (ii) 57,660 63,851
Purchases of skincare and BEEENEAERK
beauty products and medical BEEEM
consumables (ii) 18,192,302 28,987,020
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BENKE
equipment (i) 19,789,206 10,795,771
Equipment maintenance RIBEERBE
service fee (v) 4,316,078 3,555,730
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B FS R MR

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

228

@)

(Continued)
Notes:

0} The lease rentals were charged from the related parties on an
actual cost basis.

(ii) Sales and purchases were made with the joint ventures
according to the mutually agreed terms.

(iii) Items of property, plant and equipment were purchased from
joint ventures according to mutually agreed terms.

(iv) Insurance brokerage service fee was charged from the related
parties according to mutually agreed terms.

(V) Equipment maintenance service fee was charged from the
joint ventures according to mutually agreed terms.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

All members of key management personnel are directors
of the Company, and their compensations are disclosed
in note 9.

There was no continuing connected transaction entered
by the Group during the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019 which is required to be disclosed under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions with entities beneficially owned by Tang Chi
Fai or his spouse disclosed in note 34(a) are exempted
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and debt and
equity price and investment fund risks. The directors review
and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.

The Group was involved in the provision of medical, aesthetic
medical, beauty and wellness and performance marketing and
related services and the sale of skincare, healthcare and
beauty products and receivable balances are mainly from
financial institutions in respect of credit card receivables and
other institutional customers arising from medical and
performance marketing and related services. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis by senior
management and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. In addition, the Group’s bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from
the default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

No allowance in respect of expected credit loss have been
recognised as the management assessed the risk of default
based on historical experience and forward looking element is
not significant.

B H AR I ot

35 SRIEREERTMIAENAYF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 15 = M 5

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 35. cRIEMREERESMIANAY
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 8 a)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERR &)
The following table provides information about the Group’s THEHWR-_BE-_SER-_FT—HE=A
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables as at 31 March =+—BAKEmEREERROMNER

2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

—E-FF —T-NF

Gross carrying  Gross carrying

amount amount

FRE#AE FREAE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) 52,623,117 95,900,053
Less than 3 months past due B H D3 A 19,576,455 7,039,814
3 to 6 months past due w3 E6EA 5,164,648 72,687
7 to 12 months past due mAE7T=121EA 1,569,477 156,527
More than 1 year past due BHEI1F A E 92,280 1,499,204

79,025,977 104,668,285

Liquidity risk RENE SRR

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash REERVIRRBHEEREERABRAREHN
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management ReRBeFEYKTE  UBBETEAEED
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of BELMBRERSRERDNTE - EEE
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors FHEBREYFRALEESHFRK -

its working capital requirements regularly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on
the contractual undiscounted cash flows, are as follows:

As at 31 March 2020

A 75k B

35. SREREERSMIAMN AT

B #)

AEENERABENSGORMBRER

EMNFEBERAT

R-B-EBF=A=+—H

Morethan ~ More than

Within 1 year but 2 years Total
1 year or lessthan butlessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carry
on demand 2 years 5years 5years  cash flows amounts

BR-FRE -ENE WENL RER
REREE  EWER BEER LENE REREAE RE{E
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT B B BT
Trade payables BREMATE 35,719,130 - - - 35719130  35719,130
Other payables and accruals BB REHER 122,876,724 1,720,000 6,830,000 - 131,426,724 131,426,724
Lease liabllties (Note) BEAE(HT) 170,877,046  151,495581 146,038,158 13,220,630 481,632,324 457,952,904
Bank borrowings HKiTfam 261,950,991 - - - 261,950,091 261,950,991
591,424,791 153215581 152,868,158 13,220,639 910,729,169 887,049,749
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B FS R MR

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 35. cEEAREEREMIANAF
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL B @)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2019 R-EBE-HIFE=H=+—H

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years Total
1 year or lessthan bt less than More than  undiscounted Carry
on demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amounts
BR—FNF —EE AEN L AEH
REFRER {BRERM BR%ER RENE RENEEE KHE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT AT AT BT BT BT
Trade payables BHRITE 21,879,324 - - - 21879324 21,879,324
Other payables and accruals ﬁ{@%ﬁwﬁ&ﬂf%ﬁ 144,054,378 1,720,000 7,390,000 - 153,164,378 153,164,378
Lease liabilties (Note) RERE M) 7,322,104 6,547,692 19643076 19,643,076 53,155,948 46,771,841
Bank borrowings FITEH 498,147,821 - - - 498147821 497,713,680
671,408,627 8,267,692 27033076 19,643,076 726,347 471 719,529,223

Note: MEEE -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective 42 B B 4T S ST W0 2 v e R B B G SR A |
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise 165 - WHER —T—NENA— B HETES - B
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as AR A RS 1T RS A ACLAE
operating leases under HKAS 17. Other lease liabilities include amounts MIEEEENEEas  HpEsan &?ﬁﬁ(‘i@i&‘?%ﬁ
recognised at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases BRI RE LR E16EE B L AIREE S e £
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17 and amounts BT AE A ENASFERINeE - U REE
relating to new leases entered into during the year. Under this approach, I HFAEEENEE - BB T HEERY
the comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3. mEY - FRHME23 -
The below table summarises the maturity analysis of bank TERBMEABIRERETIETORITER
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on $E?FEEifEﬁETjB’]nE§T5;’J ZAITE MR TEE
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the facilities HEERAIEBME S Tﬁ ZESERIER
agreements with banks. The amounts include interest EHFEFENFEFIE - EEEIAEE
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into B BT IS AR i%wu,@jfﬁ TAK A BELT(H
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not ERARERNWISEE - BEEZSEX
consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise its BIRTaRERHEERSR -

discretion to demand immediate repayment and believe that
these borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates.
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BRI

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. cRIEREERESMIANDYF
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL B &)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings FEESHN — BEERFBERIRER
repayment on demand based on scheduled EREZEBITER
repayments
Over 1year  Over 2 years Total Total
Within but within but within Over  undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
R—Fm  R-F%  REEk AEB
BE BWMEMEE BRIFAEE  ARFR ReRELE  LREE
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-2F=A=1-H 140,512,456 33,196,489 60,375,723 42,470,139 276,554,807 261,950,991
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=1-H 26,193,250 25,369,551 55626479 47,028,049 154,217,329 141,599,435
Interest rate risk I = 2 e
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank AEENFERREERGRITERREE
borrowings and lease liabilities. Bank borrowings and lease fﬁ & o IFENFIR R EEF REL 28R
liabilities issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the TEIREEEEIHSCAEEEATES
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate mu%ﬂrﬂf&& AFEM R o

risk respectively.

The Group monitors the level of its variable rate borrowings
and fixed rate borrowings and manages the contractual terms
of the interest-bearing financial liabilities. The Group’s interest
rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

AEBE ST BN EMERKEENXE
MAREREEFEERMAEBENS QKRR
AEEREREEERMNMEHERAHN TX
A -

Eoe
A
o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

() Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

3. tREMREEREMIENAFE
=RE )
) = [ B ()
() Fr@Es

TRFAVNARERBERER 2 EK

Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period. 2R R o
2020 2019
—E-%F “ENF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERA=E &8 BIRA% G|
Note HK$ HK$
iz BT BT
Fixed rate borrowings: BT FIEER
Lease liabilties MEBR 27 270% 417,013,035 3.00% 771,84
Variable rate borrowings: FHHEER
Bank borrowings RITER 24 2.025%-3.43% 261,950,991 0.6%-5.93% 497,713,680
Lease liabilities HEERE 27 3.52% 40,939,869 3.30% 46,000,000
302,890,860 543,713,680
719,903,895 544,485,521
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRBREDN

At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by approximately HK$2,529,000 (2019:
HK$4,540,000). Other components of consolidated
equity would not be affected in response to a general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group as at
that date which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Debt and equity price and investment fund risks

The Group is exposed to debt and equity price risk arising from
individual debt and equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The listed debt
investments are valued at quoted market prices while the
valuation of the unlisted investments are determined by
reference to the financial forecast of the investees or the
transaction price of the same class of instrument. Investment
fund risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
investment funds will fluctuate due to changes in the prices of
underlying securities or the financial performance of the funds.
All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for strategic
purpose. Their performance is assessed regularly based on the
information available to the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the debt, equity and unlisted fund
investments to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax. There is no impact on
the Group’s equity except on the retained profits.

The maximum risk resulting from these investments equals
their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R MR

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 35. eREAREEREMTIANAF

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Debt and equity price and investment fund risks
(Continued)

B #)

ERRESERRREESRAR @)

Carrying amount Change in profit

of investments before tax
BEMW BB AR R
RHEE By 5 B
HK$ HK$
BT BT

As at 31 March 2020 R-E-_TF=A=+—H
Unlisted investments FELMIRE 201,544,843 10,077,242

As at 31 March 2019 R-E—NF=A=+—H
Unlisted investments FELMIRE 213,740,071 10,687,004
Listed debt investments TFHEBEE 423,447,598 21,172,380
637,187,669 31,859,384

Capital management EXRER

The Group’s main objectives with respect to capital
management include maintaining a solid and stable financing
structure to support its ongoing business growth so that it can
continue to maximise shareholders’ return, and providing an
adequate return to the shareholders by pricing products and
services commensurate with the level of risk.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital
to the shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 15 = M 5

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 35. cREREEREMIAENAF
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 8 @)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIITAEBE s IENAFEFEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: 4
Assets measured at fair value: BRAFEFENEE

Fair value measurement using

ERATHIEETATENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WERWS EXTEE EXFUBER
i@ BARE BAE

(B1ER) (%2ER) (%3ER) @5
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZB-Bf=ZA=1+-H
Financial assets at fair value through B ATLEFABSNSHEAE
profit or loss - 133,374,351 68,170,492 201,544,843
As at 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=R=1—-H
Financial assets at fair value through I AFEF AR EREE
profit or loss 423,447 598 192,069,261 21,670,810 637,187,669
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR F1EBREF2BLR ELEAFEE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers HEEER UKTERSREERSREA
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial BHETEIBLE ASEL -
liabilities.
The fair values of the listed debt investments are based on FELETEBEENAFEEUATSHEBAEE
quoted market prices. % o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The unlisted fund investments are not quoted in an active
market and may be subject to restrictions on redemptions.
Management considers the valuation techniques and inputs
used in valuing these investment funds as part of its due
diligence prior to investing to ensure they are reasonable and
appropriate and therefore the net assets value of these funds
may be used as an input into measuring their fair values.

In respect of the unlisted equity investment categorised into
Level 2, the valuation of such is estimated by reference to the
transaction price at arm’s length for a same class of equity
instrument.

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3
fair value measurements

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is determined
by referencing to the fair value of underlying properties held by
the investee using the residual approach by taking into account
the redevelopment potential of such properties. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the estimated profit
margin (10%) on redevelopment. As at 31 March 2020, it is
estimated that with all other variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in estimated profit margin by 1% (2019: 1%)
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit for the
year by approximately HK$523,000 (2019: HK$507,000).
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 35. eREAREEREMTIANAF

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3
fair value measurements (Continued)

The fair value of the unlisted fund investment relating to a co-
living project is determined by the income approach based on
the forecast of future cash flows. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the average occupancy rate for the next
five years (88%) and negatively correlated to the discount rate
(11.7%).

As at 31 March 2020, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, a decrease/increase in average occupancy rate
for the next five years by 5% would have decreased and
increased the Group’s profit for the year by approximately
HK$23,538,000 and HK$26,158,000 respectively, while a
decrease/increase in discount rate by 1% would have
increased and decreased the Group’s profit for the year by
approximately HK$4,307,000 and HK$3,322,000 respectively.

The movements during the year in the balance of the Level 3
measurements are as follows:

B #)

FIEBRLAFEFEMANMGER
i 2 3y A BUE ()

,\,\Hi/ﬁlﬁa*ﬁf‘a@ﬂ’]#tm%ﬂxésﬁ

NEEDRBHARKIRSMARTEA - £
RABAEEBTE - RFEFERRKRAFH
FHAEREBIW S EMAE - EEHIR R
(11.7%) 2 & H -

AZEZRF=RA=+—H " HFmEE
B ERNFERT  RRAFHFEHAE
KR EIN5% » NREBARFENZF S
2 B A & 10 #)23,538,00058 T K
26,158,000/ 7T * MELIRE T, 1%
5 BIE AN KR A AN SR B R F S A i ) 4
4,307,000 % 7T & 3,322,000 7T ©

FREZEREERESHWT ¢

Unlisted equity  Unlisted fund

investments investments Total

FLTRARE FLETEERE it

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FMA—H - - =

Payment for acquisition HSZ BT 21,670,810 - 21,670,810
At 31 March 2019 and RZZE—NFE=A=+—8H

1 April 2019 k- NFHA—A 21,670,810 = 21,670,810

Payment for acquisition BT ER 2,081,500 36,000,000 38,081,500

Fair value change NEEEE) - 8,418,182 8,418,182

At 31 March 2020 RZEZTF=R=+—H 23,752,310 44,418,182 68,170,492

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR My 5
36. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 36. A EB MR E
FINANCIAL POSITION
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRINRE 1,008 8
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFABEN
through profit or loss SREE 17,962,910 15,686,002
17,963,918 15,686,010
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Loan to a joint venture BERTEEDE - 14,500,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries  EUY I B A FFIE 502,980,776 1,682,841
Cash and cash equivalents BE MBS EEY 48,273,323 7,339,240
551,254,099 23,522,081
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables E T IR 40,698,633 -
510,555,466 23,522,081
NET ASSETS ABEFE 528,519,384 39,208,091
EQUITY L 28(a)
Share capital RN 9,853 9,845
Reserves & 528,509,531 39,198,246
528,519,384 39,208,091
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on NRZEBE-_EFXA-tHLBEEZESgHE
29 June 2020. RERETIE -
Lee Gabriel Lee Heung Wing
EER @
Director Director
EE EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R MR

37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

37. RMBLARHNKRE

The following list contains only the particular of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of

AT 2EEHIE

BREAKB 2RE

BEMABZHBRRFE -

the Group.
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued TEBEENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AV BRIRE/
WEARER R/ E¥4% BERE E# B IERE
Able Lead Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 97%  Provision of healthcare services
(BEARAR) i 10,0007 REERRE
All' Union International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Sales of skincare products
(ERERREERAR) Bk 1A HEERED
Best Union (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(R (B BIRAE]) B 187 and traditional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products
REBE EREREGIARE
NRHERERERER
Billion Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Investment properties
(KRERA) 7 1A REME
Conya Group Limited Hong Kong HK$11,000 S 60%  Provision of dental services
(RREEEARAA) Bk 11,0007 RETRIRR
Dermagic Skin Treatment Centre Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$770 - 85%  Provision of traditional beauty
(BEHABRETLERAR) B 70T services and sale of skincare and
beauty products
REEGEARBIRHEEEER
*RER
Dr. Pro and Dr. Reborn Medical Aesthetics Macau MOP26,000 S 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Centre Limited il 26,0002 7T beauty services
(BEEBEXATLERAT) RUBEXRRE
EHC Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding
(EHRFEERRLA) B 1007 RERR
Gold Rise Global Limited Hong Kong HK$415 - 85%  Provision of traditional beauty
(SHBERERAF) 7B 455 senvices and sale of skincare and
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  37. RMEB A TR E &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REERENER
establishment/ share capital/ REEDE
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AT/ BRARA/

MEARER R/ E$% BERA E# B IEEE

Grand Best Union Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Provision of administrative services
(EIBBERAA) 7 187 RETHIRY

Grand Best Union Services Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 90%  Investment holding

B 1007 RERR

Guangzhou Zhuansheng Aesthetic Medical Beauty - The PRC (Note 1) RMB10,000,000 S 90%  Provision of medical services
Clinic Company Limited PE (M) AR10,000,0007 REBERE
(BNBEEREXAFDBERLA)

Guangzhou Zhuansheng Enterprise Management  The PRC (Note 1) RMB500,000 - 90%  Provision of medical services
Company Limited i (1) ARE5000007C RUBRRHE
(BMBEOEXERARAT)

Hairchitect Institute (Harbour City) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,200 = 7%  Hair Treatment
(ZEMEZRE (B8 ARAR) B 120047 RgEn

Health Easy Dental Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 60%  Provision of dental services
(RETHEEERAR) i 1007 BB RIRH

Hong Kong Medical Advanced Imaging Limited Hong Kong HK$80,000,000 S 455%  Provision of medical imaging

B 80,000,000 7 senvioes
RUBEYERE
Hong Kong Medical Endoscopy Center Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 78%  Provision of medical surgery
A 10087 services
REBETFHRS
Hong Kong Oncology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 100%  Provision of medical services
&R 10,0007 REERRE

Hong Kong Orthopaedic and Clinical Myotherapy ~ Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 = 30.6%  Provision of medical services
Limited A 20,000,000 7 RUBRRE

Hong Kong Pain And Wellness Solution Limited BvVI US$10,000 S 51%  Investment holding

AEERRES 10,000% REBR
Hong Kong Polyclinics Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 60%  Provision of medical services
7 187 RHERRE
Hong Kong Polyclinics Limited BVI US$10,000 = 60%  Investment holding
RERBARES 10,000% 7T RERR
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B FS R MR

37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  37. RMB A THNKRE (&)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REBBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REEDL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
Rz BRIRE/
MEAREH R/ E$% BERE Ef B IEEE
Hong Kong Professional Vaccine Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 100%  Provision of Vaccine services
; 10,0007 RERERK
Hongkong Professional Pediatrics Vaccine Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 9%  Provision of Vaccine services
Bh 10,000% 7 RERER
Honor Hong Kong Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10 S 100%  Sales of skincare products
(EEERXRARAR) 7 1087 HEERED
Honour Year Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 S 45%  Investment holding
Bl 20,0007 RERR
iMedtech Limited BvI USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EEEBERES 1%7 RERR
Jade Master BVl US$10 - 100%  Investment holding
EEEARES 10%7 RERR
Justice Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 56.3%  Har Treatment
3 1007 SE#R
Laugh and Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 51%  Provision of dental services
B 100787 RETHRE
Mainwell Beauty Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000 - 50%  Provision of hair services
(EHARAR) B 2,000%7 REBERY
Marvel Champion Group Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(MEEEARAT) AELBRES 157 RERR
Mber (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 100%  Investment holding
B 10,000% 7 REER
Moer Limited BVl US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
REERRES %7 REBR
Mckenzie Capital Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 = 51%  Investment holding
B 40,000,007 RERR
Mckenzie Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 51%  Provision of medical services
(EBEEEERLA) ? 10,0007 REZRRE
Medic One Surgery Center Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
} 187 REEERE
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  37. RMB A BHNKRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REERENER
establishment/ share capital/ REEDE
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
Rz BRARA/
MEARER R/ E$% BERA E# B IEEE
My Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 51%  Leasing and hospital income
i 1007 BERERBA
New Elte Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$10 S 100%  Provision of medical and traditional
(FBREEERAA) BiE 10T beauty services and sale of
skincare and beauty products
REBRREAXARHNRHE
RERERER
New Union Intemnational Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(MBEREAERAR) R 187 RIEEBRH
New York Medical Group Hong Kong HK$1,000 = 51%  Provision of chiropractic services
(RNEREE) j 100047 REAERE
New York Medical Group (HO) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 51%  Provision of chiropractic services
i 1007 REERRE
Plenty Business Limited BvVI US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
AEARRES 1% RERR
Prime Inspire Limited BvI US$1,000 S 60%  Provision for performance marketing
EREARES 1000%T services
REENEERE
Prime Kids Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 51%  Provision Psychological Services
Bl 100%7T RELERE
Professional Aesthetic Surgery Centre Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 S 100%  Provision of management services
(EXEERPHLERAA) &R 1871 REEERE
Professional Medical and Surgery Center Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(ERBEEPHLERAT) R 187 REEBRH
Project 535 Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 50%  Provision of hair and nail treatment
B 10,0007 senvices
RESAE RIEFERRK
Reliable Global Group Limited BvVI US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
ZELBRES B3 RERR
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  37. RMB A THNKRE (&)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REBBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REEDL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AT/ BRIRE/
MEAREH R/ E$% BERE Ef B IEEE
Swiss Line by Dermlab Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 S 100%  Sales of skincare products
(ENBERAA) % 100047 HELEED
Team Expert BvI US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
ZEABARES E RERR
The One Dental Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 100%  Provision of dental services
B 1007 BT RIRH
The One Dental Plus Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 S 100%  Provision of dental services
Bl b AR
The One Dental Three Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 100%  Provision of dental services
Bl 1007 REETRRE
Toni & Guy (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 48.0%  Hair Treatment
& 10007 BEER
UMH GP Network (Kwun Tong) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 80%  Provision of medical services
3 3,000,000/ RERERE
UMH GP Network Holding Limited BvVI US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
EEEBRES %7 REBR
UMH GP Network Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Provision of medical services
(BRFBESEARLA) EE 1007 REBERK
UMH Summit Medical Limited Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 S 70%  Provision of medical services
(BREMERAT) 5 12,000,000787C REBERE
UMH Treasury Services Alpha Limited Hong Kong HK$10 S 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
i 1087 BEEEER
UMH Treasury Services Beta Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
B 10,0007 BEEEER
Union (Group) Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$29,608 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(B4 (RB)REERAA) g 296087 7T and traditional beauty services
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  37. RMEB A TR E &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REERENER
establishment/ share capital/ REEDE
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AT/ BRARA/
MEARER R/ E$% ARRE E# B IEEE
Union Advanced Imaging Holding Limited BvI 1US$10,000 S 100%  Investment holding
AEARRES 10,0007 RERR
Union Gapital Investment Holding Limited BvI USS1 S 100%  Investment holding
AEERRES %7 RERR
Union Dental Holding Limited BvVI US§1 S 100%  Investment holding
ZERBAREE %7 RERR
Union Dermatory Holding Limited BvI USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
RERBRES 157 RERR
Union Enchanting Limited BvI USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(BaRrCAERAA) AESRRES %7 RERR
Union General Surgery Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 100%  Provision of medical services
&R 1007 REERRE
Union Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of marketing services
(2eRRAH) Bl 187 RIS ERY
Union Health Services Holding Limited BvVI US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
EERBERES 1£7 RERR
Union Honor Intemational Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of management services
(BEERCXERAR) A 10,0007 REERRY
Union Lab Holding Limited BvVI US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
AEARRES %7 RERR
Union Medical Association Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Owner of trademarks
; 18T AREAA
Union Medical Capital Management Limited BvI US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
ZERBARES %7 RERR
Union Medical Technology Holdings Limited BVl USS$1 S 100%  Investment holding
RERBARES 157 RERR
Union Neurology and Orthology Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 51%  Provision of medical services
B 10047 b
Union Oncology Holding Limited BvI US$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding
EEAARES 10,000%7 REBR
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

38.

37. RMBRARHNKRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued AEEEEHER
establishment/ share capital/ REEDL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AT/ BRIRE/
(] P R/ E$% ARRE E# B TEER
Union Preventive Healthcare Limited BVl US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
ZERBRES 157 RERR
Union Trichology Limited BVl US$20,000 S 75%  Investment holding
ZEABRES 20,000%7 RERR
Window-Discovery Tours Limited Hong Kong HK$800,000,000 S 97%  Provision of a travel agency services
Bk 800,000,000/ REHEP RS
Young Aesthetics Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 51%  Provision of aesthetic medical
(RXEEERAA) g 1007 senvices

Note 1: The subsidiaries are wholly-foreign owned enterprises in the PRC.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE

CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2020, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Union Medical
Care Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. Union
Medical Care Holding Limited does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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38. EERRAERA
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SENEESARIRERIERAGANE
B 4B 2 B B 5 i AK 37 A9 Union Medical
Care Holding Limited ° Union Medical Care
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
REPORTING PERIOD

40.

(@)

Co-Ownership Plan was approved by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 16 April 2020. Details of which are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 February 2020 and 16 March 2020 and the circular of
the Company dated 31 March 2020.

On 8 May 2020, the Company allotted and issued
8,078,927 new shares at a price of HK$4.2 per share to
landlord of the Group’s leased premises in Langham
Place Office Tower to settle the rental payment.

On 18 May 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 51% equity interest in a
specialist group. The purchase consideration will be
satisfied by cash of HK$100 million and issuance and
allotment of 4,791,905 shares of the Company. In
addition, there is a contingent consideration in the
amount of not exceeding HK$16 million for the
acquisition. Details of which are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 May 2020. Up
to the date of approval of these financial statements, the
proposed acquisition has not been completed.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach, under which the
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.3.

In addition, upon the acquisition of Prime Inspire Limited, the
Group recorded as revenue for the provision of performance
marketing and related services and the “performance
marketing” is identified as a separable operating segment.
Accordingly, the comparative information has been restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

39.

40.

B H AR I ot

BRERRNIFEARSE

@ FREEBEAGEIEEBIREN=-Z
—EENA+RNAEITHARDTRE
BFRIRg LibE - BEFBRART
RfA-_ZS-_TF_A-_+HHAERCZ
EEFZATNANREUARAEAR
AAAE_ZE-_TF=-RA=+—HHK
BEHEER o

) R=Z=ZTERAANR AREAF
f4.27%8 T M B % B ¥ K 1T
8,078,927 I FTix T AL E M H & £
BISFAZHRARENEET X
IEEERNE /A

© RZZE-ZEFAHAT/N\B K£BEZ]
Y EEWE  NE—HEREE®N
51% % - BEREKURLS100H
ST B 1T K 8 4,791,905 % AR
REIRGOE TN o woh - IES
HHE—$ 4B T HBB16E8ETH
HARE - BEEFEBERAAGBEA
—E-TFRAA T/ \HBNAERE -
BEEZSYHREREIEZR B
IR BB SR TE M R TR ©

EEmE T

AEEER-_ZT-NAFHA-—BERAKE
FEWMEERERBERNBRELEE16
S BUHRER A EED - S BRE
B — IR 2.3

I A1+ 7 U B Prime Inspire Limited 7%+ <
EEC IR RENL HRAERGEHEK
A BB I A B BB S A & 5 BF o
Bt hkEBEREEY > URAREER
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41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, M. EEBERNRREBEZE-_S_FF
NEW STANDARDS AND ZEA=+—BLEFEEERNBE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET 3] FEARZENTEE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2020
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZSUBHRERTIEL 5216
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new NEBEBEMEZIBER] M ER (BB R
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet HRRFBATREREREL)  EHRREEZ
effective for the year ended 31 March 2020 and which have TR F A=+ —HLEFELERENE
not been adopted in these financial statements. These RZEMHEHRERRNER - 252 H B
developments include the following which may be relevant to TrlpeEAEEERE -
the Group.

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RUTHEHR %%

WETHHIREN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business 1 January 2020

BEYBHmELERE IREFEE BT —ZE-FTF—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material 1 January 2020

BRGHENFE 1R REBS G ERNESREAANTENIEF] —ET-TF-H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what REBIFFEZEEEHNUIRERRBL
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the TEHEE - AEBLZSNERE  BNZ
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the LR IRAIGEHGEVBREERNERKR

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the E/.é;.: °

consolidated financial statements.
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“AGM”

[BERBFRE]

“Articles of Association”
[HEE=F24mA) ]

“Audit Committee”
[EZZEZ

“Board”

=4

“CG Code”

[{EEATA

“Chinese Medicine
Practitioner(s)”

[0 88

“Company”

(AR ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“EBITDA”

(BRI EREHEA 2B

“Greater Bay Area”

[ K&

DEFINITIONS

the annual general meeting of the Company proposed to be held on 21
August 2020
BER—Z-ZFENAT—AZTHAARIREAFTKE

the Company’s articles of association
AR AR B EIZAAY

the audit committee of the Board
EEgERZEY

the board of Directors

Exg

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time

AR RIS 14 PR M 2 A TP A (ETRSHERT)

person(s) who is (are) registered as registered Chinese medicine
practitioner(s) of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong under the
Register of Chinese Medicine Practitioners kept in accordance with the
Chinese Medicine Ordinance
RIRBCPBEZGEIDBEFNPETMEMATMAEETEEEIRLZE®
AR ER AL

Union Medical Healthcare Limited (B 2 & B2 B £ B H R 2 7%, an
exempted Company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited ||ab|||ty,
the shares of which are Iisted on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BEAERERESEERAR RASHEAMKIHERRER AR
ARAD OB SZ PR AR 7T

the director(s) of the Company
KRARESF

earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation-owned property, plant and
equipment and amortisation

RAFE  BIE - BEVE  BELREBHENREHE BT

city cluster cross the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau region, consisting of
Hong Kong, Macau and nine cities in Guangdong Province, namely,
Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Jiangmen, Shenzhen, Zhaoqing,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai

BR-BE-RFM(BER) WENMTE - 2FFE  RFIREREANE
s (BIERSE ~ bl ~ BN - 2N~ OIPT - ORI - BB - L RIKE)

ERBEBRREERAA
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DEFINITIONS

“Greater China”

[ KAz

A(Group!!
NS

“gr.a.”
[ RIS A

“Healthcare Professionals”

[fEEEIEEE ]

HK”
5t

“Hong Kong”
[&]

“IPO”
[BRAFEE]

“Listing Date”
[ ETEHA

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#RA

“Macau”

[P
“Macau Doctor(s)”

DRFEAE ]

254 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
RE - B ORPIRAE

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRRREKERR]

gross floor area
BIEEEE

person(s) registered with the respective boards or councils before he/she is
allowed to practise in Hong Kong under the relevant laws of Hong Kong as
may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.
The 18 healthcare professionals comprise Chinese medicine practitioners,
chiropractors, dental hygienists, dentists, medical laboratory technologists,
medical practitioners, midwives, nurses, pharmacists, occupational
therapists, optometrists, physiotherapists and radiographers
EEERBARIRER MRIAEMINERNEBFEENETE
BEZH EHEEESHIREEEELNALT - 13ERREEZSBEF
B A8 TRMREE TB BB B4 BETLT - #EL -
B~ BSEORTERD - BROLAD - W3R IR BREM M AU B A

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BRATERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China
hE AR KNBEEBFRITTHR

initial public offering of the shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RIDREEZ T E IR R ARBEE

11 March 2016, being the date on which the shares were first listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
“E-RE=ZRA+—B RN EREBRAER T REEZH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B PRE 5 E AR Al

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China

I AR A MBERPIRE BT R

doctor(s) licensed by and registered with the department of health in Macau
CRFIFRITE BT EER)
ERPIRFRITTIR & BN A BT A R B H &



“Medical Professionals”

[BEEEAS]

“Memorandum and Articles of

Association”
[HEBERERM R AR ]

“Model Code”

E2 S0

“Mr. Tang”

[ERFEA |

“PRC”

e

“PRC Doctor(s)”

[ B At B A |

“Prospectus”

[HERER]

“Registered Practitioner(s)”

[ E A |

“Reporting Period”
[ ¥ & HAH

DEFINITIONS

Healthcare Professionals excluding Registered Practitioners
HEEREEE  TEETMmE

the Company’s memorandum and article of association
RRARHEBER KRG KR AA

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EARBIKMEA0FAE EMBEITAERETESF X HNFLETA)

Mr. Tang Chi Fai, the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company
ARAERE WTEERITREZTELRE

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report
and unless the context suggests otherwise, excludes Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan

REARANE  AFHRNE MEXESEHMEN - TREEE - REM

PANN =
==

medical practitioner(s) with the qualification of a doctor (E2Aifl) or assistant doctor
(¥ 2 BHIE B2ET) under the PRC Law on Medical Practitioners (12 A B2 A
¥ % BA0)%) and is practicing at a medical or healthcare institution
RIRCPEARLMBIBEBANE) EE BRI SN E BB E M A KR 5

BB R BN

the prospectus dated 1 March 2016 issued by the Company
ARABRZE—AF=-A—AFIENHBRER

registered dentist within the meaning of the Dentists Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 156), registered medical practitioner within the meaning of the Medical
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 161), registered chiropractor within the
meaning of the Chiropractors Registration Ordinance (Cap. 428), listed or
registered Chinese medicine practitioner within the meaning of the Chinese
Medicine Ordinance (Cap. 549), Macau Doctors and PRC Doctors
CrEsimEdl) (156 T ) PRt M T 8 - (B AT MRS (161 5F)
FrigmsEes & - CE BT MIEN) (F428 %) FrigmsEMA s - (R (&
BINES49F ) FrigrIRS IS MR - RFIB A RFEAME

financial year ended 31 March 2020
HE-_Z-_TF-A-t+—HLYEKFE

ERBEBRREERAA
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DEFINITIONS

“Sales Volume”
[ 45 & %8 |
“Share(s)”

[ &5 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[P&ER ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ gt 32 P |

“Trained Therapists”

[ B ZIEIHA A |

“%ll
[%)]

256 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

being the total sales volume generated from contracted sales entered into,
and all products and services offered by the Group

BRI MBNHEUR AR RBIRENMEE R LR AELNBIHER

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with par value of
HK$0.00001 each
KA BIRR AN AR & IR T (B 0.00001 78 7T B i A%

holder(s) of Share(s)
AP EVFEB A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMERIMARAIR

our employees who have completed mandatory internal training developed
by our Doctors to provide quasi-medical services and/or traditional beauty
services under our internal licensing programme

B TR FAPT B A il E #5814 A DR FIAAR BRI PIN BRRF AT A2 Fr 1R (2 B8
BRI R EGERRBEHEES

per cent.

B



LM

Union Medical Healthcare

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
HrELBEREEFRAR
Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
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